
G:\Recorder\Council Packet\Additional Info Cover.doc 
 

ATTACHED IS A ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION FOR THE  

FEBRUARY 1, 2010 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 

PLEASE INCLUDE THIS IN 
YOUR PACKET: 

 
 
 
 

IX 
Ordinance No. 2010-2723 

Add 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 1 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
January 14, 2010 

7 p.m. Regular Meeting 
Newberg Public Safety Building 

401 E. Third Street 
 

TO BE APPROVED AT THE FEB. 11, 2010 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

I. ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Lon Wall, Chair Derek Duff Thomas Barnes 
 Matson Haug Philip Smith Cathy Stuhr  
  
Absent: Nick Tri (excused) 
 
Staff Present: Barton Brierley, Planning & Building Director 
 David Beam, Economic Development Planner 
 Steve Olson, Associate Planner 
 Jessica Nunley, Assistant Planner 
 Dawn Karen Bevel, Recording Secretary  
 
Others Present: Denise Bacon (Councilor)  Lee Does 
  Sydney Wermlinger  Sid Friedman 
  Marvin Schneider 
   

II. OPEN MEETING: 
 
Chair Wall opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m. and asked for roll call. 
 

III. ELECTIONS FOR CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR: 
 
MOTION #1: Haug/Barnes moved to nominate Commissioner Nick Tri as Chair and Commissioner 
Philip Smith as Vice Chair. (6 Yes/ 0 No/ 1Absent [Tri])  Motion carried. 
 
Vice Chair Smith continued the meeting.   
 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
Vice Chair Smith entertained a motion to accept the minutes of the December 10, 2009 meeting. 
 
MOTION #2: Haug/Barnes to approve the minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting of 
December 10, 2009.  (6 Yes/ 0 No/ 1Absent [Tri])  Motion carried. 
 

V. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE FLOOR: 
 
Vice Chair Smith offered an opportunity for non agenda items to be brought forth.  No topics were 
brought forward.   
 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 2 
 

VI. LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

APPLICANT: City of Newberg 
REQUEST (Hearing continued from December 10, 2009, at the point of deliberation. 
Public testimony was closed but may be reopened at the discretion of the Planning 
Commission):  Consider revisions to Newberg’s Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA). 
The EOA, adopted in 2006, is a section of the Comprehensive Plan and also helps 
implement Statewide Goal 9 (Economic Development). The EOA revisions include updated 
buildable land inventories for commercial and industrial land, updated demographic and 
economic statistics, updated information regarding Newberg’s economic development 
strategy, and updates to the Comprehensive Plan land need and supply tables.  
FILE NO.:   CPTA4-09-001  RESOLUTION NO.: 2009-275  

 
Opening of the Hearing:  
Vice Chair Smith opened the public hearing and asked the Commissioners for any abstentions, conflicts 
of interest, and objections to jurisdiction.   None were brought forward.  Vice Chair Smith polled those 
in the audience to see which legislative hearing they were present for; all of whom were in attendance 
for File Number CPTA4-09-001; Resolution No.: 2009-275. 
 
MOTION #3:  Haug/Stuhr moved to change the order of the Legislative Hearings on the agenda with 
Resolution No. 2009-275 being heard first.  (6 Yes/0 No/ 1 Absent [Tri])  Motion carried. 
 
Jessica Nunley, Assistant Planner, presented the staff report and the revised Economic Opportunities 
Analysis (EOA) (see official meeting packet for full report).  The staff recommendation is to pass 
Resolution 2009-275 recommending that City Council adopt the revised Economic Opportunities 
Analysis as shown in Exhibit A and the accompanying Comprehensive Plan Amendments as shown in 
Exhibit B.   Ms. Nunley presented the background on the Economic Opportunities Analysis and 
explained because of concerns voiced by the Planning Commissioners and during public testimony at 
the December 10, 2009 Planning Commission hearing, staff was prompted to do further revisions using 
newer data.  The reason staff did not include the updated information before this hearing is due to the 
State Noticing Requirements, which states the draft must be sent in forty-five days prior to a public 
hearing.  Staff sent their draft in October 2009 and the updated information did not come out until 
November 2009.  Ms. Nunley reviewed the revisions from the December 10, 2009 Planning 
Commission hearing and then responded to issues that were raised at the same meeting as outlined in the 
official meeting packet.   
 
David Beam passed out two updated handouts to the Planning Commissioners: pages 25 and 26 of the 
Economic Opportunities Analysis that have been revised.  
 
Commissioner Duff asked how the 35 – 45 minute drive-time from Newberg to downtown Portland was 
calculated.  Ms. Nunley replied it was her actual drive time from Portland to Newberg during the 
morning and evening rush hour.   
 
Commissioner Wall asked staff to elaborate on letter (q) under General Policies in the Proposed 
Compressive Plan Amendments, Exhibit B.  Barton Brierley explained Newberg needs to be innovative 
and look for ways that would be a positive outcome for the City as well as businesses.  
 
Vice Chair Smith stated in terms of “small town quality of life” one detail that was not mentioned is 
Newberg benefits from a steep gradient from the top of the hill down, but that is all county land.  Can 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 3 
 

we make it a county policy to have a green space between Washington County and the City of 
Newberg?   Also, since McKay Road is in Marion County, can we encourage them to keep McKay Road 
as it is?  Jessica Nunley replied Marion County was included in the entire South Industrial process and 
had no objections to McKay Road being the travel route to I-5.  Barton Brierley stated that ultimately, 
Newberg ought to maintain communication with Marion County and Washington County regarding 
regional growth issues.  Vice Chair Smith referred to Table 12-1: Site Size Distribution by Firm 
Employment (2010-2030).  The report states there are no infill sites available in the Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB) that are zoned M-4 sites. Ms. Nunley replied that is correct.  Vice Chair Smith referred 
to page 57 of 284 in the official meeting packet.  The assumption for Retail Trade and Retail & 
Hospitality employment was projected to grow according to Newberg population growth, which is an 
approved method.  For other industries, employment was projected to grow for the 2008 - 2018 period at 
the same rate as the projected six-county change shown in Table 12 – 2 on page 56, which is also an 
approved rate.  What is the difference in methodology on the employment projections?  Barton Brierley 
explained the regional employment projections are lower than the estimated population growth 
projections for the 2008 - 2018 period.   
 
Vice Chair Smith stated the previous hearing on this matter was held on December 10, 2009.  After 
public testimony was closed, the Planning Commission began deliberations.  Although the public record 
was closed at the last hearing, the Planning Commission may choose to reopen the record for additional 
public testimony.  Commissioner Haug stated in light of the latest revisions to the Economic 
Opportunities Analysis, the public hearing should be re-opened.   
 
MOTION # 4: Wall/Duff moved to re-open the public testimony on Resolution 2009-275.  (6 Yes/ 0 
No/ 1 Absent [Tri]) 
 
Vice Chair Smith recessed the meeting at 7:48 PM for a four-minute break. 
 
TIME -   7:52 PM 
 
Proponents:  Marvin Schneider congratulated Newberg on planning for the future.  This should have 
been done 20 years ago.  The surrounding cities such as Sherwood and Tualatin have known industry is 
where they get their tax money.  Now Newberg realizes employment is needed within the city.  Living 
close to where you work is the answer.  Commissioner Haug asked Mr. Schneider how long he has lived 
in Newberg.  Mr. Schneider replied since 1950.   
 
Opponents:  Lee Does stated that although he cannot quote exact verses from the Economic 
Opportunity Analysis, he has read it thoroughly as well as the state economic projections.  Many do not 
want to live in Sherwood or Tualatin and that is the reason why many drive to other communities to 
work.  Traffic will get worse, in time.  We do need to grow to stay viable, but education and healthcare 
are the two areas in which Newberg can grow.  Sherwood and Tualatin are not in a valley and can draw 
on other communities around them; Newberg cannot.  The bypass will be a benefit to Newberg, as 
mentioned in the Economic Opportunity Analysis.  In terms of planning 30 years in the future, Mr. Does 
hopes to grow slowly and carefully.  Commissioner Smith asked Mr. Does if he is mainly concerned 
with the South Industrial Plan.  Mr. Does explained he is concerned with industries that are failing right 
here in town, thus Newberg is not in need of a large amount of land to bring new in new business.  
There is not a sense of urgency. 
Commissioner Wall stated there is urgency for the 14% of those who are unemployed.  Although it is 
difficult to predict the future, Newberg needs to be prepared to bring business into town.  
 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 4 
 

Commissioner Haug stated in his view, this document stands on its own whether the economy is good or 
bad.  Mr. Does wants to protect farmland and does not want to condemn farmlands to growth.   
 
Sid Friedman testified on behalf of 1000 Friends of Oregon and Friends of Yamhill County.  These 
organizations have reviewed the revised Economics Opportunity Analysis and continue to have strong 
objections, especially now with the revisions.  One revision Ms. Nunley did not mention is the 
Economic Opportunities Analysis is now forecasting more of a job growth in the manufacturing sector 
then it did previously and is asking for more industrial land then it did in the December 2009 version.  
The Oregon Employment Department is forecasting 1.7% drop in manufacturing jobs over the long-
term.  The organizations are pleased that in light of testimony given in December 2009, Newberg did 
revise the regional employment projections to reflect data that is more current.  It is important that the 
new data be used to determine the outcome and what Newberg is asking for.  The fastest growing sector 
is education and health services.   To be clear, the overall job growth projection is not the problem in the 
Economic Opportunities Analysis but rather the over-allocation of those jobs to the most land 
consumptive sectors of the economy.   The assumptions in the revised table still do not show the impact 
on the overall acres of which Newberg is requesting.  Mr. Friedman raised the issue that it can be 
assumed that some jobs, which might otherwise locate on larger sites, will be accommodated through 
infill and through intensification of existing uses.  There are so many opportunities and needs to do infill 
now.  Commissioner Wall asked if Mr. Friedman is suggesting the Economic Opportunities Analysis 
Plan is asking for more industrial land as it is now revised.  Mr. Friedman replied the Ad Hoc 
Committee for Newberg’s Future report was based on moderate population growth but they based their 
employment projection on the high employment growth scenario.  He is unsure whether it is more land 
than the Ad Hoc Committee recommended but it is substantially more land then was included in the 
December 2009 Economic Opportunities Analysis.  Commissioner Stuhr stated there are not many areas 
in Newberg to grow that do not include farmland.  Mr. Friedman stated if the amount of land the City 
was asking for was more in line with what the numbers support, the various organizations would be less 
likely to be in opposition.  Vice Chair Smith asked about the objections to job forecasting.  Table 12.2 
shows the State of Oregon projects a 2% decline in manufacturing jobs between the years 2008 – 2018.  
The Economic Opportunity Analysis is the same and the plan follows that scenario.  The state projection 
is not past 2018, but there is a state approved way of calculating beyond and that is by using population 
growth.  Does he object to that method of calculation?  Mr. Friedman reiterated it does not make sense 
to say manufacturing jobs are on a decline, but suddenly for unexplained reasons, that trend will reverse 
itself.  What is the basis for that assumption?  Opinions can differ as to what will happen in the future 
but it makes sense if a trend is going to reverse itself there is some plausible reason why that is 
anticipated.  The long-term forecast should be based on the best data and projections from presumed 
experts.  
 
Sydney Wermlinger is a resident of Marion County and McKay Road goes through her farm.  The 
traffic on McKay Road has gone up significantly.  The freeway access is inadequate now and will be 
much worse in 30 years.  She voiced her concerns regarding Tables 12.2 and 12.3.  Table 12.2 states an 
increase in jobs in health and education in 10 years; Table 12.3 Newberg projects the job growth to go 
down 140 jobs.  In order to service the population and businesses in Yamhill County, tractors need to 
travel McKay Road and the semi-trucks coming up behind them is already a safety concern.   It is her 
understanding that the Marion County Commissioners do not want added traffic on that road.  Vice 
Chair Smith urged her to be in contact with her County Commissioners.  Commissioner Haug asked for 
her suggestions on how the traffic situation could be improved.  Mrs. Wermlinger understands the 
increase in traffic will continue, but local jobs will certainly help.  Perhaps access or frontage roads for 
farm traffic would help.  Commissioner Stuhr asked if Mrs. Wermlinger has any confidence in the new 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 5 
 

state law regarding not being allowed to pass a farm vehicle.  Ms. Wermlinger stated she is not aware of 
the new law.   
 
Vice Chair Smith closed public testimony at 8:45 PM. 
 
Vice Chair Smith asked for final comments from staff.  Jessica Nunley stated Newberg already has an 
adopted Economic Opportunities Analysis from 2006 that shows the land need and supply tables.  While 
that is the basis for future land use decisions including urban land use expansions, it needs to be updated 
with new information and data.  As Vice Chair Smith said about the data methodology staff used for the 
employment projections, the Urban Growth Boundary rules require a 20-year supply of land, thus a 
benchmark had to be chosen in order to project past the year 2018.  Staff chose the Goal 9 Safe Harbor 
since it is a defensible method under state law in calculating projections for employment land.  In 
addition, staff does not predict that manufacturing will continue to decline over the next 20 years.  As 
one of the slides showed, 20 years ago the United States was entering a recession yet we have certainly 
seen growth in most industry sectors since then.   
 
Barton Brierley referred to the Employment Projects on the PowerPoint and explained the education and 
health services numbers were not shown on the previous table, although they were in the document.  He 
pointed out the growth of health services on the chart.  The reason it shows a decline is because the most 
recent data he could get was from the November 2009.  The 2008 education and health services number 
is an average number and that is why it was higher.  From 2008 to 2018, there is a decline in total 
manufacturing.  He noted that it is not just manufacturing that uses industrial land.   Wholesale trade 
uses it, as well as transportation, warehousing and utilities, and construction.    The Economic 
Opportunities Analysis is the explanation for preparing for the future.  The entire document explains the 
need and predictions for the future.  Also, regarding the industrial infill potential, adding second shifts 
can certainly happen and is factored into the table.   The current Economic Opportunities Analysis 
(2006) projects a need for 150 acres of industrial land through the year 2025 and an additional 50 acres 
through the year 2030.  
 
Commissioner Haug is concerned about what will happen if the large industrial sites attract companies 
outside our target industries and that offer lesser wages.  That is not our vision at all.  Is there anything 
in land use planning to guard against that problem?  Barton Brierley replied the most likely method 
would be to offer assistance to those companies that meet the wage and style of industry Newberg is 
targeting and offer less assistance for those industries that do not. 
 
Barton Brierley closed the staff summary by stating this is not a plan to greatly increase the amount of 
industrial land from the current plans that have been adopted.  The plan is neither aggressive nor is it 
shaky, but rather based on sound planning practices that has been endorsed by the State of Oregon.  The 
best professionals have been used in developing the methodologies.   

 
Vice Chair Smith entertained a motion for Resolution 2009-275. 

 
MOTION #5:  Haug/Barnes moved to recommend adoption of Resolution 2009-275, the revised 
Economic Opportunities Analysis.   
 
TIME - 9:07 PM 
 
Deliberation: 
 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 6 
 

Commissioner Barnes asked if George Fox University will be expanding.  Barton Brierley replied 
George Fox has developed a Campus Master Plan for the future.  Their vision is to accommodate the 
growth within their current ownership.  Commissioner Barnes does not see the senior health care 
industry growing in Newberg since Astor House is in need of residents now.  Healthcare businesses in 
Newberg are failing.  Commissioner Barnes sees tourism expanding in the future.    
 
Commissioner Stuhr stated the charge of the Planning Commission is to do a reasonable, justified, fact- 
based job on planning for the future and she does not want to see Newberg unprepared.  She is confident 
this is a middle of the road approach in preparing for the future.   
 
Commissioner Haug stated Newberg needs to pay attention to improving the economy with better job 
balance.  There is no more functional land than what has been identified and presented.  Commissioner 
Haug believes half of the congestion problem is due to traffic going through Newberg, not from within 
Newberg.  This document is going to try to protect Newberg for the future. 
 
Vice Chair Smith recessed the meeting for a five-minute break at 9:19 PM.  
 
TIME - 9:24 PM 
 
Continuation of Deliberation: 
 
Commissioner Wall does not remember a time when staff has ever misled him or given him incorrect 
information.  Everyone has different perceptions.  He does not want to embark on projections that are 
not in line with what the Ad Hoc Committee for Newberg’s Future concluded, but that does not seem to 
be the case.  Predicting the future is difficult but Newberg needs to prepare for growth. 
 
Commissioner Duff stated he has lived in Newberg for only three years.  His hope is he will be able to 
work in Newberg in the future instead of commuting to Portland every workday.  The facts presented by 
the Newberg staff are good and they have done a thorough job.  
 
Vice Chair Smith is in favor of the motion.  This is an Economic Opportunity Analysis on which the 
Planning Commission and staff have spent much time.  It identifies four main areas of Newberg’s 
employment now and states 80% of new employment ought to be in the areas where Newberg is strong 
and then develop other areas of business along the way.  This is certainly a reasonable methodology for 
predicting the future.   
 
Vote on Motion #5:  (6 Yes/ 0 No/ 1 Absent [Tri]) Motion carried. 
 
 
TIME - 9:35 PM 
 

APPLICANT:  City of Newberg 
REQUEST (Hearing continued from December 10, 2009): Consider changes to the 
Newberg Development Code to support the development of more affordable housing.  The 
changes would do the following: 
• Add a definition regarding “special needs housing”; 
• Allow reduction of parking requirements where an affordable housing development is 

near a transit stop or where the development provides its own transit; 
• Modify current driveway standard to allow more than two lots per driveway; and, 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 7 
 

• Define the process for allowing accessory dwelling units 
FILE NO.:   G-09-007  RESOLUTION NO.: 2009-273 
CRITERIA:  Newberg Development Code § 151.122(B) 
 

 
Opening of the Hearing:  
Vice Chair Smith opened the public hearing and asked the Commissioners for any abstentions, conflicts 
of interest, and objections to jurisdiction.   None were brought forward.   David Beam, Economic 
Development Planner, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for full report).  
Staff recommends adopting the proposed amendments to the Newberg Development Code, as detailed in 
Exhibit A in the resolution.   
 
TIME - 9:52 PM 
 
Deliberation:  
 
The Planning Commission deliberated on the proposed changes (see official meeting packet). 
 
Commissioner Stuhr pointed out a typographical error on Exhibit A, page 20 under §151.003 
Definitions under Special Needs Housing as follows: the word “developmental” should replace 
“developmentally” 
 
Clarify the planning process for construction of accessory dwelling units:   
Commissioner Haug is not comfortable with Type I and believes Type II is more appropriate.  There is 
no reason to be so aggressive and doing this will take the rights of the local community away.   
 
Commissioner Wall stated it may cost a lot of money to the property owner if there is an appeal.  This 
counters our goal of more affordable housing.   
 
Commissioner Stuhr is concerned that this particular issue is beyond the issue of affordable housing.  
She agrees with Commissioner Haug.   
 
Reduce parking requirements for affordable housing projects with nearby transit access: 
Commissioner Smith asked staff if 10% reduction is enough to interest a developer or would 20% be 
better.   David Beam replied it depends on how large the project is; the bigger the project, the more of an 
incentive it would be for the developer.  Barton Brierley stated the main cost with providing parking is 
space.   
 
Commissioner Haug asked how tightly the proposed parking reduction ties into affordable housing.  If 
we allow a reduction in parking, there should be a requirement to provide some affordable housing.  
Barton Brierley replied that the proposal not restricted to affordable housing projects.  Granting the 
reduction is at the review body’s discretion.  Vice Chair Smith stated there is a conflict between what 
Mr. Brierley stated and the actual wording on page 16 of 284 in the staff recommendation.  That 
discrepancy was noted and will be corrected.   
 
Commissioner Duff asked in terms of mass transit, where would such developments logistically go. He 
is a proponent of mass transit.  Vice Chair Smith stated there needs to be a change in the language 
stating less than one hour regular service intervals during commuting hours.  Although this change 
won’t likely change much today, someday it will. 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 8 
 

 
Modify current driveway standard to allow more than two lots per driveway: 
Vice Chair Smith stated that if this comes out of a desire for affordable housing, he suggested increasing 
the number of houses on a driveway, thus tying the two together making it more appetizing for a 
developer. 
The width of the driveway also needs to be taken into consideration due to the need for emergency 
vehicle access.  Commissioner Haug clarified by stating there are currently two homes allowed per 
driveway.  If that number is increased to 3 – 6 homes, there needs to be a requirement that some of those 
will be affordable units.  He continued to explain he is not in favor of private streets.   
 
Commissioner Wall stated his only objection to private streets is the accessibility of emergency 
vehicles.  
The street standards need to be changed or better yet, have a specific variance street standard.  If it 
meets affordable housing guidelines, a public street can be just as narrow and inexpensive as putting in a 
private street and the City would have jurisdiction over it.  He is concerned that currently there is no 
requirement of a maintenance agreement.  Newberg has a poor record of enforcing maintenance 
agreements of all kinds.   
 
Commissioner Barnes asked how alleys are classified, such as those in the Orchard Lair development.   
Barton Brierley replied most of them are public alleys and frontage is required on a public street for the 
homes in Orchard’s Lair.  Commissioner Haug stated there are many opportunities to develop 
flexibility.   
 
Vice Chair Smith entertained a motion for Resolution 2009-273.   
 
MOTION#6:  Stuhr/Duff  moved to adopt Resolution 2009-273 with the following changes:  Section 
151.003 make the typographical change to “developmental” from “developmentally”; Section 151.191 
request the Type II process; Section 151.612 change language as follows:  “At the review body’s 
discretion, affordable housing projects may reduce the required off-street parking by 10% if there is an 
adequate continuous pedestrian route no more than 1,500 feet in length from the development to transit 
service with an average of less than one hour regular service intervals during commuting hours or where 
the development provides its own transit.”; and table Section 151.703 to be reviewed further by staff.    
{6 Yes/ 0 No/ 1 Absent [Tri]) Motion carried.   
 
TIME – 10:30 PM 
 

VII. ITEMS FROM STAFF: 
 
Update on Council items:   
 
Barton Brierley stated Resolution 2009-275 will go before the City Council on February 1, 2010. 
 
Other reports, letters, or correspondence:   
 
The City has received money to do an Infrastructure Financing Plan for industrial land along Wynooski 
Road and other areas that may be added to the Urban Growth Boundary.   
 
The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for February 11, 2010 at which time the 
Commission will be considering the new flood plain maps for Newberg submitted by the Federal 



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (January 14, 2010)  Page 9 
 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for adoption, as well as a Flood Plain Ordinance that has 
been drafted by staff.   
 
Commissioner Wall learned that apparently audience members and/or interested parties can request 
copies of personal notes that have been written by the Commissioners because they are part of the 
record.  Terrence Mahr, City Attorney will be explaining the guidelines in the near future.  
Commissioner Haug stated he sees no harm in it as long as he has a copy himself.  
  
Commissioner Haug stated the Citizen’s Rate Review Town Hall Meeting took place last evening.  
There will be a public hearing on January 27, 2010 at 7 pm in the Public Safety Building. 
 
Commissioner Stuhr asked for an update on Fred Meyer.  Barton Brierley has received recent 
correspondence from them and anticipates they will be back in the next few months. 

 
VIII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:   

 
IX. ADJOURN: 

 
Vice Chair adjourned the meeting at 10:38 PM. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission this 11th day of February, 2010. 
 
AYES:    NO:      ABSENT:     ABSTAIN:          
          (List Name(s))    (List Name(s)) 
 
 
________________________________   _____________________________________   
Planning Recording Secretary      Planning Commission Chair    
 
 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 1, 2010) 
G:\Recorder\Agendas\2010 Agendas\Council Agenda 2010-0201.doc Page 1 

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Please fill out a form identifying the item(s) you wish to speak on prior to 
the meeting starting, if possible, or prior to the agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder.  (The exception is formal land use 
hearings, which requires a specific public hearing process.) 
 

CITY OF NEWBERG 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

FEBRUARY 1, 2010 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER* 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. FLAG CEREMONY PERFORMED BY BOY SCOUT TROOP 265 
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
V. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion; an opportunity to speak for no 
more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VII. APPOINTMENTS 
 

Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2010-2884 appointing Larry Blake, Jr. as the 
Newberg Municipal Judge.  (Pgs. 3-5)

 
VIII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion approving a Proclamation declaring the week of February 7, 2010, as 
Scouting Anniversary Week.  (Pgs. 7-8)

 
2. Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for January 4, 2010.  (Pgs. 9-13)

 
IX. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Consider a motion to continue the Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2010-2723 adopting the 
revised Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis and amends the Comprehensive Plan. (Pg. 15-263) 

  (Legislative Hearing) 
 
X. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XI. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 1



*The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 1, 2010) 
G:\Recorder\Agendas\2010 Agendas\Council Agenda 2010-0201.doc Page 2 

 
INDEX OF ORDERS, ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS: 
 
 
ORDINANCE:  
  
Ordinance No. 2010-2723 adopting the revised Economic Opportunities Analysis for the City of Newberg and 
adopting associated Comprehensive Plan amendments. 
 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Manager’s office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact Norma Alley, City Recorder, at (503) 537-1283. 

Page 2



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2010-2884 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 1, 2010 
Order          Ordinance           Resolution   XX          Motion               Information ___ 
No.                  No.                       No. 2010-2884 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Resolution: Dawn Wilson 

SUBJECT:    Appointment of Larry Blake, Jr. as 
Municipal Judge. 
 
 

Dept.:  City Attorney’s Office 
File No.:  
                            (if applicable) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt Resolution No. 2010-2884 appointing Larry Blake, Jr. (“Judge Blake”) as municipal judge for an 
initial term of eighteen (18) months. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
The former municipal judge (John T. Mercer) resigned effective December 31, 2009. Judge Pro Tem Stephen C. 
Palmer has been the acting presiding judge and will continue in this capacity through January 31, 2010.  
 
The City published a Request for Proposal (RFP) on October 20, 2009. Mayor Andrews appointed a Municipal Judge 
Recruitment Subcommittee (“subcommittee”), consisting of Denise Bacon as chair, Bob Larson, and Wade 
Witherspoon, including the mayor as an ex-officio member. The interview panel also included Police Lieutenant Chris 
Bolek and Court Administrator Lisa Barry. The first meeting of the subcommittee occurred November 10, 2009. At 
this meeting, the subcommittee reviewed their duties with Mayor Andrews, reviewed the RFP, discussed the 
appointment process, set a time table, and established the next meeting date. 
 
Senior Paralegal Dawn Wilson compiled and summarized all of the proposals. On December 1, 2009, the 
subcommittee reviewed the proposals and selected applicants to be interviewed. Four of the eight applicants were 
interviewed in executive session by the subcommittee on December 17, 2009. The subcommittee’s recommendation 
was brought before the Council at the December 21, 2009, meeting in executive session.  
 
The City Council interviewed Judge Blake. on January 19, 2010, in executive session. Prior to the interview, the 
background and references of Judge Blake were investigated by the City. The investigation consisted of criminal 
history, employment reference checking, and an Internet search for articles, blogs, or other activity, which was headed 
by Paralegal Robin Steele.  
 
Additionally, an appointment process was adopted by the Council in open public session on December 7, 2009, in 
order for the City to be able to discuss the appointment in executive session. (See Resolution No. 2009-2878 
establishing and confirming the process for hiring a municipal judge.) A municipal judge job description was 
developed and approved by a Council motion on January 4, 2010.  
 
A contract for judicial services will be prepared by the City Attorney’s Office for Judge Blake. The appointment and 
oath of office for the municipal judge will be before the City Council for final approval on February 1, 2010. Judge 
Blake’s first day on the bench will be February 4, 2010. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $2,500 along with a recommendation to move to $2,700 after nine (9) months with a successful 
review. This salary is within the City’s budget for this position. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   The municipal court judge is an appointive officer of the city as provided for in 
Section 36 of the Charter. The municipal judge performs judicial activities in the interest of justice in a fair and 
unbiased manner. This position is also responsible for overseeing the judicial functions of the court.  

Page 3



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-2884 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING LARRY JAY BLAKE, JR. AS THE 
MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE FOR AN INITIAL PERIOD OF EIGHTEEN 
(18) MONTHS 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1.  Larry Jay Blake, Jr.  (“Judge Blake”) has over thirteen (13) years of municipal judge experience and 

is an active member of the Oregon State Bar, as well as being admitted the Minnesota and 
Washington bars.  

 
2. Judge Blake is the municipal judge in the cities of Manzanita, Wheeler, Philomath, St. Helens, 

Happy Valley, Sweet Home, and Damascus, as well as being the city prosecutor for the Cities of 
Milwaukie and Tigard. 

 
3. A Municipal Judge Recruitment Subcommittee (“subcommittee”) was formed. The subcommittee 

discussed the proposals submitted pursuant to the Request for Proposal that was published on 
October 20, 2009, which closed on November 23, 2009; conducted first interviews; and made a 
recommendation to the City Council.  

 
4. The City Council conducted an interview with Judge Blake in executive session on January 19, 

2010. 
 
5. After deliberation, the City Council has chosen to appoint Larry Blake, Jr. as municipal court judge 

of the City of Newberg, and the Council believes he is the ideal candidate to fill this position. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City Council appoints Larry Jay Blake, Jr. as municipal court judge for a term of eighteen (18) 

months beginning February 1, 2010. Such appointment will continue until reappointment or another 
appointment is made. 

 

2. The City Council welcomes Judge Blake as municipal court judge and expresses its unanimous 
feeling that Judge Blake was not only the best candidate of all candidates applying for the position of 
municipal judge, but he depicts an ideal candidate for this position. 

 
3. The City Council authorizes the mayor on behalf of the City to execute and do all other necessary 

acts, to enter into a contract for judicial services with Judge Blake under the terms and conditions, 
which include an eighteen (18) month appointment; that Judge Blake serves at the pleasure of the 
Council; the salary to begin at Twenty-five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) per month with a review in 
nine (9) months; and any other appropriate terms. Said contract will be reported to the Council in 
time for comment before final execution. 

 
4. The municipal judge is an important Charter officer of the City. Therefore, the first term 

 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2010-2884 PAGE 1 

Page 4



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2010-2884 PAGE 2 

appointment is for eighteen (18) months to give Judge Blake an opportunity to function as municipal 
judge for the City and the Council to have an opportunity to work with Judge Blake to ensure that 
the appointment is right for the City. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 2, 2010. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this  1st day of  February, 2010. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this   4th day of February, 2010. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through  City Council   at  12/01/2009     /      /2010   meetings.  Or,        None. 
     (committee name)    (date)      (check if applicable) 

 

Page 5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 6



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 1, 2010 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Bob Andrews, Mayor SUBJECT:    Approve a proclamation declaring the 

week of February 7, 2010, as Scouting Anniversary 
Week. Dept.: Administration 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve a proclamation declaring the week of February 7, 2010, as scouting anniversary week in 
celebration of the 100th anniversary of the Boy Scouts Of America and the 80th anniversary of Troop 265. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
David Carroll from Boy Scouts Troop 265 contacted the City and inquired if the City would support a 
proclamation declaring the week of February 7, 2010, as Scouting Anniversary Week.  With great 
appreciation and gratitude, the mayor brings forward this proclamation for your consideration. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
This supports the Council’s desire to be an active participant in the community by reaching out and 
recognizing the importance of the local Boy Scouts Troops and all they contribute to making Newberg a 
better place. 

Page 7



 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
A PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE WEEK OF FEBRUARY 7-13, 2010, AS SCOUTING 
ANNIVERSARY WEEK IN CELEBRATION OF THE 100TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE BOY 
SCOUTS OF AMERICA AND THE 80TH ANNIVERSARY OF TROOP 265 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Boy Scouts of America has been at the forefront of instilling timeless values in youth 
since its founding in 1910; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Boy Scouts of America is committed to helping millions of male and female youth 
succeed by providing the support, friendship, and mentoring necessary to live a happy and fulfilling life; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cascade Pacific Council of the Boy Scouts of America and its hundreds of Cub Scout 
packs, Boy Scout troops, and Venturing crews are celebrating Scouting’s 100th anniversary with the 
theme “Celebrating the Adventure, Continuing the Journey;” and  
 
WHEREAS, there are more than 100 separate community organizations that make Scouting available 
for more than 44,000 youth members in our area who participate in the Scouting program as a means of 
character building, citizenship training, and personal fitness; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oregon’s Boy Scout Troop 265 is celebrating its 80th year as a continuously chartered 
operating Boy Scout Troop making it one of the oldest Troops west of the Mississippi; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by Mayor Bob Andrews of the City of Newberg, Oregon, 
declaring February 7–13, 2010, as Scouting Anniversary Week and expresses the appreciation to the 
Cascade Pacific Council and the Boy Scouts of America for their interest in and dedication to America’s 
youth. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of Newberg to 
be affixed on this 1st day of February, 2010.      
 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 8



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 1, 2010 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder    

SUBJECT:    Approve the January 4, 2010, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Dept.:  Administration  
File No.:                              
                            (if applicable) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve the January 4, 2010, City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s 
official records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
On January 4, 2010, the City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting.  At that meeting, minutes 
were recorded in text. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 9



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (January 4, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0201\05 Council Minutes 2010-0104.doc Page 1 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
JANUARY 4, 2010 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon   Bob Larson   

Stephen McKinney  Bart Rierson   Marc Shelton  
Wade Witherspoon 

Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Howard Hamilton, Public Works Director Norma Alley, City Recorder 
 Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director  Jennifer Nelson, Recording Secretary 
Others 
Present: Pat Haight, Mike Roos, Jonia Pierce, and Diane Ochs 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV.  ELECTION OF COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 
MOTION:  Larson/Rierson to nominate and elect Councilor Marc Shelton as Council President. (7 Yes/0 No) 
Motion carried. 
 
V.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, announced a budget meeting for next week and mentioned four council 
positions are up for re-election at the end of the year.  He reminded everyone of the Citizens’ Rate Review 
Committee (CRRC) Town Hall meeting in the Public Safety Building (PSB) on January 13, 2010, and 
encouraged council members to attend.  Finally, he said the next Council meeting would be held on Tuesday, 
January 19, 2010, because of the Martin Luther King, Jr. holiday on Monday and noted the meeting would start 
early with an Executive Session at 5:30 PM. 
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Pat Haight stated she had been looking at previous Council minutes on the City’s website and expressed 
concern for the number of favorable unanimous votes, noting that forty-nine out of fifty votes from May 4 to 
October 15, 2009, were all unanimous “yes” votes.  She felt as elected officials there should be at least one 
member on the Council who would represent those in the community and vote against some of the proposed 
items, like the garbage rate increase and an additional charge on utility bills to fund new police officers. 
 
Councilor Bart Rierson replied that he always votes according to his conscience.  He commended the staff for 
doing a good job of thinking outside of the box before bringing items to the table.  He said the Council members 

Page 10



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (January 4, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0201\05 Council Minutes 2010-0104.doc Page 2 

do not just vote yes to go along with everyone else, instead they work through their disagreements until they 
reach a consensus that will benefit the City and the citizens.   
 
Ms. Haight replied that she did not intend to be a thorn in their side or put them on the defensive, she even 
commended the efforts of the City Manager for taking a real interest in benefiting the City and bringing people 
out of their apathy to be involved.  She wanted them hear a citizen’s perspective who takes great pride in her 
community. 
 
Councilor Denise Bacon added the Council does not always agree and they often have to tell staff to come back 
with a solution that works best for everyone, after they have talked about it and come to a consensus.  She 
added that she is just as economically challenged as the next person and is fully aware some decisions will 
affect her budget as well, but she votes what she believes will be best for everyone in the end. 
 
Mr. Mike Roos, springs customer, offered to have any discussions of the history and City process regarding the 
springs water system and its customers to help with understanding and making a decision to get a good 
resolution concerning the springs water vestiture. 
 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 Consider a motion approving City Council Minutes for December 7, 2009. 
 
MOTION:  Rierson/Larson to approve the Consent Calendar including the City Council Minutes for 
December 7, 2009. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Consider a motion to continue the Public Hearing on Order No. 2009-0023 to February 16, 
2010. 

TIME – 7:21 PM 
  
Councilor Witherspoon asked staff for a brief explanation as to why the continuance is necessary and the 
progress on this matter. 
 
Mr. Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director, stated the City is continuing negotiations for a resolution 
with the applicant and putting together a package, but staff needs time to gather data. 
  
MOTION:  Shelton/Larson to continue the Public Hearing on Order No. 2009-0023 to February 16, 2010. (7 
Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Information on a potential grant opportunity for housing rehabilitation for low-income persons. 
TIME – 7:23 PM 
 
Ms. Jonia Pierce, Housing Authority of Yamhill County, presented a brief report about the last round of the 
housing rehabilitation program in Newberg (see official meeting packet for full report). 
 
Mayor Andrews asked if the funds were exhausted. 
 
Ms. Diane Ochs, Housing Authority of Yamhill County, replied that it had been exhausted with improvements 
to seven homes and close to sixty people remain on a waiting list.  By Council supporting the grant opportunity 

Page 11



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (January 4, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0201\05 Council Minutes 2010-0104.doc Page 3 

they would be placing Newberg in line as the preferred back-up recipient if Willamina does not qualify or if the 
funds are received by Willamina and the entire amount is not spent within the allotted time frame established by 
the federal government.  If Newberg does receive any of the funds, they would go to the sixty applicants already 
on the waiting list; they have already helped those applicants do the preparatory work to prove readiness if the 
money is awarded. 
 
Councilor Larson asked what was the full grant amount. 
 
Ms. Pierce replied the full amount is for $400,000.00. 
 
Councilor Rierson commended the work done so far and supported the fact the money support local contractors.  
He suggested finding preferred contractors who would be willing to maximize the money spent by working with 
volunteers and in-kind donations.  He offered his support for the entire program. 
 
Councilor Witherspoon asked what criteria they used to prioritize the applicants for the dollars received. 
 
Ms. Ochs stated that improvements for health and safety were of first priority followed by those living under the 
low income limit, the elderly, and single parents. 
 
MOTION:  Shelton/Rierson to direct staff to take necessary actions to support the 2010 Housing 
Rehabilitation Grant Application. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
 2. Consider a motion approving the municipal judge job description.  
TIME – 7:40 PM 
 
Mr. Terrence Mahr, City Attorney, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for full report). 
 
Councilor Witherspoon asked about annual reviews of staff and if the judge has input on the process.  Staff 
replied the annual review is done by the Finance Director acting under direction of the City Manager and, 
although the judge has input, the final authority is with the City Manager and Finance Director.  
 
Councilor Rierson stated he did not see in the report the request for a judge who would spend additional time 
pursuing outstanding collections or past due items and wished it to be added. 
 
Councilor Stephen McKinney asked for further explanation as to who is responsible for the judge.  Staff 
explained the judge is hired and reports to the City Council and would be expected to cooperate with the 
Finance Director on a day to day basis. 
 
Councilor Witherspoon spoke of including language about treating staff and citizens in an appropriate manner. 
 
Councilor Shelton suggested using the job description to shape the evaluation and felt comfortable with the 
additional adjustments to the proposed description, but a crucial change would be to address the ability to secure 
funding or aggressively collect fines.  Staff suggested adding language to include the judge showing initiation 
on things like amnesty programs, issues of contempt, and negotiation of fines.  Discussion followed and further 
wordsmith continued for items suggested being included within the proposed description. 
 
Councilor Shelton asked if providing a city issued cell phone to the judge would ensure access to the judge in 
situations where officers need to contact them during a driving under the influence stop for example.  Staff 
stated if it was warranted, one could be issued.  A discussion followed about cell phones and availability during 
non-court hours. 
 

Page 12



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (January 4, 2010) 
R:\Recorder\Council Packet\2010-0201\05 Council Minutes 2010-0104.doc Page 4 

Councilor Witherspoon wanted to ensure that criteria requiring the judge to be creative and develop alternative 
sentencing and diversion programs were included. 
 
MOTION:  Larson/McKinney to postpone the final decision until a complete copy could be reviewed with all 
the above mentioned changes.  (2 Yes [Larson, McKinney]/5 No)  Motion failed for lack of a majority. 
 
MOTION:  Shelton/Witherspoon to accept the proposed municipal judge job description as amended.  (5 Yes 
/1 No [McKinney]/1 Abstain [Larson])  Motion carried. 
 
Councilor Larson stated he abstained from voting since he had not yet seen the final, completed version. 
 
MOTION:  Rierson/Shelton to direct staff to use the amended municipal judge job description to develop 
evaluation criteria for the review process. (7 Yes/0 No) Motion carried. 
 
X. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
TIME – 8:28 PM 
 
Councilor Rierson said he likes the new speed sign in front of Joan Austin Elementary School and wished to see 
one in every school zone or problem area.  He heard the company demonstrating the sign has a solar powered 
version.  He wished to hear more information about the sign. 
 
Councilor Witherspoon expressed some concerns for the postponing of the decision on Order No. 2009-0023 
and how this has gone on so long.  He felt unjustified in taking away a source of income for a citizen and did 
not understand why this was a problem now when it has not been for twenty-five years. 
 
Councilor Rierson stated he understood his concerns but was more concerned with the good of the community 
and did not feel making exceptions should be warranted on the merit of an individual citizen’s contribution to 
society alone. 
 
Mr. Mahr reminded the Council this is a quasi-judicial matter and all discussions need to be on the record, he 
encouraged them to hold their debates until the hearing in order to preserve the record.   
 
Councilor Shelton brought up concerns expressed during the public comments about Council votes and spoke of 
his appreciation that this Council is able to have discourse and compromise; he felt it was a positive process. 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:57 PM. 

 
ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 1st day of February, 2010. 

 
 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
ATTEST by the Mayor this ___ day of February, 2010. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  

Page 13



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 14



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2723 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 1, 2010 
Order           Ordinance   XX    Resolution                Motion               Information___ 
No.                  No.  2010-2723     No. 
SUBJECT:     
Revised and updated Economic Opportunities 
Analysis for the City of Newberg and associated 
Comprehensive Plan amendments.  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Ordinance: Jessica Nunley, AICP 
Dept.: Planning & Building 
 
File No.: CPTA4-09-001 
                            (if applicable) 

HEARING TYPE:   LEGISLATIVE   QUASI-JUDICIAL 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Adopt Ordinance No. 2010-2723 which adopts the revised Economic Opportunities Analysis for the 
City of Newberg and adopts associated Comprehensive Plan amendments that reflect the updated 
data.   

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   The original Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) was adopted by City 
Council in January 2006 by Ordinance 2006-2635.  The EOA is considered part of the Comprehensive Plan 
and implements the goals and policies in Section H. The Economy.  Much of the information found in the 
EOA is statistical and dynamic in nature, including demographic and economic statistics, population and 
employment projections, and buildable land inventories.  Therefore, the EOA is not a static document and is 
meant to be updated with current information from time to time.  The accompanying Comprehensive Plan 
amendments update similar statistical information and add five new policies to Section H.  Having an 
updated EOA also ensures the city’s compliance with Statewide Planning Goal 9: Economic Development.   
 
Summary of the EOA: Newberg’s economic base has diversified over time and several of its home-grown 
industries have become national and international leaders in their respective fields.  The City is slowly 
transitioning into more of an urban center for east Yamhill County as the population grows.  However, 
Newberg citizens have made it clear that they value the “live here, work here, shop here” values and way of 
life.  To keep up the City’s commitment to the values of its residents, Newberg must strengthen its economic 
base and provide adequate industrial and commercial lands for current and future populations.  The revised 
EOA has updated data on demographic and economic statistics to help us plan for these future populations. 
 
Newberg has identified four business clusters that are the foundation of its economy: manufacturing, health 
care, higher education, and the wine/tourism industry.  Ensuring the vitality of these business clusters is key 
to the economic health of our community.  Newberg’s economic development efforts focus on two principal 
strategies: 1) retention and expansion of existing businesses, and 2) recruitment of new businesses.  The 
availability of developable land for businesses is a large part of Newberg’s economic development strategy, 
and the City closely monitors the inventory of available land to ensure that there are opportunities for 
economic growth.  The revised EOA has updated data on regional industry clusters and trends, an 
assessment of our community economic development potential, and an updated discussion of Newberg’s 
economic development strategy.    
 
The industrial and commercial buildable land supply tables in the revised EOA indicate a shortage of both 
types of land within the current Newberg Urban Growth Boundary.  It is critical for economic development 
efforts to have adequate buildable land available that meets the identified site suitability requirements for 

Page 15



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2723 PAGE 2 

both industrial and commercial areas.  The City cannot help provide enough jobs for current and future 
residents without adequate land to locate new businesses on, and without adequate land for existing 
businesses to expand onto. Newberg does have many advantages that make it stand out in the regional 
marketplace, including the following: small town quality of life; access to quality education and skills 
training; strong established and growing industry clusters; strong local support for business and employment 
opportunities; proximity to the Portland Metropolitan Region; future Newberg-Dundee Bypass; and 
compliance with Oregon’s statewide planning goals.  The revised EOA includes updated buildable lands 
inventories and an updated discussion of Newberg’s comparative advantages and disadvantages, along with 
strategies to address each.   
 
Summary of Changes to the EOA: 

• Updated population, demographic, economic and employment statistics. 
• An economic trends analysis section that looks at national, state and regional trends, regional 

economic development industry clusters and target industries, Yamhill County agri-business, and 
regional industrial land availability. 

• A new section that covers an assessment of our community economic development potential.  This 
section includes updated employment projects, a discussion of Newberg’s comparative advantages 
and disadvantages relative to similar regional markets, and Newberg’s special opportunities to 
capitalize on its unique geographic niche in the regional marketplace.  

• A more robust discussion of Newberg’s economic development strategy.  The current EOA focuses 
largely on regional targeted industry clusters; the revised version of the EOA focuses more on our 
local targeted industry clusters as the foundation of our economic development efforts.  This section 
also includes actions to capitalize on Newberg’s comparative advantages and to address the 
comparative disadvantages, and actions to implement the overall economic development strategy.   

• Updated buildable land inventories and the addition of maps that illustrate the available industrial 
and commercial buildable land by area.   

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no direct fiscal impact to the City by adopting the revised EOA and associated 
Comprehensive Plan amendments.  However, the EOA is the basis of future land use decisions which may 
impact the City financially in the future.  The revised EOA has updated employment and population 
projections, and updated buildable land inventories for employment lands.  The updated projections and 
inventories show a growth in population and demand for employment land over the next 30 years.  This will 
eventually require an expansion of the urban growth boundary and addition of employment lands to the City. 
  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: Because the EOA is a dynamic document that relies on statistical 
information, it is important that it be updated from time to time.   An updated EOA document also 
allows decision makers to have a level of certainty in the data when they make land use decisions.  The 
EOA helps the City be in compliance with Statewide Planning Goal 9 (Economic Development), which 
requires that:  
 

“Comprehensive plans for urban areas shall: 1. Include an analysis of the community’s 
economic patterns, potentialities, strengths, and deficiencies as they relate to state and 
national trends; 2. Contain policies concerning the economic development opportunities 
in the community; 3. Provide for at least an adequate supply of sites of suitable sizes, 
types, locations, and service levels for a variety of industrial and commercial uses 
consistent with plan policies; and 4. Limit uses on or near sites zoned for specific 
industrial and commercial uses to those which are compatible with proposed uses” (OAR 

Page 16



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2723 PAGE 3 

660-015-0000(9)). 
 

The EOA is considered part of the Comprehensive Plan, and fulfills the role of providing this 
information for the City.   
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 2010-2723 with: 

Exhibit A: Revised Economic Opportunities Analysis (January 2010) 
Exhibit B: Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
Exhibit C: Findings 

1. Planning Commission Resolution 2009-275 with: 
Exhibit A: Revised Economic Opportunities Analysis (January 2010), by reference 
Exhibit B: Comprehensive Plan Amendments, by reference 
Exhibit C: Findings, by reference 

2. Minutes from the December 10, 2009 Planning Commission meeting 
3. Letter from Tom Fox, dated December 1, 2009 
4. Comments from Steve Oulman, dated November 30, 2009 
5. Johnson-Gardner report: City of Newberg – Demand for Commercial and Industrial Land, 2004 
6. Employment Projections by Industry and Occupation, 2008-2018, Region 3 (Marion, Polk, and 

Yamhill Counties), Oregon Employment Department 
7. Portland Metro Labor Trends, December 2009, Oregon Employment Department 
8. Snapshot of Statewide Recruitment, Retention & Expansion Projects (July 2006), OECDD 
9. Coldwell Banker Commercial brochures (with recent transactions and current client needs), 

December 2007, October 2008, August 2009 
10. Public Comments and Correspondence   

 
 

Page 17



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2723 PAGE 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2723 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE REVISED ECONOMIC 
OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS FOR THE CITY OF NEWBERG AND 
ADOPTING ASSOCIATED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The original Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) was adopted by City Council in January 2006 

by Ordinance 2006-2635.  The EOA is considered part of the Comprehensive Plan and implements 
the goals and policies in Section H. The Economy.  Much of the information found in the EOA is 
statistical and dynamic in nature, including demographic and economic statistics, population and 
employment projections, and buildable land inventories.  Therefore, the EOA is not a static 
document and is meant to be updated with current information from time to time.  Having an 
updated EOA also ensures the City’s compliance with Statewide Planning Goal 9: Economic 
Development.   

 
2. The updates to the EOA include the following: population, demographic, economic and employment 

statistics; an economic trends analysis section that looks at national, state and regional trends, 
regional economic development industry clusters and target industries, Yamhill County agri-
business, and regional industrial land availability; a new section that covers an assessment of our 
community economic development potential; a more robust discussion of Newberg’s economic 
development strategy; and updated buildable land inventories and the addition of maps that illustrate 
the available industrial and commercial buildable land by area.  

 
3. The Comprehensive Plan document has a small section with population and land supply and need 

information.  Those numbers have changed with the updated EOA and need to also be updated in the 
Comprehensive Plan document.  The Comprehensive Plan amendments also add five new policies to 
Section H.    

 
4. The Newberg Planning Commission held hearings on December 10, 2009 and January 14, 2010 to 

consider the request.  The Planning Commission passed Resolution 2009-275, recommending that 
the City Council adopt the revised Economic Opportunities Analysis and the accompanying 
Comprehensive Plan amendments.   
 

5. After proper notice, the City Council held a hearing on February 1, 2010 to consider the request.  
The Council finds that the proposal meets the applicable criteria.   

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The revised Economic Opportunities Analysis, as shown in Exhibit A, is hereby adopted and by this 

reference incorporated. 
 

2. The Comprehensive Plan amendments, as shown in Exhibit B, are hereby adopted and by this 
reference incorporated.  

Page 18



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2723 PAGE 2 

 
3. The findings in support of this proposal, as shown in Exhibit C, are hereby adopted and by this 

reference incorporated. 
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: March 2, 2010. 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 1st day of  February, 2010, by the 
following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          

 
 
_________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 4th day of February, 2010. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 
 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
By and through the Newberg Planning Commission at their 01/14/2010 meeting. 

   

Page 19



 
 

 

Economic 
Opportunities 

Analysis 
 

Section 12 of Newberg Inventory of Natural and 
Cultural Resources 

 
 
 

Originally Adopted by Newberg City Council January 3, 2006  
by Ordinance No. 2006-2635 

Proposed Revisions Draft January 2010 

Exhibit A 

Page 20



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   ii 
 

City of Newberg 
Economic Opportunities Analysis 

Table of Contents 
Table of Tables ............................................................................................................... iii 
Table of Figures .............................................................................................................. iv 
I.  Introduction .............................................................................................................. 1 
II.  Economic Trends Analysis ...................................................................................... 3 

National, State and Regional Trends ........................................................................... 3 
Regional Economic Development Industry Clusters and Target Industries ................ 9 
Yamhill County Agri-Business .................................................................................. 10 
Regional Industrial Land Availability ....................................................................... 13 
Newberg Population Profile ....................................................................................... 14 

Historic and Future Growth Trends ....................................................................... 14 
Age characteristics ................................................................................................. 15 
Educational Attainment and Income ...................................................................... 15 
Commuting Patterns............................................................................................... 18 

Newberg Employment Characteristics ...................................................................... 19 
Historic Economy .................................................................................................. 19 
Current Economy ................................................................................................... 20 
Retail Conditions ................................................................................................... 24 

III.  Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential .......................... 25 
Regional Employment Projections ............................................................................ 25 
Newberg Employment Projections ............................................................................ 25 
Newberg’s Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages ......................................... 27 

Comparative Advantages ....................................................................................... 27 
Comparative Disadvantages ................................................................................... 29 

Special Opportunities ................................................................................................. 30 
Dental Equipment Cluster ...................................................................................... 30 
Alternative Energies............................................................................................... 31 
South Industrial Area ............................................................................................. 31 
Aviation Related Industry ...................................................................................... 32 
Nursery and other Agricultural Products ............................................................... 32 
Wine/Tourism Industry .......................................................................................... 33 
Retail ...................................................................................................................... 34 

IV.  Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy ..................................................... 35 
Capitalizing on Comparative Advantages & Addressing Comparative Disadvantages
.................................................................................................................................... 35 
Regional Focus........................................................................................................... 36 
Locally Targeted Economic Development Industry Clusters (Target Industries) ..... 38 
Comprehensive Plan Policies and Recommended Supportive Economic Development 
Actions ....................................................................................................................... 39 

V.  Industrial and Commercial Land Needs and Supply ............................................. 41 
Industrial Land Need.................................................................................................. 41 

Industrial Employment Projections........................................................................ 41 

Page 21



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   iii 
 

Industrial Site Requirements .................................................................................. 42 
Industrial Land and Sites ....................................................................................... 47 
2030 Industrial Site Need vs. Supply ..................................................................... 50 

Commercial Land Need ............................................................................................. 50 
Commercial Land Need ......................................................................................... 50 
Commercial Site Requirements ............................................................................. 54 
Commercial Land and Sites ................................................................................... 55 
2030 Commercial Site Need and Supply ............................................................... 56 

VI.  Conclusion .......................................................................................................... 58 
 

Table of Tables 
Table 12- 1: Yamhill County Value of Agricultural Production, 2007 ......................... 11 
Table 12- 2: Newberg Census Populations .................................................................... 14 
Table 12- 3: Population Forecasts - Newberg Urban Area ............................................ 15 
Table 12- 4: Comparative Age Characteristics .............................................................. 15 
Table 12- 5: Comparative Educational Attainment ....................................................... 16 
Table 12- 6: Comparative Household Income ............................................................... 17 
Table 12- 7: Comparative Median Household Income and Median Wages .................. 17 
Table 12- 8: Place of Work for Workers Living in Newberg ........................................ 19 
Table 12- 9: 2007 City of Newberg Annual Average Employment by Industry ........... 21 
Table 12- 10:  Estimated Newberg Employment by Industry 2007-2009 ..................... 22 
Table 12- 11: Newberg Top Employers 2009 ................................................................ 23 
Table 12- 12: Population and Retail Sales ..................................................................... 24 
Table 12- 13:  Combined Employment Projection for Regions 2, 3, and 15, 2008-2018
........................................................................................................................................ 25 
Table 12- 14:  Projected Newberg Employment through 2040 ..................................... 26 
Table 12- 15: Strategies to Capitalize on Comparative Advantages ............................. 35 
Table 12- 16: Strategies to Address Comparative Disadvantages ................................. 36 
Table 12- 17: Newberg Targeted Industries .................................................................. 39 
Table 12- 18:  Industrial Space Utilizing Employment Projection through 2040 ......... 41 
Table 12- 19: Site Size Ranges by Targeted Industrial Cluster and Sector ................... 43 
Table 12- 20: Targeted Industry Clusters and Sectors by Site Size Ranges and Existing 
Newberg Industrial Firm Examples ............................................................................... 44 
Table 12- 21: Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment (2010-2030) ...................... 45 
Table 12- 22: Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics ................................ 46 
Table 12- 23: Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2009) ............................... 48 
Table 12- 24: 2010-2030 Industrial Land Supply and Need.......................................... 50 
Table 12- 25:  Office Space Utilizing Employment through 2040 ................................ 51 
Table 12- 26:  Office Land Needs through 2040 ........................................................... 52 
Table 12- 27: Retail Land Needs through 2040 ............................................................. 53 
Table 12- 28: Commercial Land Needs, 2010-2040 ...................................................... 53 
Table 12- 29: Required Commercial Site Suitability Characteristics ............................ 55 
Table 12- 30: Buildable Commercial Land in Newberg UGB (2009) ........................... 55 
Table 12- 31: Commercial Land Supply and Need ....................................................... 56 

 

Page 22



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   iv 
 

Table of Figures 
Figure 12- 1: Comparative Median Household Income and Median Wage .................. 18 
Figure 12- 2: Employed Workers over 16 by Industry .................................................. 20 
Figure 12- 3: Buildable Industrial Land, Newberg UGB 2009 ..................................... 49 
Figure 12- 4: Commercial Areas and Buildable Commercial Land, Newberg UGB 2009
........................................................................................................................................ 57 

Page 23



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   1 
 

I. Introduction 
Newberg’s economy traditionally has been rural in nature.  As the city with the second largest 
population in Yamhill County, Newberg serves as the commerce center for the eastern portion of 
the county’s primarily agricultural economy. However, over the past couple of decades, 
Newberg has been making a slow transition to a city of more urban characteristics.  Newberg’s 
economic base has become more diversified, including some of its home-grown industries that 
have evolved into national and international leaders in their respective fields. 
 
This trend toward urbanization is likely to continue as the growth of the Portland metropolitan 
area increasingly influences the character of Newberg.  However, our city is one steeped in 
history, and is a community that possesses a strong sense of place.  The citizens of Newberg 
highly value these characteristics and wish to maintain its unique identity.  To do so, Newberg 
must strengthen its economic base.  Newberg must support its existing businesses while 
nurturing new enterprises.   
 
Newberg has identified four business clusters that are the foundation of its economy: 
manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism industry.  Ensuring the 
vitality of these business clusters is key to the economic health of our community   
 
Like most communities, Newberg’s economic development efforts focus on two principal 
strategies:  
 

1. Retention and Expansion of Existing Businesses.  Newberg has been extremely fortunate 
in having strong commercial and industrial sectors.  Newberg has an unwavering 
commitment to its existing businesses and industries. This commitment is underscored by 
the positive attitude of appointed and elected officials to meeting the needs of the 
business community – in terms of providing public facilities and services necessary for 
businesses to grow and prosper, and in listening to the business community in its long-
range planning processes and regulatory review. 
 

2. Recruitment of New Businesses.  A substantial portion of Newberg’s Economic 
Opportunities Analysis is devoted to attracting new traded-sector industrial and service-
based industries that will bring new wealth to the community.  To ensure that Newberg’s 
economic development efforts are successful, we have carefully assessed economic 
trends and our comparative economic advantages and disadvantages, as required by 
Statewide Planning Goal 9 (Economy of the State).   
 
The City has worked closely with the Portland-Vancouver Regional Partners Council for 
Economic Development, the Oregon Business Development Department (OBDD), and 
the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) in defining the types of 
industry clusters that can be reasonably attracted to our community.  Newberg also has 
determined the size and characteristics of sites required for Newberg to be competitive -- 
from a regional perspective -- in attracting our targeted businesses to the community.   

 
Critical to Newberg’s economic development efforts is the availability of developable land for 

Page 24



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   2 
 

businesses, as redevelopment opportunities are limited.  The City closely monitors the supply of 
these types of lands to ensure that opportunities for economic growth can be capitalized upon as 
they arise. 
 
As for Newberg’s targeted industrial clusters, most of these businesses require relatively flat 
sites, with a minimum of conflicting land uses (e.g., agricultural or residential areas), and close 
access to a major highway without travel through land with conflicting uses.  Most will benefit 
tremendously by the construction of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass and its connection to Highway 
219, which is planned in the Oregon Highway Plan. 
 
The City also has considered the site characteristics required to attract targeted industrial clusters 
when considering Newberg relative to other Northwest communities.  Newberg has identified 
four types of industrial development to focus on: 

 
• Large site light industrial (individual sites reserved for single users); 
• Airport light industrial (within the Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan); 
• Infill light industrial that takes advantage of remaining industrial sites within the existing 

UGB; and 
• Master planned light industrial parks that provide a range of medium to small sites in a 

master planned setting. 
  

The Oregon Business Development Department has made it very clear that providing large 
industrial sites for traded-sector employment opportunities in a master planned park setting with 
close access to Interstate 5 will put Newberg at a distinct advantage when compared with other 
Northwest communities.   
 
Newberg has relatively little industrial land left within its UGB – and most of this land does not 
meet the site requirements of companies looking to expand and/or relocate to Newberg.  After 
considering a range of alternatives both in and outside of the existing UGB, Newberg has 
concluded that the South Industrial Area best meets the site requirements of targeted industrial 
clusters.  This area: 
 

• Has large, flat “suitable” sites (i.e., meeting identified site requirements) with close 
access to Highway 219.  The area has access within about 10 minutes to I-5, with no 
intervening urban areas.  It has close access to the Highway 99W corridor, which will be 
further enhanced with construction of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass; 

• Has natural buffers from adjacent agricultural and rural residential land that enhances the 
attractiveness of the area for traded-sector industrial use; 

• Has immediate access to electrical, natural gas, sewer and water services; 
• Is a natural extension of Newberg’s existing light industrial and airport-related industrial 

areas. 
 

Newberg’s other primary existing business clusters (health care, higher education, wine/tourism) 
also must have opportunities for expansion if they are to remain vital.  These businesses are 
usually located on lands zoned for commercial and/or institutional development.    

   

Page 25



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   3 
 

Higher education institutions include George Fox University and Portland Community College.  
While the University currently owns sufficient land to satisfy its physical needs for the 
foreseeable future, much of that land is expected to be redeveloped to satisfy their programmatic 
needs.   Portland Community College plans to build a branch campus in Newberg as a result of a 
bond measure that was passed in 2008.  The College is nearing purchase of a site after an 
extended search yielded few opportunities for suitable sites. 

 
The foundation of the local healthcare industry is Providence Newberg Medical Center, which is 
located at the east end of Newberg directly on Highway 99W.  The hospital is located on land 
that will accommodate its expansion plans for the foreseeable future.  Land to accommodate 
development of ancillary private medical services that would benefit from close proximity to the 
hospital is available. 

 
The wine/tourism industry in Newberg is principally involved in the retail and service business 
sectors.  Growing of the wine grapes and processing them into wine is done outside of 
Newberg’s city limits.  Further development of this industry will likely be accommodated 
through two mechanisms.  First, Newberg’s historical downtown buildings/land will continue to 
be reused and redeveloped for businesses of this industry, including direct sales of wine, 
restaurants, antiques, arts and crafts stores, etc.  Second, the Springbrook Master Plan has a 
commercial node: one that is expected to include businesses that will cater to the needs of wine 
tourists.  Moreover, this commercial node will be located next to the newly constructed Allison 
Inn and Spa, a high-end resort that targets wine tourists.   Additional opportunities for 
manufacturing, processing, and storing wine could be made available if Newberg had adequate 
industrial land. 

 
Finally, a community’s economic development strategy must consist of more than ensuring the 
availability of an adequate land supply for future growth.  The community also must commit to 
comprehensive set of actions that support local businesses.  Included in this analysis is a list of 
recommended economic development actions that are intended to help Newberg assist its local 
economic partners. 
 

II. Economic Trends Analysis 
The EOA addresses local and regional trends (660-009-0015 (1)) on the following pages, 
concluding that Newberg’s future employment growth will be dependent on regional economic 
clusters. The trends analysis results in identification of future industrial uses – the “Targeted 
Industrial Clusters” for Newberg. 

National, State and Regional Trends 
Economic development in Newberg over the next 20 years will occur in the context of long-run 
national trends.1 The most important of these trends include: 
• The aging of the baby boom generation, accompanied by increases in life expectancy. The 

number of people age 65 and older will more than double by 2050, while the number of 

                                                 
1 National trends courtesy of ECONorthwest. 

Page 26



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   4 
 

people under age 65 with grow only 22 percent. The economic effects of this demographic 
change include a slowing of the growth of the labor force, an increase in the demand for 
healthcare services, and an increase in the percent of the federal budget dedicated to Social 
Security and Medicare.2  

Baby boomers are expecting to work longer than previous generations. An increasing 
proportion of people in their early to mid-50s expect to work full-time after age 65. In 2004, 
about 40% of these workers expect to work full-time after age 65, compared with about 30% 
in 1992.3 This trend can be seen in Oregon, where the share of workers 65 years and older 
grew from 2% of the workforce in 1992 to 3% of the workforce in 2002, an increase of 64%. 
Over the same ten-year period, workers 45 to 64 years increased by 70%.4  

• Tightening labor force. Growth in the labor force is projected to slow over the 2006-2016 
period due to the aging and retirement of the baby boomer generation and because women’s 
participation in the labor force has peaked. Job growth is expected to outpace population 
growth, with a 10% increase in employment (15.6 million jobs) compared to a 9% increase in 
civilian non-institutional population 16 years and older (22 million people).5 

• Need for replacement workers. The need for workers to replace retiring baby boomers will 
outpace job growth. According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, net replacement needs will 
be 33.4 million job openings over the 2006-2016 period, more than twice the growth in 
employment (15.6 million jobs). Management occupations and teachers will have the greatest 
need for replacement workers because these occupations have an older-than-average 
workforce.6 

• Increases in labor productivity. Productivity, as measured by output per hour, increased over 
the 1995 to 2005 period. The largest increases in productivity occurred over the 1995 to 2000 
period, led by industries that produced, sold, or intensively used information technology 
products. Productivity increased over the 2000 to 2005 period but at a slower rate than during 
the latter half of the 1990s. The sectors that experienced the largest productivity increases 
over the 2000 to 2005 period were: information, manufacturing, retail trade, and wholesale 
trade. Productivity in mining decreased over the five-year period. 7 

• Continued trend towards domestic outsourcing. Businesses continue to outsource work to 
less expensive markets. Outsourcing generally falls into two categories: (1) moving jobs 
from relatively expensive areas to less expensive areas within the U.S. and (2) moving jobs 

                                                 
2 The Board of Trustees, Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and Federal Disability Insurance Trust Funds, 
2008, The 2008 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and 
Federal Disability Insurance Trust Funds, April 10, 2008.  
3 “The Health and Retirement Study,” 2007, National Institute of Aging, National Institutes of Health, U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services. 
4 “Growing Numbers of Older Workers in Oregon,” Oregon Employment Department. 
5 Arlene Dohm and Lyn Shniper, “Occupational Employment Projections to 2016,” Monthly Labor Review, 
November 2007, pp. 86-125. 
6 Arlene Dohm and Lyn Shniper, “Occupational Employment Projections to 2016,” Monthly Labor Review, 
November 2007, pp. 86-125. 
7 Corey Holman, Bobbie Joyeaux, and Christopher Kask, “Labor Productivity trends since 2000, by sector and 
industry,” Bureau of Labor Statistics Monthly Labor Review, February 2008. 

Page 27



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   5 
 

outside of the U.S. to countries with lower labor costs. About three-quarters of layoffs in the 
U.S. between 1995 and 2004 were the result of domestic relocation, involving movement of 
work within the same company. The industries with the largest amounts of domestic 
outsourcing were: manufacturing, retail trade, and information.8 

• Continued growth in global trade and the globalization of business activity. With increased 
global trade, both exports and imports rise. Faced with increasing domestic and international 
competition, firms will seek to reduce costs through implementing quality- and productivity-
enhancing technologies, such as robotics or factory automation. In addition, production 
processes will continue to be outsourced offshore.9 

• Continued shift of employment from manufacturing and resource-intensive industries to the 
service-oriented sectors of the economy. Increased worker productivity and the international 
outsourcing of routine tasks lead to declines in employment in the major goods-producing 
industries. Projections from the Bureau of Labor Statistics indicate that U.S. employment 
growth will continue to be strongest in healthcare and social assistance, professional and 
business services, and other service industries. Construction employment will also grow but 
manufacturing employment will decline.10  

• The importance of high-quality natural resources. The relationship between natural resources 
and local economies has changed as the economy has shifted away from resource extraction. 
Increases in population and household income, combined with changes in tastes and 
preferences, have dramatically increased demands for outdoor recreation, scenic vistas, clean 
water, and other resource-related amenities. Such amenities contribute to a region’s quality of 
life and play an important role in attracting both households and firms.11 

• Continued westward and southward migration of the U.S. population. Although there are 
some exceptions at the state level, a 2006 U.S. Census report documents an ongoing pattern 
of interstate population movement from the Northeast and Midwest to the South and West.12  

• The growing importance of education as a determinant of wages and household income. 
Level of education largely determines employment, which largely determines income level.  
Completion of a four-year college degree paves the way for a professional or managerial 
occupation in the information-based economy, which on average yields higher incomes than 
service jobs or menial labor.  According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, the majority of the 

                                                 
8 Sharon P. Brown and Lewis B. Siegel, “Mass Layoff Data Indicate Outsourcing and Offshoring Work,” Monthly 
Labor Review, August 2005, pp. 3-10. 
9 Eric B. Figueroa and Rose A. Woods, 2007, “Industry Output and Employment Projections to 2016,” Monthly 
Labor Review, November 2007, pp. 53-85. 
10 Eric B. Figueroa and Rose A. Woods, 2007, “Industry Output and Employment Projections to 2016,” Monthly 
Labor Review, November 2007, pp. 53-85.; Arlene Dohm and Lyn Shniper, “Occupational Employment Projections 
to 2016,” Monthly Labor Review, November 2007, pp. 86-125.  
11 For a more thorough discussion of relevant research, see, for example, Power, T.M. and R.N. Barrett. 2001. Post-
Cowboy Economics: Pay and Prosperity in the New American West. Island Press, and Kim, K.-K., D.W. 
Marcouiller, and S.C. Deller. 2005. “Natural Amenities and Rural Development: Understanding Spatial and 
Distributional Attributes.” Growth and Change 36 (2): 273-297. 
12 Marc J. Perry, 2006, Domestic Net Migration in the United States: 2000 to 2004, Washington, DC, Current 
Population Reports, P25-1135, U.S. Census Bureau.  

Page 28



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   6 
 

fastest growing occupations over the next decade will require an academic degree: computer 
software application engineers, elementary school teachers, and accountants and auditors.  
Service jobs, (e.g., retail sales person, food preparation workers, and home care aides) will 
account for about half of all jobs by 2016.13  

• Continued increase in demand for energy. Despite short-term fluctuations, energy prices are 
forecast to remain at relatively high levels, as seen in the 2006 to 2008 period, likely 
increasing further over the 20-year planning period.  Although energy sources are expected to 
diversify and the energy efficiency of automobiles, appliances, and production processes are 
projected to increase, energy demand is expected to increase over the 2008 to 2030 period 
due to increases in population and economic activity. 14 

• Impact of rising energy prices on commuting patterns. Energy prices may continue to be high 
(relative to historic energy prices) or continue to rise over the planning period15  which may 
impact willingness to commute long distances. There is some indication that increases in fuel 
prices have resulted in decreased suburban housing demand which has resulted in decreased 
prices, especially in large urban areas (e.g., Los Angeles or Chicago) and suburbs far from 
the center city. If this pattern continues, the area in Oregon most likely to be most impacted 
is Portland, which has the largest area of urban and suburban development in the state.16 

• Possible effect of rising transportation and fuel prices on globalization. Increases in 
globalization are related to the cost of transportation: When transportation is less expensive, 
companies move production to areas with lower labor costs. Oregon has benefited from this 
trend, with domestic outsourcing of call centers and other back office functions. In other 
cases, businesses in Oregon (and the nation) have “off-shored” employment to other 
countries, most frequently manufacturing jobs.  

Likewise, increases in either transportation or labor costs may impact globalization. When 
the wage gap between two areas is larger than the additional costs of transporting goods, 
companies are likely to shift operations to an area with lower labor costs.  Conversely, when 
transportation costs increase, companies may have incentive to relocate to be closer to 
suppliers or consumers. 
This effect occurs incrementally over time and it is difficult to measure the impact in the 
short-term. If fuel prices and transportation costs decrease over the 20-year planning period, 
businesses may not make the decision to relocate (based on transportation costs) because the 
benefits of being closer to suppliers and markets may not exceed the costs of relocation. 

                                                 
13 In 2006, the national median income was about $32,000.  Workers with some college education earned slightly 
less than median, while workers with a bachelor’s degree earned $45,000.  Workers who only had a high school 
diploma earned $26,000 a year, while workers without a high school degree only earned $19,000 a year. Workers in 
Oregon experience the same patterns as the nation, however, notably, pay is generally lower in Oregon than the 
national average. (Source: “Growing Number of Older Workers in Oregon,” Oregon Employment Department and 
American Community Survey, U.S. Census, 2006.) 
14 Energy Information Administration, 2008, Annual Energy Outlook 2008 with Projections to 2030, U.S. 
Department of Energy, DOE/EIA-0383(2008), April. 
15 Energy Information Administration, 2008, Annual Energy Outlook 2008 with Projections to 2030, U.S. 
Department of Energy, DOE/EIA-0383(2008), April 
16 Cortright, Joe. “Driven to the Brink: How the Gas Price Spike Popped the Housing Bubble and devalued the 
Suburbs,” May 2008. 

Page 29



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   7 
 

• Growing opportunities for “green” businesses. Businesses are increasingly concerned with 
“green” business opportunities and practices. These business practices are concerned with 
“the design, commercialization, and use of processes and products that are feasible and 
economical while reducing the generation of pollution at the source and minimizing the risk 
to human health and the environment.”17  

Green business opportunities historically have been at the mercy of feasibility and 
economics; if a firm ignores feasibility and economics while trying to be green, the firm may 
not be able to afford to operate long enough to learn how to make green businesses feasible. 
However, growing popularity in “eco-friendly” products and green development has caused 
the green market to become cost-competitive with the conventional market. The three types 
of green business opportunities are products, processes, and education. 
o Producing green products. In general, green products consume fewer resources, and 

create less pollution, which in turn, is beneficial to human health. For example, hybrid 
vehicles (which use a mixture of power or fuel sources), use less gasoline to operate and 
add fewer pollutants to the air, while still providing the same transportation services as a 
traditional vehicle. Another example is bamboo fencing and lumber, which is considered 
a “rapidly renewable” material.18 Unlike traditional building materials, rapidly renewable 
materials, by virtue of a more consistent harvesting cycle, may sustain a community over 
a longer period of time than the steady and eventual depletion of finite resources or the 
degradation of a productive ecosystem.19 

o Providing education about green practices or products. Green education is often closely 
related to producing green products and is often done by consultants or nonprofit 
organizations. One example of a company involved in green education is the U.S. Green 
Building Council, a 501(c)(3) non-profit, which provides third-party verification that a 
building or community was designed and built using strategies aimed at improving 
environmental performance (LEED certification), provides numerous education resources 
and commissions studies geared to advance the green building movement.  Another 
example is a consulting firm that writes a green plan for a city or business.   

o Using green business practices. Green business practices are alternative methods of 
doing business that promote resource conservation, prevent or reduce pollution, or have 
other beneficial environmental effects. Examples of green business processes include: 
buying products locally to reduce shipping distance, recycling waste products (where 
possible), or maximizing the use of natural lighting to reduce use of electricity and light 
bulbs. 

• Potential impacts of global climate change. There is growing support for but not a consensus 
about whether global climate change is occurring as a result of greenhouse gas emissions. 
There is a lot of uncertainty surrounding global climate change, including the pace of climate 
change and the ecological and economic impacts of climate changes. In the Pacific 

                                                 
17 Urban Green Partnership at urbangreenpartnership.org 
18 Rapidly renewable materials are considered to be an agricultural product, both fiber and animal that takes 10 years 
or less to grow or raise, and to harvest in an ongoing and sustainable fashion.  Bamboo is the fastest-growing plant 
on Earth. 
19  New Construction and Major Renovation LEED Reference Guide, Version 2.2, U.S. Green Building Council 
(September 2006). 

Page 30



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   8 
 

Northwest, climate change may result in the following changes: (1) increase in average 
temperatures, (2) shift in the type of precipitation, with more winter precipitation falling as 
rain, (3) decrease in mountain snow-pack and earlier spring thaw and (4) increases in carbon 
dioxide in the air.20 Assuming that global climate change is occurring and will continue to 
occur over the next 20 years, a few broad, potential economic impacts for the nation and 
Pacific Northwest include:21 

o Potential impact on agriculture and forestry. Climate change may impact Oregon’s 
agriculture through changes in: growing season, temperature ranges, and water 
availability.22 Climate change may impact Oregon’s forestry through increase in 
wildfires, decrease in the rate of tree growth, change in mix of tree species, and increases 
in disease and pests that damage trees.23 

o Potential impact on tourism and recreation. Impacts on tourism and recreation may range 
from: (1) decreases in snow-based recreation if snow-pack in the Cascades decreases, (2) 
negative impacts to tourism along the Oregon Coast as a result of damage and beach 
erosion from rising sea levels,24 (3) negative impacts on availability of water summer 
river recreation (e.g., river rafting or sports fishing) as a result of lower summer river 
flows, and (4) negative impacts on the availability of water for domestic and business 
uses. 

o Potential changes in government policies. There is currently no substantial national 
public policy response to global climate change. States and regional associations of states 
are in the process of formulating policy responses to address climate change including: 
increasing renewable energy generation, selling agricultural carbon sequestration credits, 
and encouraging energy efficiency.25 Without clear indications of future government 
policy, it is impossible to assess the impact of government policies on the environment 
and subsequently, the economy.  

However, the impending issue of global climate change will also offer economic 
opportunities. The search for alternative energy sources may result in increased investment 
and employment in “green” energy sources, such as wind, solar, and bio-fuels. Firms in the 
Northwest are well positioned to lead efforts on climate change mitigation, which may result 
in export products, such as renewable technologies or green manufacturing. 26 

                                                 
20 “Economic Impacts of Climate Change on Forest Resources in Oregon: A Preliminary Analysis,” Climate 
Leadership Initiative, Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, May 2007. 
21 The issue of global climate change is complex and there is a substantial amount of uncertainty about climate 
change. This discussion is not intended to describe all potential impacts of climate change but to present a few ways 
that climate change may impact the economy of cities in Oregon and the Pacific Northwest. 
22 “The Economic Impacts of Climate Change in Oregon: A preliminary Assessment,” Climate Leadership Initiative, 
Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, October 2005. 
23 “Economic Impacts of Climate Change on Forest Resources in Oregon: A Preliminary Analysis,” Climate 
Leadership Initiative, Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, May 2007. 
24 “The Economic Impacts of Climate Change in Oregon: A preliminary Assessment,” Climate Leadership Initiative, 
Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, October 2005. 
25 Pew Center on Global Climate Change website: http://www.pewclimate.org/what_s_being_done/in_the_states/ 
26 “The Economic Impacts of Climate Change in Oregon: A preliminary Assessment,” Climate Leadership Initiative, 

Page 31



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   9 
 

 
Short-term national trends will also affect economic growth in the region, but these trends are 
difficult to predict. At times these trends may run counter to the long-term trends described 
above. A recent example is the downturn in economic activity in 2007 following declines in 
the housing market and the mortgage banking crisis. The result of the economic downturn 
has been a decrease in employment related to the housing market, such as construction and 
real estate. Employment in these industries will recover as the housing market recovers and 
will continue to play a significant role in the national, state, and local economy over the long 
run. This report takes a long-run perspective on economic conditions (as the Goal 9 
requirements intend) and does not attempt to predict the impacts of short-run national 
business cycles on employment or economic activity. 

 
The national trends discussed above inform many of the emerging and targeted industry clusters 
identified in this EOA. They also underscore the importance of concentrating traded-sector 
industries in Newberg to reduce energy consumption and reliance on commuting. It’s important 
to note that, despite national trends, Newberg has maintained a relatively high percentage of 
manufacturing jobs within the community and supports continuing to do so. 

Regional Economic Development Industry Clusters and Target Industries 
Industry clusters of a region are its principal economic drivers.  The Portland Regional Business 
Plan identifies specific, traded-sector industry clusters that should be supported to enhance the 
economic base of the region.  The Plan defines a cluster as follows:  
 

A cluster is a group of firms that, though their interactions with each other and with their 
customers and suppliers, develop innovative, cutting-edge products and processes that 
distinguish them in the market place and from firms in the same industry found 
elsewhere.  The competitiveness of an industry cluster is determined by the presence of 
highly specialized pools of skills, technology and infrastructure tailored to the needs of 
the cluster firms.  The presence of sophisticated and demanding customers in a cluster 
pressures firms to innovate on a continuing basis.... 
 
Those industry clusters that compete nationally and internationally are the core of this 
region’s economy and what distinguishes it from other regions.  The industry cluster that 
exist and that are emerging in the metropolitan area are built on the distinctive 
knowledge competencies of the region, and the strengths that currently enable the region 
to compete globally for economic activity and investment.  Additionally, industries that 
sell their products and services nationally and internationally have greater long-term 
growth potential since their opportunities for growth are not constrained by the size of 
this region’s market.  For these reasons, focusing on industry clusters is both a more 
efficient and effective use of this region’s efforts and resources. 
 

The Plan identifies the following industry clusters that the Portland region should focus on in 
their economic development efforts.  Because of Newberg’s proximity to the region, Newberg 
also has good likelihood of attracting these industries, and also should focus on attracting them.  
                                                                                                                                                             
Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, October 2005. 

Page 32



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   10 
 

These include:  
 
1. Established 

a. High Tech (Semiconductors/Silicon, Imaging & Display Technology) 
b. Metals, Machinery, Transportation Equipment 
c. Nursery Products 
d. Specialty Foods and Food Processing 
e. Lumber and Wood Products 

 
2. Emerging 

a. High Tech (Nano & Micro Technology, Cyber-Security, Health/Medical Information 
Technology) 

b. Creative Services (Advertising, Public Relations, Film and Video, Web/Internet 
Content and Design) 

c. Sports Apparel/Recreation-Related Products 
 
3. Targeted (clusters desired to create and establish) 

a. Biotech/Bioscience (Medical Devices, Bioinfomatics, Pharmaceuticals, Genomics, 
Anti-Virals) 

b. Sustainable Industries (Renewable Energy, Resource Efficiency Technologies, 
Sustainable Building Materials, Green Chemistry) 

c. Professional Services (Architecture, Engineering, Legal and Financial Services, etc.) 
d. Distribution & Logistics 
 

Newberg should provide opportunities for these industries to expand and locate within the 
Newberg UGB over the 20-year planning period.  In addition, doing business in Newberg (e.g. 
real estate costs) can often be significantly lower than much of the Portland metro area.  Our 
community offers a unique quality of life compared to others in the region, one that will attract 
those who believe their business will benefit from being located here. If Newberg provides 
suitable sites for these industry clusters, there is a reasonable likelihood that they will choose our 
community.  

Yamhill County AgriBusiness 
In June 2009, Barney & Worth, Inc. prepared the Yamhill County Agri-Business Economic and 
Community Development Plan: Summary Report for Yamhill County.  The plan assessed the 
existing state of agriculture and agri-tourism in the County, and assessed future opportunities for 
growth.  According to the report, Nursery and Greenhouse Crops comprise 45.2% of the value of 
agricultural production in the county.   
 

Page 33



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   11 
 

Table 12- 1: Yamhill County Value of Agricultural Production, 2007 
Yamhill County Value of Agricultural 
Production, 2007  Value ($000) Percent of Total 

All Crops 
  Nursery & Greenhouse Crops  $133,724 45.2% 
  Grass & Legume Seeds  $56,889 19.2% 
  Nuts & Tree Fruit  $24,684 8.3% 
  Small Woodlots and Christmas Trees  $13,204 4.5% 
  Grain & Hay  $9,600 3.2% 
  Vegetable & Truck Crops  $3,185 1.1% 
  Other Crops (Wine Grapes)  $13,387 4.5% 
 Sub total  $254,673 86.0% 
All Livestock 
  Dairy Products  $20,482 6.9% 
  Poultry  $9,780 3.3% 
  Cattle  $6,267 2.1% 
  Other Animal Products  $4,903 1.7% 
 Sub total  $41,432 14.0% 
All Crops and Livestock             $296,105 

Source: Oregon Agricultural Information Network. 
 
The report also recognizes great opportunities in the agri-tourism sectors. Key findings from the 
report include: 

 
For 150 years and longer, Yamhill County has benefitted from its strong 
agricultural base. Even now, the agriculture sector produces $300 million in 
annual sales (not including food processing and wine). The great strength of 
Yamhill County agriculture is its diversity. Local agricultural production remains 
strong in many profitable sub-sectors, with fast growing horticulture accounting 
for nearly half of total sales. The future for Yamhill County agriculture looks 
bright. 
 
Alongside horticulture and traditional crops, the Yamhill County wine industry 
has emerged over the past 30 years to become headline news nationally and 
internationally. Yamhill’s name – like Napa, Sonoma, Bordeaux and Burgundy – 
has become synonymous with its wine. With the wine sector continuing to flourish, 
new wineries opening each year, more acres planted with grapes, this trend will 
also be sustained in Yamhill County.  
 
Coupled with the area’s scenic beauty (thanks in part to agriculture!), the 
wineries assure that Yamhill County will continue to host many visitors. Estimates 
already place that number at 1.5 million per year who visit local wineries. Half of 
those visitors come from the Portland area, and the other half are from the 
western states and all over the U.S. and world. 
 
. . . 

Page 34



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   12 
 

 
Yamhill County – with its solid agricultural base, wine destination status, 
proximity to the metro area, and stunning beauty – also appears to be on the 
verge of something great. With the opening of the Allison resort in Newberg, 
along with other new attractions, there’s an opportunity just now to pick 
priorities and adopt strategies that move the community forward27. 

 
The plan identifies a number of key ingredients to secure the future for Yamhill County’s 
agriculture and tourism sectors:  
 

Shared vision for Yamhill County’s future. Yamhill County communities and 
citizens need to reach agreement on values and priorities for the future. Tourism 
is here to stay – now is the critical time to plan, safeguarding quality of life for 
local residents and maximizing the potential for community benefits.  
 
More lodging facilities. To capture the economic benefits of the estimated 1.5 
million annual visitors to wine country, Yamhill County must have more high 
amenity overnight accommodations.  
 
More attractions. Wineries and hotels alone aren’t enough to hold every visitor’s 
attention and assure repeat visits. Wine tourism is seasonal and cyclical, and 
other destinations and attractions will be needed to complement Yamhill County 
wine country and fill out the tourism calendar: arts and culture, entertainment, 
historic sites, parks and trails, golf, outdoor adventures, shopping.  
 
Rezoning to accommodate prototype development projects. Analysis has revealed 
the types of representative projects needed to support agriculture and tourism 
lack adequate sites. Rezoning enables communities to place these projects where 
they “fit” and provide benefits to the community.  
 
Site assembly. Preparing land for development, from initial site selection through 
planning and marketing, is site assembly. To assure job growth and allow for new 
investment, communities will need to be proactive in identifying an adequate 
supply of properly sized, suitably zoned development sites and be active 
participants in the development process. 
  
County-wide infrastructure strategy. The most pressing problem for every 
community is infrastructure. Regional cooperation in Yamhill County to jointly 
plan for the future and secure adequate drinking water supplies can be a model 
for cost saving inter-agency arrangements for other services. Moving ahead with 
a reprisal solution for drinking water is critical for many Yamhill County 
communities.  
 

                                                 
27 Yamhill County Agri-Business Economic and Community Development Plan: Summary Report Prepared for: 
Yamhill County, Oregon, Barney & Worth, Inc., in association with Globalwise, Inc., E.D. Hovee & Company, 
LLC, and Spencer & Kupper, page 41. 

Page 35



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   13 
 

Coordinate opportunity sites / services. The shortage of suitable development sites 
and scarcity of funds require strategic thinking. Which key sites and development 
opportunities must have adequate services available?28 
 

Regional Industrial Land Availability 
In 2001, OTAK prepared the Regional Industrial Land Study for the Portland – Vancouver 
Metropolitan Area.  This report inventoried the available industrial land in the area.  That report 
concluded that the region would have a need for 6,900 acres of buildable industrial land for the 
period 2000-2025 29.  The study found that, while the region had enough land, most of it suffered 
from development constraints and lack of services.  The report found that the region had only 
2,387 acres of ready-to-develop unconstrained land, only about 1/3 of the projected need. 
 
Recognizing the severe shortage of industrial land in the region and the state, in 2003 Governor 
Kulongoski ordered the Community Solutions Team to help establish certified shovel ready 
industrial sites, and appointed the Industrial Lands Taskforce.  In its report,  
 

The Taskforce concluded that there is a significant lack of certain types of project ready 
industrial land1 in certain parts of the state. This conclusion is supported by the findings 
of the Portland-area Regional Industrial Lands Study (RILS), the HB3557 committee 
report, testimony received at Taskforce hearings, and the direct experience of Taskforce 
members. The Taskforce also concluded that the many jurisdictions lack a 20-year supply 
of industrial land.30   

 
In addition: 
 

Although the committee selected the following five highly marketable sites, the industrial 
land supply in the METRO region remains critically low. Identifying these five sites is 
only a first step. More industrial sites, especially those that could accommodate a large 
employer, are needed.31  [Emphasis added]   

 
The report also discussed the lack of large industrial sites in appropriate locations: 
   

Unavailable Land in Strategically Significant Employment Areas 
Given the Portland metropolitan area’s economic significance to the state, the committee 
expressed concern that the selection pool of 55 sites forwarded to them from OECDD’s 
Regional Development Officers (RDOs) included very few large industrial sites along I–
5, between the Washington border and Salem. This occurred because there is a lack of 
land available for industrial development in this area. Land located at existing freeway 
interchanges, such as the Stafford District at I–205 and Stafford Road, Langdon Farms 

                                                 
28 Barney & Worth, Inc., page 43. 
29 Phase 3: Regional Industrial Land Study for the Portland – Vancouver Metropolitan Area  prepared by 
Otak, Inc., in association with ECONorthwest and Parametrix, October 31, 2001 
30 Positioning Oregon for Prosperity,  Report to Governor Kulongoski, prepared by the Industrial Lands Taskforce, 
September 2003  
31 Industrial Lands Advisory Committee Report, December 15, 2003 

Page 36



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   14 
 

at the I–5 and Charbonneau exit, and the I–5 Donald/Aurora exit are logical market 
driven locations for large scale industrial and employment intensive development. 32 

 
While some efforts in the region have been made since that time to address this significant lack 
of industrial land in the region, the shortfall remains high and the needs have grown. 
 

Newberg Population Profile   

Historic and Future Growth Trends 
Newberg has grown steadily through the last few decades. Table 12-1 shows the population 
growth over time since 1960.   
 
Table 12- 2: Newberg Census Populations 
Year Population 
1960 4,204 
1970 6,507 
1980 10,394 
1990 13,086 
2000 18,064 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 
 
Newberg’s population as of July 1, 2009 was estimated to be 23,15033.  As of July 1, 2009, the 
Urban Growth Boundary has an estimated population of 23,58234. 
 
Between 1990 and 2000, Newberg’s growth rate was 38%.  In comparison, Newberg’s growth 
rate was greater than the Portland Metropolitan area’s at 27%, the state of Oregon at 20%, and 
Yamhill County’s at 30%35.  It should be noted that Yamhill County, where Newberg is located, 
is part of the Portland Metropolitan Statistical Area (PMSA).  While Oregon’s population in 
general is not expected to grow in the foreseeable future as fast as in the 1990s, the Portland 
metropolitan area should grow faster than the state as a whole.   
 
In 2004, the Newberg City Council appointed an ad hoc advisory committee to look at the 
community’s future land needs.  To accomplish this task, the Ad Hoc Committee for Newberg’s 
Future needed to forecast the community’s future population.  A consultant working with the 
Committee developed three growth forecast scenarios for the Committee to consider: low, 
medium, and high.  The Committee selected the medium growth scenario as the most likely to 
occur.  These population projections have been adopted into the Comprehensive Plan36, 
coordinated with Yamhill County as required by ORS 195.036, and acknowledged by the State.  
The following table shows the forecasted future growth for Newberg: 
 
                                                 
32 Industrial Lands Advisory Committee Report, December 15, 2003 
33 Population Research Center, Portland State University 
34 Newberg Planning Division 
35 U.S. Census Bureau 
36 Adopted by Ordinance 2005-2626, November 21, 2005 

Page 37



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   15 
 

Table 12- 3: Population Forecasts - Newberg Urban Area37 
Year 2000 2005 2010 2025 2030 2040 
Forecasted 
Population 18,438 21,132 24,497 38,352 42,870 54,097 

Source: Newberg Comprehensive Plan 
 
Through 2008, these projections have been remarkably accurate.  The 2008 PSU estimates are 
within 11 persons of the population estimates made in the comprehensive plan.  The 2009 
estimates are still within about 200 people of the projections, thus the adopted population 
forecasts can still be considered reliable.   

Age characteristics 
Table 12- 4 below compares Newberg’s population by age categories with the populations of 
Yamhill County, the Portland Metropolitan Statistical Area (PMSA), and the state of Oregon.  
The table also compares the median age for each geographical area.   
 
Table 12- 4: Comparative Age Characteristics 
Age Categories Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon
Under 5 years 7.6% 6.4% 6.7% 6.3%
5 to 9 years 3.5% 5.4% 6.9% 6.4%
10 to 14 years 8.9% 8.0% 6.7% 6.4%
15 to 19 years 9.7% 7.9% 6.5% 6.7%
20 to 24 years 12.1% 8.4% 6.0% 6.6%
25 to 34 years 13.0% 13.9% 14.9% 13.9%
35 to 44 years 15.4% 13.4% 15.3% 13.9%
45 to 54 years 11.9% 14.4% 15.4% 15.1%
55 to 59 years 5.7% 6.4% 6.7% 6.9%
60 to 64 years 2.4% 3.9% 4.5% 4.9%
65 to 74 years 4.4% 5.6% 5.3% 6.5%
75 to 84 years 3.5% 4.2% 3.5% 4.5%
85 years and over 2.0% 1.9% 1.6% 1.9%

Median age (years) 30.6 34.9 36.3 37.6
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2007 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates  
 
The data shows that Newberg’s population is younger that the comparative populations, 
especially in the 20 to 24 year old category.  This is likely due to the presence of students 
attending George Fox University.  In general, our population over 45 years of age is somewhat 
lower than the comparative populations. 

Educational Attainment and Income 
Table 12- 5 below compares the educational attainment of the Newberg population over 25 years 
of age compared with Yamhill County, the PMSA, and the state of Oregon.  Newberg has 
approximately the same amount of residents with high school diplomas as the comparative areas; 
however, there are fewer residents with a Bachelor’s degree or higher when compared to the 
                                                 
37 Population forecasts are for the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 

Page 38



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   16 
 

PMSA and the state.  This may indicate that, although Newberg has a strong workforce in many 
areas, it does not have as many of the highly skilled professional jobs available that would 
require a Bachelor’s degree. 
 
Table 12- 5: Comparative Educational Attainment 

Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon
Less than 9th grade 3.9% 7.0% 4.1% 4.6%
9th to 12th grade,            
no diploma 7.4% 8.2% 6.7% 7.9%
High school graduate 
(includes equivalency) 27.9% 31.8% 24.4% 26.9%

Some college, no degree 29.2% 24.3% 25.2% 25.3%
Associate's degree 7.2% 6.6% 7.7% 7.7%
Bachelor's degree 15.2% 13.8% 20.6% 17.6%
Graduate or                     
Professional degree 9.1% 8.2% 11.3% 10.0%

Percent High School 
Graduate or Higher 89% 85% 89% 88%
Percent Bachelor's 
Degree or Higher 24% 22% 32% 28%
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2007 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates
 
 
Table 12- 6 compares the household income levels of the Newberg population over 25 years of 
age compared with the state of Oregon, Yamhill County and the PMSA.  Newberg has a high 
percentage of households in both the $35,000 to $49,999 and the $50,000 to $74,999 income 
ranges.  As seen below in Figure 12-2, Newberg has high employment in the areas of 
construction, retail, manufacturing, and educational services; industries whose pay would 
typically fall into these ranges.   

Page 39



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   17 
 

Table 12- 6: Comparative Household Income 

Household 
Income* Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Less than 
$10,000 483 7.1% 2,378 7.2% 52,888 6.5% 108,551 7.5%
$10,000 to 
$14,999 552 8.1% 2,142 6.5% 39,721 4.9% 87,317 6.0%
$15,000 to 
$24,999 513 7.5% 3,189 9.7% 79,348 9.7% 168,261 11.6%
$25,000 to 
$34,999 819 12.0% 3,748 11.4% 85,031 10.4% 169,167 11.7%
$35,000 to 
$49,999 1,469 21.5% 5,462 16.6% 119,523 14.6% 225,677 15.6%
$50,000 to 
$74,999 1,430 20.9% 6,668 20.3% 166,437 20.3% 287,225 19.8%
$75,000 to 
$99,999 1,087 15.9% 4,480 13.6% 108,932 13.3% 174,531 12.1%
$100,000 to 
$149,999 363 5.3% 3,257 9.9% 103,824 12.7% 145,655 10.1%
$150,000 to 
$199,999 101 1.5% 772 2.4% 32,632 4.0% 42,738 3.0%
$200,000 or 
more 20 0.3% 737 2.2% 29,570 3.6% 38,287 2.6%

Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon

* In 2007 Inflation Adjusted Dollars
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2007 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates  
 
Table 12- 7 compares the median household income and median wages for Newberg, Yamhill 
County, the PMSA, and the state of Oregon.  Figure 12- 1graphically shows that Newberg is 
behind Yamhill County and the PMSA in median household income and median wage.   
 
Table 12- 7: Comparative Median Household Income and Median Wages 

Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon
Median Household 

Income $46,066 $48,485 $53,935 $47,385
Median Wage $19,821 $23,848 $30,094 $26,002

Male, Full-Time, Year-
Round $44,205 $41,148 $47,803 $42,676

Female, Full-Time, 
Year-Round $29,063 $31,680 $36,563 $33,017

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2007 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates  

Page 40



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   18 
 

Figure 12- 1: Comparative Median Household Income and Median Wage 

 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2007 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates 
 
Comparing the previous education and income tables reveals a very interesting profile of the 
Newberg community.  The Newberg population has a smaller percentage of 4-year college and 
graduate degrees than the state or the PMSA; however, Newberg is also home to George Fox 
University.  This indicates that George Fox University graduates are not remaining in Newberg, 
whether by choice or by other factors such as limited available job opportunities.  Newberg also 
has a lower median household income and median wage than Yamhill County, the PMSA and 
the state.  This may be related to the fact that Newberg has fewer citizens with higher education.  
As shown in Figure 12-2 on page 12-20, Newberg has a high percentage of workers in 
educational services and manufacturing jobs, both historically lower-paying professions (with 
the exception of highly skilled manufacturing jobs).   

Commuting Patterns 
The 2006-2008 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates indicate that approximately 56% 
of workers over age 16 that live in Newberg travel outside of Newberg for work.  Of those 
people that commute outside of Newberg for work, approximately 55% of workers stay in 
Yamhill County and approximately 45% of workers commute to other counties.  The data 
indicates that the mean travel time for a worker leaving Newberg for work is 21 minutes.  Given 
Newberg’s relatively close proximity to the Portland metropolitan area, it is reasonable to 
assume that many of the workers leaving Newberg for work are going to one of the nearby 
Portland suburbs (which are located in Washington, Multnomah and Clackamas Counties).  The 
following table shows this commuting pattern. 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   19 
 

Table 12- 8: Place of Work for Workers Living in Newberg 

 
Source: 2006-2008 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates 
 
The Oregon Employment Department has statistics regarding commuting patterns within 
Yamhill County.  Of all the workers that live in Yamhill County, approximately 12% work in 
Newberg.  Approximately 31% of all workers that live in Yamhill County commute to the 
nearby Portland metropolitan area counties (Washington, Multnomah and Clackamas Counties); 
a statistic that is similar to the number of Newberg workers commuting out to these counties.  
The Newberg number is likely higher due to its proximity to these neighboring counties relative 
to the rest of the Yamhill County population.   
 
Reasons for these commuting patterns are likely to be manifold, and may include: 

• Lower housing costs in Newberg compared to the Portland area. 
• More employment opportunities in the Portland area. 
• Desire to live in a community like Newberg with a high quality of life and sense of 

community, rather than a “same as everywhere else” type of Portland area suburb.  
 
Newberg would like to provide more local employment opportunities, thus reducing travel time 
and distance for existing and future residents.  In short, Newberg would like to reverse trends 
towards “bedroom community” status by providing a greater variety of local employment 
opportunities.  To achieve this objective, Newberg must provide industrial sites with 
characteristics that capitalize on Newberg’s comparative economic advantages. 
 

Newberg Employment Characteristics 

Historic Economy 
Settlement of our region by people of European ancestry began a mostly agricultural economy 
for the area.  As the region developed, Newberg slowly became the commercial center for the 
eastern end of Yamhill County and it remains so to this day.  Evidence of this development is 

Page 42



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   20 
 

expressed through Newberg’s Central Business District, which consists of many early twentieth 
century buildings constructed in a high-density pattern.   
 
The advent of the car as a primary mode of transportation for people brought about commercial 
development pattern of a lower density.  Most of this type of development is situated along 
Highway 99W in the eastern section of the city. 

Current Economy 
Newberg has a diverse economic base.  This diversity, along with the types of businesses, has 
provided Newberg with a reasonably stable economy.  Figure 12-2 shows how Newberg 
compares with Yamhill County, the PMSA and the state for percentage of workers by industry.  
As the chart shows, Newberg has a high percentage of workers in construction, manufacturing, 
retail trade, and educational services.   
 
Figure 12- 2: Employed Workers over 16 by Industry 

 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2007 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   21 
 

 
Table 12-9 shows the actual employment by industry for Newberg in 2007, as reported by the 
Oregon Employment Department.   
 
Table 12- 9: 2007 City of Newberg Annual Average Employment by Industry 

Industry

Average 
Annual 

Employment Total Payroll

Average 
Annual 
Wage

Agriculture, Forestry, 
Fishing and Hunting 142 $4,351,630 $30,645

Construction 773 $31,068,987 $40,193
Manufacturing 2,608 $135,015,712 $51,770

Wholesale Trade 103 $4,869,681 $47,278
Retail Trade 933 $25,761,682 $27,612

Transportation & 
Warehousing 167 $4,809,037 $28,797

Information 57 $2,148,418 $37,692
Finance & Insurance 169 $7,637,067 $45,190
Real Estate, Rental & 

Leasing 110 $2,693,296 $24,485

Professional, Scientific & 
Technical Services 199 $8,025,799 $40,331

Administrative Support, 
Waste Management, 

Remediation
207 $4,862,935 $23,492

Education Services 1,349 $45,973,472 $34,080
Health Care & Social 

Assistance 1,304 $45,422,729 $34,833

Arts, Entertainment & 
Recreation 148 $2,012,923 $13,601

Accommodation & Food 
Services 796 $10,227,414 $12,849

Other Services 397 $7,773,184 $19,580  
Source: Oregon Employment Department 
 
 
While employment data is readily available at the County level, specific employment data at the 
city level is less available, and has some limitations. The most recent data available for Newberg 
at the end of 2009 was 2007 data.  Certain data is confidential and cannot be reported at the city 
level, including utility, management, and local government numbers.   However, more recent 
data for Newberg can be derived by using certain data assumptions to estimate employment by 

Page 44



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   22 
 

industry through 200938.  Table 12- 10 below shows the estimated Newberg employment by 
industry for 2007-2009. 

 

Table 12- 10:  Estimated Newberg Employment by Industry 2007-2009 
Industry 2007 2008 2009 
Construction 773 642 390 
Manufacturing 2,608 2,557 2,201 
Wholesale Trade 103 97 73 
Retail Trade 933 930 841 
Transportation, Warehousing & 
Utilities 178 181 181 
Information 57 54 45 
Financial Activities 279 270 241 
Professional & Business Services 430 407 299 
Education & Health Services 2,653 2,766 3,285 
Leisure & Hospitality 944 1,002 1,018 
Other Services 397 413 409 
Government 170 174 183 
Total 9,169 9,494 9,165 

 Source:  Oregon Employment Department, 2009, Newberg Planning Division 

                                                 
38 The 2007-2009 employment data was derived using the following assumptions: 

• Utility employment was derived as being 6.6% of the total “Transportation, Warehousing, & Utility” 
employment in Newberg.  This is equal to the ratio in Region 15, the only region of the three surrounding 
regions (Region 2, Region 3, and Region 15) where data was available. 

• Government employment was derived as the total FTE for the City of Newberg for that year, plus 5% for 
some County, State or other government jobs in Newberg.  

• Management employment was derived as being 11.9% of the total Professional and Business Service 
employment in Newberg.  This is equal to the ratio in Yamhill County, 2008. 

• 2008 and 2009 employment estimates were derived by applying the same rate of change to each industry as 
in Yamhill County for those years. 

Page 45



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   23 
 

  
The following is a list of the top employers located within the urban growth boundary of 
Newberg in 2009.  
 
Table 12- 11: Newberg Top Employers 2009 

Employer Average 
Employment Product Description Industry 

Cluster 
A-dec 978 Dental equipment Manufacturing 

George Fox University 560 Higher Education Higher 
Education 

Newberg Public 
Schools 560 K-12 Education Education 

SP Newsprint Company 324 Newsprint Manufacturing 
Providence Newberg 

Medical Center 255 Health Care Health Care 

Suntron39 220 
Electronics (circuit 

boards, modular parts, 
cable assembly) 

Manufacturing 

Fred Meyer, Inc. 210 Groceries, retail Retail 
City of Newberg 181 Government Government 

The Allison Inn and Spa 165 Hotel and spa Wine/Tourism 
Friendsview Retirement 

Center 149 Continuing care 
retirement community Health Care 

PPM Technologies 109 Food processing 
machinery Manufacturing 

Hazelden Springbrook 100 Alcohol and drug 
treatment Health Care 

Climax Portable 
Machine Tools 95 Portable machine tools Manufacturing 

Safeway 80 Groceries, pharmacy Retail 
Harris Thermal Transfer 

Products 73 Heat exchanger 
manufacturing Manufacturing 

Chehalem Youth & 
Family Services 73 Child and family services Health Care 

Dental Components, 
Inc. 60 Dental equipment Manufacturing 

Ushio Oregon, Inc. 53 High intensity lamps Manufacturing 

A.R.E. Manufacturing 51 Dental equipment and 
boat parts Manufacturing 

Source: Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce; Reuters  
 
Newberg has a higher than average manufacturing employment base.  The list of companies in 
the table above shows that many of the community’s businesses are industrial in nature.  
Education (e.g. George Fox University) and health care (e.g. Providence Newberg Hospital) are 
also big components of Newberg’s economic structure.  With the addition of the Allison Inn & 
Spa, the wine industry is beginning to make a larger impact, along with the associated tourism 

                                                 
39 Suntron announced plans to close Newberg operations in 2010. 

Page 46



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   24 
 

industry: bed and breakfasts, restaurants, art shops, wine-tasting rooms. 
 

Retail Conditions 
Newberg’s close proximity to the Portland metro area and relatively low retail opportunities 
results in retail dollar “leakage” from the community.  This means that fewer retail dollars stay in 
the community and continue to circulate within the local population.  Support for this assertion 
of retail dollar leakage can be demonstrated through some simple calculations.  By taking the 
total annual retail sales numbers of area, divided by the area’s population, one gets a total annual 
retail spending per capita in that community.  Using this formula, the following is a list of the 
annual retail sales per capita in population centers within Oregon.  
 
Table 12- 12: Population and Retail Sales 

Population Center Annual retail sales 
per capita 

Newberg $9,462 
McMinnville $11,798 
Ashland $7,495 
Medford $21,470 
Washington County $12,386 
Salem $13,807 
Bend $22,933 
Pendleton $12,515 
Eugene/Springfield $14,132 
Oregon $10,542 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2000 
 
Newberg’s local retail spending is the below the state average.  McMinnville’s retail spending is 
higher than Newberg, but also has more shopping opportunities.  Ashland and Medford’s 
relationship is much like Newberg with the Portland metro area, with many Ashland retail 
dollars likely to be going to Medford businesses.  Many other commercial centers around 
Oregon, like Salem, Bend, Pendleton and Eugene/Springfield also appear to attract more retail 
dollars per capita that the state average. 
 
It is acknowledged that this calculation is simplistic.  Many other variables would affect a more 
thorough analysis, such as total income, disposable income, geographic boundaries and 
population dispersion.  However, it is probable that the biggest factor in retail dollar leakage 
remains the fact that small towns with limited shopping opportunities will always lose retail 
dollars to nearby urban centers.   
 
Outside of Newberg, agriculture is still an important industry to the area’s economy.  The 
wine/tourism industry has an especially large impact upon Newberg.  Many new businesses, 
such as restaurants, bed & breakfasts, art galleries, and gift shops, have been established with 
recognition that tourists would be a principal customer.  The Yamhill Valley (consisting of 
portions of Yamhill and Polk County) is the heart of Oregon’s $576 million wine industry, with 

Page 47



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   25 
 

about 200 vineyards and 85 of Oregon’s 200 wineries40. The wine industry in Yamhill County 
has grown exponentially over the last few decades.  

III. Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential 

Regional Employment Projections 
In November 2009, the Oregon Employment Department issued employment projections for 
2008-2018.  These projections considered the recession in the late 2000’s, and projected a slow 
recovery over the coming decade.  Table 12- 13 shows the combined employment projections for 
Region 2 (Multnomah and Washington Counties), Region 3 (Marion, Yamhill, and Polk 
Counties), and Region 15 (Clackamas County).  The combined projection was used because 
Newberg is almost centrally located within this six county region. 
   
Table 12- 13:  Combined Employment Projection for Regions 2, 3, and 15, 2008-2018 
(Multnomah, Washington, Marion, Polk, Yamhill, & Clackamas Counties) 

Industry 2008 2018 
% 

Change 
Construction 57,410 58,600 2.07% 
Manufacturing 121,270 119,200 -1.71% 
Wholesale Trade 55,840 61,100 9.42% 
Retail Trade 108,630 117,700 8.35% 
Transportation, Warehousing & 
Utilities 36,480 38,300 4.99% 
Information 23,500 24,200 2.98% 
Financial Activities 68,970 72,300 4.83% 
Professional & Business Services 81,720 88,700 8.54% 
Education & Health Services 94,490 107,500 13.77% 
Leisure & Hospitality 79,610 86,200 8.28% 
Other Services 61,890 65,000 5.03% 
Government 114,640 120,300 4.94% 
Total 904,450 959,100 6.04% 

Source:  Oregon Employment Department. 
 

Newberg Employment Projections 
Newberg employment projections for 2010-2040 were made consistent with the “safe harbor” 
methodology described in OAR 660-024-0040(9)41.  This methodology allows a local 
                                                 
40 News-Register 
41 OAR 660-024-0040 (9) states:  The following safe harbors may be applied by a local government to determine its 
employment needs for purposes of a UGB amendment under this rule, Goal 9, OAR chapter 660, division 9, Goal 14 
and, if applicable, ORS 197.296. 
(a) A local government may estimate that the current number of jobs in the urban area will grow during the 20-year 
planning period at a rate equal to either:  
(A) The county or regional job growth rate provided in the most recent forecast published by the Oregon 
Employment Department; or  

Page 48



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   26 
 

government to estimate that the current number of jobs in the urban area will grow either at a rate 
equal to the Oregon Employment Department regional job forecast rates, or at a rate equal to the 
population growth rate for the urban area.  Future employment projections for the Newberg 
urban area were made using a combination of these allowed methodologies.   
 
Retail trade and leisure & hospitality employment was projected to grow according to Newberg 
population growth.  This was done because the need for retail services typically grows along 
with population, and also because of Newberg’s strong potential for leisure & hospitality 
employment growth in its targeted industry cluster of wine/tourism.   
 
For other industries, employment was projected to grow for the 2008-2018 period at the same 
rate as the projected six-county change shown in Table 12- 13 above.   For employment 
projections beyond 2018, employment was projected to grow at the same rate as the projected 
population growth.  This rate is in accordance with the safe harbor provision stated above, and 
allows Newberg to plan adequately for the 20-year planning horizon to 2030. This is essential for 
Newberg to maintain its desired jobs-housing balance into the future and to avoid becoming 
solely a bedroom community.    
 
Table 12- 14:  Projected Newberg Employment through 2040 

Industry 2008 2009 2018 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 
Construction 642 390 656 700 798 892 1,005 1,125 
Manufacturing 2,557 2,201 2,514 2,685 3,057 3,417 3,851 4,312 
Wholesale Trade 97 73 106 113 129 144 162 181 
Retail Trade 930 841 1,124 1,201 1,367 1,529 1,723 1,929 
Transportation, 
Warehousing & 
Utilities 

181 181 191 204 232 259 292 327 

Information 54 45 56 60 68 76 86 96 
Financial Activities 270 241 283 303 345 385 434 486 
Professional & 
Business Services 437 321 474 507 577 645 727 814 

Education & Health 
Services 2,766 3,285 3,147 3,361 3,827 4,278 4,821 5,398 

Leisure & Hospitality 1,002 1,018 1,361 1,454 1,655 1,850 2,085 2,335 
Other Services 413 409 434 463 528 590 665 744 
Government 183 175 192 205 233 261 294 329 
Total 9,533 9,180 10,536 11,255 12,815 14,325 16,145 18,077
Cumulative from 
2009  - 1,357 2,075 3,636 5,145 6,965 8,897 

                                                                                                                                                             
(B) The population growth rate for the urban area in the adopted 20-year coordinated population forecast specified 
in OAR 660-024-0030.  
Note that the employment projections made are for a longer period than the 20-year period.  Thus, employment 
projections beyond this 20-year period are not currently a “safe harbor” suitable for UGB amendments, though they 
could become a “safe harbor” for future UGB amendments. 

Page 49



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   27 
 

Newberg’s Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages 
This section, Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential (660-009-0015-4), 
determines the types and amounts of industrial and other employment uses likely to occur in the 
planning area, relating to the results of the Trends Analysis and Inventory, and considers the 
planning area’s economic advantages and disadvantages.  

Comparative Advantages 
1. Small town quality of life 

a. Relatively affordable housing 
b. Attractive rural setting in heart of wine country 
c. Attractive historic downtown 
d. Full service city separate from Portland metropolitan area with deep sense of 

community and history.  
e. High level of  community engagement 

 
2. Access to quality education and skills training  

a. George Fox University is very highly regarded.  George Fox is listed among the 
top 100 colleges in the United States in Forbes’ 2009-10 ranking of "America’s 
best colleges."  U.S. News and World Report named the University on its list of 
"Best National Universities," and was the only Christian college in the Pacific 
Northwest to make this list.  The Report also cited an academic reputation survey 
of high school counselors that ranked George Fox University among the top 100 
national universities.  Moreover, it reported that more Portland-area valedictorians 
and straight-A seniors enroll at George Fox University than at any other private 
college in Oregon.  The Princeton Review lists George Fox as a “Best in the 
West” selection. 

b. Portland Community College recently passed a bond measure that will fund the 
construction of a branch campus in Newberg.  The College will offer classes in 
the community in the fall of 2010.  The College is expected to offer a wide range 
of academic and technical skills training that will serve the needs of local citizens 
and businesses alike. 

c. The Newberg School District has a higher percentage of Newberg students that 
meet or exceed state standards in reading, mathematics, writing and science than 
state averages.  Average student SAT scores are 1567 compared to Oregon 
average of 1550 and national average of 1511. 

 
3. Established and growing industry clusters 

a. The percentage of employment in the manufacturing sector in Newberg is higher 
than state average.  Average wage is high in this sector. 

b. Dental equipment manufacturing cluster is very strong, including a world leader 
in this industry.  

c. The new $68.5 million Providence regional medical center has created hundreds 
of highly-skilled, well-paying job and solidified health care as one of Newberg’s 
target industries.  The hospital has also spurred development of retirement and 
health care facilities for seniors. 

Page 50



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   28 
 

d. The wine/tourism industry in Yamhill County is world-renowned.  Given 
Newberg’s strategic location as the eastern gateway to the area’s wine country 
from the Portland metropolitan region, this industry is expected to experience 
continued strong growth. Total direct spending for tourism in Yamhill County has 
gone from $29.1 million in 1991 to $60.7 million in 2003 42.  Businesses such as 
restaurants, bed and breakfasts, wine shops, and art galleries are benefiting from 
this rising industry and are actively pursuing these customers.  In particular, 
Newberg’s historic downtown has experience significant revitalization in recent 
years, much of it due to the increasing impacts of this industry.  In 2009, the 
Allison, a large luxury inn and spa targeting wine tourists, was opened.  This 
development was a significant investment in this local industry and a very 
demonstrative statement in its future. 

 
4. Strong local support for business and employment opportunities 

a. Newberg commits staff resources to retain existing business and recruit new 
businesses . 

b. Newberg is commitment to planning “shovel ready” industrial sites. 
i.  Sportsman Airpark Master Plan preserves the functional aspects of this airport.  

It also reserves developable industrial land for businesses that would benefit 
from having close access to airport services. 

ii.  South Industrial Area Master Plan provides for the development of new 
industrial sites of various sizes that have good transportation access, especially to 
Interstate 5.  

c. The Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce has high membership and very 
active in supporting members, business, and industry. 

d. Coordination with County ensures that land outside city limits is reserved for 
intended employment uses and not converted to residential or commercial uses 

 
5. Proximity to Portland metropolitan region 

a. Newberg has access to large market area, including the Portland-Vancouver area. 
This also provides access to other regions, including the Seattle, the Bay area and 
even Asian markets. 

b. Newberg has access to major state highways: Highway 99W and 219, and as little 
as 15 minute access to I-5. 

c. Newberg has access to national/international transportation facilities, including air 
and water transportation facilities at the Port of Portland. 

d. Newberg has strong relationships with other economic development organizations 
in the region.  

  
6. Future Newberg-Dundee Bypass 

a. The Newberg-Dundee Bypass is included in Oregon’s Highway Plan.    The 
location EIS has been approved.  Plans are currently underway to construct a first 
segment of the bypass within 5-10 years. 

b. The Bypass will provide improved transportation facilities that will benefit 
existing industrial users (airport, Highway 219) in south Newberg by allowing 

                                                 
42 Dean Runyan Associates 

Page 51



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   29 
 

traffic from those areas to access Highway 99W and SW Portland area markets 
without routing truck traffic through downtown. 

c. The Bypass will provide improved access to Newberg and the Portland region 
from I-5 (via Highway 219). 

d. The Bypass will reduce traffic in downtown Newberg and facilitate the objective 
of having a pedestrian-oriented city and retail and service center.  

e. The Bypass will provide improved transportation facilities near flat serviceable 
land in south Newberg. 

 
7. Oregon’s Statewide Planning Goals.  Economic development in Oregon is strongly 

influenced by many of these goals.  In particular, Goal 9 requires cities to identify 
comparative advantages, targeted employment opportunities and site requirements and to 
reserve land for long-term industrial uses.  Compared to national and international 
competitors, this required planning work can help ensure that Newberg’s efforts in the 
retention and recruitment of businesses is targeted, efficient and effective.    

Comparative Disadvantages 
The global economy provides strong competition for local, regional and national manufacturers. 
Many other countries, such as China and India, are attracting manufacturing facilities through a 
growing, trained workforce with lower, average wages than this region.  Some of Newberg’s 
disadvantages in competing in a regional and national marketplace include: 
 

1) Transportation and access issues: 
a. Congestion on Highway 99W and travel times to Metro area markets slows 

shipments of goods and material, employees, and customers.  
b. Truck traffic on Highway 99W prevents Newberg’s historic downtown from 

achieving its full potential by creating an environment that is less-than pedestrian 
friendly.   

c. Although Newberg has easy access to I-5 via Highway 219 and McKay Road, the 
Donald/Aurora Interchange at I-5 has access and capacity issues that will likely 
require a reconfiguration or some other interchange redesign to handle increased 
traffic capacity from future development in the region.   

d. The Newberg-Dundee Bypass is a significant future advantage to Newberg.  
However, ODOT may want to limit development near the Bypass interchange 
with Highway 219 in the future to ensure that adequate volume and capacity 
standards are met.  Development limitations may require trip caps or a restriction 
on certain high-traffic generating uses. 

 
2) In 2009, Newberg lacks suitable industrial sites to meet needs of targeted employment 

opportunities: 
a. Many existing industrially zoned parcels are constrained by size, topography, or 

height restrictions. 
b. Some formerly viable sites have been lost due to needs for Bypass right-of-way 

acquisition. 
c. Some existing sites are being reserved for future expansion of adjoining industrial 

users. 

Page 52



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   30 
 

d. Cost of infrastructure to serve sites can be prohibitive. 
e. Newberg lacks master planned industrial and business parks that allow for 

immediate development when industrial firms consider location in Newberg area 
 

3) Highly parcelized land outside the UGB limits alternatives for meeting identified site 
requirements.  Prior to the full implementation of Goal 3 and 4 measures to protect 
agricultural land outside of the Newberg UGB, considerable rural residential 
development was permitted outside the Newberg city limits.  As such, the small parcel 
sizes and rural homes and businesses outside of the Newberg UGB limit the availability 
of suitable employment sites in rural residential exception areas.   

 
4) Newberg’s commercial sector has been under considerable stress as retail paradigms have 

changed over the last few decades.  Regional malls and the more recent development of 
“big-box” stores are strong competitors to Newberg businesses.  While the volume sales 
model of these types of stores bring lower costs to consumers for goods, this pattern has 
had a negative impact on the relatively smaller retailers of the local economy.  In 
addition, the ease of shopping through internet sales is being utilized by growing number 
of customers.  Many locally-owned businesses find it difficult to compete under this new 
paradigm, a situation that has forced many of them to go out of business.   
 

5) In addition, Newberg’s close proximity to the Portland metro area and relatively low 
retail opportunities results in retail dollar “leakage” from the community.  This means 
that fewer retail dollars stay in the community and continue to circulate within the local 
population.   

 
6) Despite major investments in the last few years, SP Newsprint is experiencing financial 

pressures due to changing market conditions. The financial pressures on SP Newsprint 
are mostly on the macroeconomic scale, significantly reducing Newberg’s ability to 
positively impact this situation.   

 
7) Oregon’s Statewide Planning Goals.  Economic development in Oregon is strongly 

influenced by many of these goals.  Balancing of these goals often creates a planning 
process for local economic development that is long, expensive, and uncertain: a process 
that is frequently incompatible with needs of an ever-increasingly fast-paced business 
world.  It can prevent including suitable industrial and employment sites when needed. 

 

Special Opportunities 
Beyond the regional economic markets, Newberg has several special opportunities to capitalize 
on its unique niche geographically and in the market place.  These are discussed below. 
 

Dental Equipment Cluster  
Newberg is the home of A-dec, one of the largest dental equipment manufacturers in the world.  
This also has spurred other dental equipment companies, such as DCI International and 
Beaverstate Dental, and several other industries that supply machined parts, electrical supplies, 

Page 53



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   31 
 

or other equipment. The dental industry is an expanding market, especially in Asian markets 
where dental care is increasing.  There are over 30 billion teeth in China: if Newberg suppliers 
can capitalize on even a small part of this market, they could expand substantially. 
 

Alternative Energies 
As concerns of peak oil, global warming, and carbon emissions rise, so do opportunities for the 
alternative energy industry.  Several Newberg firms already have begun to capitalize on this 
industry.  Harris Thermal constructs heat exchange equipment that is used in the manufacture of 
biofuels.  Climax Portable Machine Tools constructs equipment that is used in the maintenance 
of wind power turbines.  Local companies such as Voltair are manufacturing wind turbines for 
private sale.  The Newberg area has an expanding wind energy cluster of suppliers, 
manufacturers, and technicians.  Newberg has excellent opportunities to capitalize on this 
market. 
 

South Industrial Area 
As noted in the discussion of regional industrial land availability on page 13, the region has a 
significant lack of suitable industrial sites.  In particular, the region lacks large, flat industrial 
sites with good transportation access and available utilities.  In addition, the state’s Industrial 
Lands Advisory Committee found,  
 

Land located at existing freeway interchanges, such as the Stafford District at I–
205 and Stafford Road, Langdon Farms at the I–5 and Charbonneau exit, and the 
I–5 Donald/Aurora exit are logical market driven locations for large scale 
industrial and employment intensive development. 43 

 
However, they also found: 

 
Donald-Aurora I–5 Interchange—The Donald-Aurora interchange on I–5 is 
approximately 20 miles south of Portland. Although this is a prime location for 
industrial development when viewed from a market perspective, the land 
surrounding the interchange is zoned Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) and is in not 
within any jurisdiction’s UGB. Given current land use laws these are substantial 
obstacles to development. 44 
 

Newberg’s South Industrial area is along Wynooski Road and Highway 219.  Newberg recently 
prepared the South Industrial Area Master Plan, which envisions utilizing the area along 
Highway 219 south of Wynooski Road by including several large, flat parcels for future 
industrial use. The South Industrial Area is uniquely posed to accommodate industrial users in 
the region: 
 

                                                 
43 Industrial Lands Advisory Committee Report, December 15, 2003 
44 Industrial Lands Advisory Committee Report, December 15, 2003 
 

Page 54



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   32 
 

• It contains large, level sites.  The area can accommodate employers needing sites of 10 
acres up to 100 acres. 

• The area is adjacent to Newberg’s existing industrial areas, and is a logical extension of 
that area. 

• It has excellent access.  The area is about a 10-15 minute drive to I-5 without traveling 
through any intervening urban areas.  The future Newberg-Dundee bypass will travel 
east to the Portland metro area through no traffic lights until the Portland UGB.  It will 
allow travel west to the Oregon Coast through only one stop light, and to the Mid-
Willamette Valley with few stops. 

• Newberg has the utility capacity to serve the area with relatively short extensions. 
• The area has excellent riparian buffers consisting of two stream corridors between the 

proposed future industrial area and conflicting uses.  No travel would be required 
through residential or commercial areas. 
 

Were the area included in the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary, it certainly would attract the 
target industries Newberg is seeking. 
 

Aviation Related Industry 
Newberg is home to the Sportsman Airpark.  This is a private/public use airport in the Urban 
Growth Boundary.  The Sportsman Airpark Industrial District is situated next to the landing 
strip.  The Sportsman Airpark District has three important advantages over other airport related 
industrial areas: 
 

• Industrial land can be owned by individual users.  In most industrially zoned districts 
near airports, land can only be leased to users, and “through the fence” use of adjacent 
industrial land is not allowed.   

• All adjacent land is within the UGB. 
• The airpark is adjacent to the Airpark Residential Zone, which allows business owners 

and entrepreneurs to live in close proximity to their planes. 
  
With these advantages, the airpark presents excellent opportunities for small to medium 
industrial users.  It can accommodate aircraft related industries, such as manufacture of airplane 
parts or aircraft maintenance.  It can also attract entrepreneurial businesses that need to use a 
plane for business travel, visiting clients, or delivering goods.  A good example of this is a new 
company in town, Voltair, which is constructing a new facility in the Airpark Industrial area.  
Voltair is a manufacturer of wind turbines and their location in the Airpark Industrial area will 
allow for quick access for maintenance crews to fly to eastern Oregon to service turbine 
installations.   
 

Nursery and other Agricultural Products 
As noted in the section Yamhill County Agri-Business on page 10, Yamhill County has 
developed the Yamhill County Agri-Business Economic and Community Development 
Plan.  Of particular note in the plan is the predominance of the nursery and greenhouse 

Page 55



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   33 
 

crop industry in Yamhill County, following by the grass seed and fruit and nut products.  
All of these are present in the Newberg area.  The plan identified needs for processing 
facilities in the County for these and other agricultural products.  The plan includes 
several strategies to promote the agricultural industrial.  Of particular relevance to 
Newberg are the following recommended strategies:  
 

Rezoning to accommodate prototype development projects. Analysis has revealed 
the types of representative projects needed to support agriculture and tourism 
lack adequate sites. Rezoning enables communities to place these projects where 
they “fit” and provide benefits to the community.  
 
Site assembly. Preparing land for development, from initial site selection through 
planning and marketing, is site assembly. To assure job growth and allow for new 
investment, communities will need to be proactive in identifying an adequate 
supply of properly sized, suitably zoned development sites and be active 
participants in the development process. 
  
County-wide infrastructure strategy. The most pressing problem for every 
community is infrastructure. Regional cooperation in Yamhill County to jointly 
plan for the future and secure adequate drinking water supplies can be a model 
for cost saving inter-agency arrangements for other services. Moving ahead with 
a reprisal solution for drinking water is critical for many Yamhill County 
communities.45  

 
Newberg has the infrastructure capable to support such processing facilities.  The South 
Industrial area provides adequate sized sites that would accommodate small and large 
processing facilities. 
 
Of course converting agricultural land to other uses should not be taken lightly, as that 
land is important to the agricultural industry.  Newberg can assist in this respect by 
maintaining an urban growth boundary and providing adequate land within that boundary 
to meet urban land needs at relatively dense development levels.  Agricultural land only 
should be included in the urban area where there is a demonstrated need. 
 

Wine/Tourism Industry 
The Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce recently branded the area as “the Gateway to 
Oregon Wine Country.”  Vineyards and wine productions is a booming business in the Chehalem 
Valley.  This is attracting a great number of tourists, most with money to spend.  This has 
spurred a number of associated economic opportunities, including: 
 

• Accommodation and Hospitality services.  Newberg is home to Oregon wine country’s 
premiere facility: The Allison Inn and Spa.  It also is home to several bed and breakfast 
inns and other hotels.   

                                                 
45 Barney & Worth, Inc., page 43. 

Page 56



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   34 
 

• Restaurant and wine tasting.  Newberg features several opportunities for fine dining, 
including the Painted Lady and the Jory at the Allison.  Downtown Newberg features 
several wine bars.  There are many opportunities to expand fine and casual dining and 
wine tasting.   

• Arts and Culture.  Newberg’s downtown has a strong and growing arts community.  The 
Chehalem Cultural Center is set to open soon and will allow art creation and exhibits.  
This is a strongly growing sector with a lot of opportunity. 

• Golf and Recreation.  Newberg is home to the Chehalem Glenn Golf Course, one of 
Oregon’s best.  This publicly owned course attracts tourists from around the region.  A 
third nine holes is planned, which will further promote the tourism in the area.  
Additional recreation opportunities, such as for bowling or a family fun center, are 
desired in the community. 

• Riverfront commercial.  Newberg has an adopted Riverfront Master Plan for areas along 
the Willamette River.  This future development area will allow views of the Willamette 
while one shops, dines, or stays.  The riverfront area provides access to Roger’s Landing, 
one of the best and most used accesses to the Willamette River. 

 

Retail 
Newberg’s retail objectives, beyond promoting the wine and tourism industries, focus on 
providing opportunities for local residents and businesses to obtain the goods the need without 
travel outside the community.  Newberg does have strong retail areas, but sales of certain retail 
goods are either missing or undersupplied.  In many cases the goods are available regionally, but 
Newberg residents must drive to other areas, such as Washington Square, Wilsonville, 
Sherwood, or McMinnville.  As of 2009, the following retail services are either missing or 
undersupplied in Newberg: office supplies; electronics; clothing and footwear; sewing supplies; 
sporting goods; appliances; whole and natural foods.  Additional retail services in these areas 
would be welcome. 

Page 57



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   35 
 

IV. Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy 

Capitalizing on Comparative Advantages & Addressing Comparative 
Disadvantages 
Table 12- 15: Strategies to Capitalize on Comparative Advantages 

Advantage Strategy / Action 
1. Small Town 
Quality of Life 

• Continue to provide relatively affordable housing opportunities. 
• Minimize adverse impacts on existing and planned residential neighborhoods from 

conflicting employment opportunities. 
• Continue revitalization efforts of historic downtown. 
• Support organizations that foster “social capital”. 
• Work to improve the pedestrian/bicycle network in Newberg. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p., 1.q., 3.a.) 

2. Access to 
Quality 
Education and 
Skills Training 

• Continue to support the Newberg School District, George Fox University, and 
Portland Community College in their efforts to train and motivate the kind of 
workforce required by existing and future employers in Newberg. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.q.) 
3.  Strong 
Established 
and Growing 
Industry 
Clusters 

• Provide sufficient land near existing industrial areas to allow for expansion. 
• Provide suitable sites with characteristics required by such industries to take 

advantage of industrial clusters in Newberg. 
• Encourage the reuse/redevelopment of properties in zones allowing business. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 2.e., 2.g.) 

4. Strong 
Local Support 
for Business 
and 
Employment 
Opportunities  

• Continue to plan for future employment opportunities by providing suitable sites for 
industrial (export) and commercial uses. 

• Continue to work collaboratively with the State, Yamhill County, and local businesses 
to fund infrastructure and planning necessary to maintain and attract desired 
employment. 

• Continue to work with and support the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.m., 1.n., 1.o., 3.b.) 

5. Proximity to 
Portland 
Metropolitan 
Region   

• Continue to work with Metropolitan area partners in promoting the economic 
advantages of the region. 

• Provide opportunities for identified regional employment clusters in Newberg. 
• Continue to advocate for improved access to regional markets, via Highways 99W 

and 219 and the Interstate. 
• Continue to maintain rail and air access opportunities. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.o., 2.g.) 

6. Future 
Newberg-
Dundee 
Bypass 

• Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to build political 
support and ensure funding for the Bypass. 

• Encourage support, funding and construction of the full Bypass project. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.) 

7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning 
Goals 

• Newberg has taken advantage of Oregon’s Economic Development Program (Goal 
9) by identifying comparative advantages (and disadvantages), targeting export-
based employment clusters, identifying and providing for the site requirements 
necessary to maintain and attract such clusters in Newberg, and coordinating with 
Yamhill County and affected state agencies to retain and provide services to suitable 
employment sites.  Newberg will continue to coordinate with these agencies. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.) 

Page 58



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   36 
 

Table 12- 16: Strategies to Address Comparative Disadvantages 
Disadvantage Strategy / Action 
1. Transportation 
and Access 
Issues 

• Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to 
ensure funding for the Newberg-Dundee Bypass. 

• Continue to advocate for Highway 99W improvements to reduce 
congestion and maintain regional connectivity. 

• Continue to work with ODOT for review of all development proposals in 
areas that may impact a state highway facility. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.) 
2. Lack of Suitable 
Employment Sites 

• Newberg has considered local, regional, state and national economic 
trends and identified industry clusters that the City has a reasonable 
likelihood of attracting to the community. 

• Newberg has also researched and identified the site characteristics 
demanded by firms within these industry clusters.   Newberg is actively 
planning for a future industrial area that will meet both the industrial site 
characteristics and the land needs of the city’s population over the next 
30 years. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.h., 2.g.) 
3. Limited Suitable 
Land Supply 
Outside UGB 

• After considering the potential for rural residential exception areas to 
meet identified site requirements, the City has selected sites on 
agricultural land that will be reserved for identified employment needs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.e., 2.g.) 
4. and 5. Stressed 
Commercial 
Sector and Retail 
Dollar Leakage 

• Recruit businesses that can fulfill commercial needs that are currently 
being unmet locally.    

• Support small businesses that are adjusting these new retail realities by 
either focusing on high quality customer service and/or gearing their 
business plans toward niche markets.   

• Encourage local retail businesses to improve their online presence.     
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.i). 

6. Market 
Pressures on SP 
Newsprint 

• Newberg will continually look for opportunities to work with SP Newsprint 
to help reduce their operational costs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d.) 
7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning Goals 

• Newberg will continue to pursue Urban Growth Boundary amendments 
and Urban Reserve expansions to provide adequate land for future uses. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.) 
 

Regional Focus 
Newberg has recognized the importance of being part of a shared, regional economic vision.  
Beyond the Vision: A Strategic Plan for the Chehalem Valley is a document that was created 
cooperatively between five governmental entities located within the Chehalem Valley.  This 
document was adopted by the Newberg City Council in January 2005.  One section of this 
document, called Economy and Employment, describes the economic future of the area as 
follows: 
 

A diversified economy provides balanced economic opportunities for the residents 
of the Chehalem Valley. Agriculture and agribusinesses are an important 
component of the local economy. The natural beauty of the area encourages 

Page 59



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   37 
 

tourism and the wine industry. A carefully targeted retail recapture strategy has 
encouraged more local shopping and minimized buying outside of the area. 
Downtown areas are vibrant commercial areas that support the local economy. 
 
Clean industries have been developed using a “campus” design. Plenty of family 
wage jobs are available for citizens of the area. Tourism is a major economic 
force, its strengths based on the premise that the Chehalem Valley is 1) the 
gateway to the wine country; 2) characterized by a clean and comfortable 
environment; and, 3) offers the historical experience of a friendly, small town and 
village America in the earlier period of the 20th century. As a destination 
location for visitors, the community of Dundee now has two small exclusive hotels 
and bed and breakfast inns. The service industry has expanded, with the health 
industry and health research being a major provider of employment 
in this sector of the economy.46 

 
Key strategic steps laid out for the Economy and Employment section of the plan are as follows: 
 

• Hold a broad community forum on economic development to build consensus. 
• Invigorate the Chamber of Commerce Economic Development Committee. 
• Seek financial aid in the form of grants. 
• Develop community college training programs tailored to the labor force needs of 

prospective employers. 
 
The regional economic development paradigm is expected to continue in the foreseeable future.  
Newberg has worked extensively with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments and 
the Oregon Business Development Department for many years.  With an understanding that 
Newberg’s economic future is likely to be strongly linked with fortunes of the Portland region, 
the City has recently developed relationships with economic development organizations in the 
metropolitan area.  In the summer of 2004, the City of Newberg joined the Association of 
Regional Economic Development Partners, Inc. (now the Portland-Vancouver Regional Partners 
Council for Economic Development.).  The Partners is “a public-private partnership that focuses 
on shared economic priorities and works to implement business retention, expansion, and 
recruitment as well as marketing strategies and recommendations for policy development.  The 
members are public and private sector economic development professionals in the region who 
have worked collaboratively for more than 10 years to retain and recruit businesses, and promote 
the metropolitan region as a vital economic center.” 
 
On January 3, 2005, the Newberg City Council passed Resolution No. 2005-2554, which stated 
the city’s support for the framework of the Portland Regional Business Plan of the Regional 
Economic Development Partners.   
 

                                                 
46 Beyond the Vision: A Strategic Plan for the Chehalem Valley 

Page 60



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   38 
 

Locally Targeted Economic Development Industry Clusters (Target 
Industries) 
The majority of Newberg’s economic development efforts should continue to be focused upon 
supporting existing local businesses.  In the economic development profession, there is a general 
principle call the “80/20 rule”, which means that 80 percent of an area’s economic development 
efforts should be dedicated towards the retention and expansion of existing local businesses.   In 
addition, it is often said that “Your good businesses are your competitor’s best recruitment 
prospects!”  Therefore, a community should ensure, as much as possible, that their local 
businesses are content and prosperous, or else they may look elsewhere to do business.   In 
summary, it is far easier, effective and efficient to try to maintain and expand your economy 
through one’s local industries than to attract new ones.   
 
 As important as Newberg’s retention efforts are for its economic health, recruiting specific new 
businesses to Newberg such as those listed in the Portland-Vancouver Regional Business Plan 
and the Newberg EOA is a critical aspect of Newberg’s economic development strategy.  Some 
of these businesses can be recruited to strengthen existing clusters within the community.  Others 
are new types of businesses that can be attracted based on combination of three factors: a 
business’ cluster strength in the Portland region; Newberg’s close proximity to the metro area, 
and Newberg’s unique high quality of life compared to other communities in the region. The 
City’s business recruitment efforts should be focused on identified strong, traded-sector clusters.  
These types of businesses will bring new wealth to the community and diversify the local 
economy, thereby creating an economic base that is stronger and more stable.  Table 12- 17 on 
page 39 lists industries on which Newberg should focus its economic development efforts. 

Page 61



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   39 
 

 
Table 12- 17: Newberg Targeted Industries 
Business Cluster Targeted business types 
Manufacturing and Industry 

High Tech 
Manufacturing 

 

Semiconductors/silicon, imaging & display technology 
Nano & micro technology, cyber-security, health/medical 
information technology 
Biotech/bioscience (medical devices, bioinfomatics, 
pharmaceuticals, genomics, anti-virals) 

General 
Manufacturing 

Dental equipment 
Metals, machinery, transportation equipment 
Lumber and wood products (value added) 
Sustainable industries (renewable energy, resource efficiency 
technologies, sustainable building materials, green chemistry) 

Distribution & logistics 

Sports apparel/recreation-related products 

Aviation related Specialty aircraft equipment, aircraft repair, machine shops, 
small entrepreneur business 

Agriculture 
Wineries 
Specialty foods and food processing 
 Nursery and agricultural products (value added) 

Services 

Professional services architecture, engineering, legal and 
financial services, etc. 
Creative services (advertising, public relations, film and video, 
web/internet content and design) 

Health Care 

 Providence Medical Center Expansion, medical offices, senior 
services 

Higher Education 

 
Portland Community College campus, George Fox University 
expansion, high school vocational training and college 
preparedness, private post-secondary training 

Wine/Tourism 

 
Wineries and tasting rooms, restaurants, art studios, theater and 
entertainment, recreation (golf, bowling), conference facilities, 
specialty retail 

Source: Newberg Planning Division 

Comprehensive Plan Policies and Recommended Supportive Economic 
Development Actions 
Newberg has developed a vision for the community’s economic future.  The City of Newberg’s 
adopted Comprehensive Plan includes a list of goals and policies that help shape Newberg’s 
future economy (Section H. The Economy).   The following is a list of Newberg’s recommended 
economic development actions and the applicable Comprehensive Plan policies they support.  
All of the Comprehensive Plan policies are from Section H (The Economy) and support the 
larger goal “To develop a diverse and stable economic base”.   

Page 62



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   40 
 

 
1. Work with the State to “certify” industrial sites to shorten the development time of 

projects and provide certainty to a business that regulatory and permitting issues will not 
delay the project’s timeline. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 2.g. 

 
2. Identify and implement cost and time saving measures that improve the development 

permitting process. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d. 

 
3. Develop a financial incentives “toolbox” to recruit new businesses and encourage 

existing business expansions.  The incentives should be applied only after a proposed 
project has been reviewed by a rigorous analysis that demonstrates a clear benefit to the 
City. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 1.g. 

 
4. Maintain a useful economic development website that is easy to navigate and contains 

substantive content that meets the needs of business. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.a., 1.g. 

 
5. Work with local, regional and state educational and training resources (private and 

public) to assist with the workforce training needs of businesses and provide 
opportunities for workers to voluntarily upgrade their skills.  The available workforce 
pool in the Newberg region is approximately 223,000.  The regional workforce is 
estimated by using the assumption that a 23 minute mean commute time (2000 Census) 
draws workers from an approximately 15 mile radius from the center of Newberg Oregon 
is recognized for having an educated workforce, one with good basic work skill sets that 
allows them to be relatively easily trained. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.f. 

 
6. Gauge the health of local businesses regularly and identify how the City can help resolve 

issues, when feasible.  Focus should be on businesses of the traded-sector and local 
clusters.  Anticipate local problem areas by keeping abreast of regional, national, and 
international business trends. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p. 

 
7. Develop closer ties to organizations/businesses located within the Portland area with a 

similar interest in regional economic development (e.g. Regional Economic Development 
Partners, future Portland Economic Development District, etc).  However, joining 
METRO will not be considered.  Reevaluate current relationship with Mid-Willamette 
Valley Community Development Partnership.  
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f. 

 
8. Develop a Downtown Revitalization Master Plan prior to the construction of the 

Newberg-Dundee Bypass.  Identify funding sources necessary to implement the plan. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 3.a. 

Page 63



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   41 
 

V. Industrial and Commercial Land Needs and Supply 
To encourage and accommodate future commercial and industrial growth, Newberg must have 
developable land readily available with characteristics necessary to be competitive in the 
regional economic development market.  Newberg’s Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future 
recently completed an analysis of the community’s future land use needs.  That analysis is 
described in the Report to Newberg City Council; Recommendations for Newberg’s Future, 
which was accepted by the Newberg City Council on July 21, 2005.  On August 1, 2005, the City 
Council initiated the amendment process for the comprehensive plan changes recommended in 
the Report.  The following are the Committee’s recommendations for commercial and industrial 
land needs for Newberg’s future.  These also include updates made in 2009 to reflect 
development since the time of the report. 

Industrial Land Need 

Industrial Employment Projections 
Table 12- 18 below projects the future industrial space utilizing employment in Newberg through 
2040. The table uses the total employment projected in Table 12- 14 on page 26.  The table then 
calculates the percent of that employment that will utilize industrial space using the same 
percentages from Johnson-Gardner’s 2004 City of Newberg – Demand for Commercial and 
Industrial Land report.  
Table 12- 18:  Industrial Space Utilizing Employment Projection through 2040 

Industry 

% Industrial 
Space 
Utilizing  2009  2018  2020  2025  2030  2035  2040 

Construction 30% 117  197  210  239  267  301  337 

Manufacturing 91% 2,003  2,287  2,443  2,782  3,110  3,505  3,924 

Wholesale Trade 82% 60  87  93  105  118  133  149 

Retail Trade 0% ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
Transportation, 
Warehousing & Utilities 93% 169  177  189  216  241  272  304 

Information 88% 39  49  53  60  67  76  85 

Financial Activities 0% ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
Professional & Business 
Services 18% 58  85  91  104  116  131  146 
Education & Health 
Services 0% ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Leisure & Hospitality 0% ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Other Services 93% 380  403  431  491  549  618  692 

Government 0%47 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Total 2,825  3,286  3,510  3,997  4,468  5,035  5,638 

Cumulative from 2009 ‐  461  685  1,172  1,642  2,210  2,812 
 
                                                 
47 Johnson-Gardner estimated 35% of government employment would be industrial space utilizing.  The amount of 
government related industrial land is accounted in the “Public/Quasi-Public” category, thus is not included here. 

Page 64



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   42 
 

Industrial Site Requirements 
A variety of parcel sizes, building types, and land use designations are required to provide 
suitable sites to attract targeted industry clusters.  In 2005, the Report to Newberg City Council; 
Recommendations for Newberg’s Future documented that there was a general lack of suitable 
large (20+ acre) industrial sites with access to a state highway and physical separation or 
transitional buffering from residential neighborhoods.  The report documented an additional need 
for 4-5 large (20+ acre) industrial sites for the period 2005-2025. Industrial land needs for the 
2005-2025 period totaled about 216 acres, with an additional 6 sites needed for the period 2026-
2040.  The assumption was that approximately 50 percent of future industrial employment will 
take place on large parcels.  
 

In 2009, the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) encouraged the City 
to refine its target industries analysis and site needs requirements to determine whether a UGB 
amendment could be justified.  The City has since worked closely with OBDD to refine its 
industrial site requirements. 
 
This section includes four tables:  
1. Table 12- 19 describes average site sizes for targeted industry sectors and clusters;  
2. Table 12- 20 arranges targeted industry sectors and clusters into site size ranges and provides 

examples of existing Newberg industries in those clusters and ranges; and 
3. Table 12- 21 associates projected employee growth with site sizes, including redevelopment 

assumptions, to project a number of needed sites within each site size category. 
4. Table 12- 22 describes the site suitability characteristics required for light industrial and 

Airport-related developments. 
 
Table 12- 19 links targeted industry clusters discussed in this EOA with uses identified in the 
2005 Report to Newberg City Council.  These clusters and uses were allocated site size ranges 
based on ECONW and a meeting with Oregon Business Development Department (OBDD) 
representative Tom Fox on September 10, 2009.  Site size ranges were verified against OBDD 
data relating to real firms seeking sites in Oregon, in the targeted industry clusters.  Industry 
clusters containing firms that could potentially require large sites – 10-30 acres or 30-50 acres in 
size – are identified by the Potential Large Site Category columns. Thirteen industry clusters 
include firms that could potentially require 10-30 acre sites, and nine include firms that could 
potentially require 30-50 acre sites. 
 
OBDD reviewed the site size ranges by targeted industry cluster in Table 12- 19 and supports the 
estimated site sizes and ranges as viable and marketable for Newberg’s targeted industries. 
 

Page 65



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   43 
 

Table 12- 19: Site Size Ranges by Targeted Industrial Cluster and Sector 

10 - 30 30 - 50
Electronics, Other 10 - 30 10 - 60 6 - 55 X X
Health, Nano/Micro 
Tech, Cyber Security 5 - 20 6 - 55 X X

Bio-Tech/Bioscience/        
Pharmaceuticals, Health 
Services

5 - 40 2 - 60 X X

Dental Equipment 5 - 40 2 - 55 X X
Fabricated Metals, 
Plastics 10 - 20 10 - 20 3 - 7 X

Transportation 
Equipment 10 - 30 10 1 X

Industrial Machinery 10 - 20 10 - 20 3 - 6 X
Lumber and Wood 
Products (Value Added) 1 - 10 10 243 X X

Sustainable Industries 5 - 25 25 - 200 1 - 7 X X

Distribution and Logistics 5 - 60 30 - 60 X X

Sports and Recreational 
Campus 10 - 50 X X

Airport Related 
Industrial

Specialty Aircraft 
Equipment, Aircraft 
Repair, Machine Shops, 
Small Entrepreneur 
Business

1 - 70 70 1 - 3

Winery 3 - 5
Specialty Foods and 
Food Processing 1 - 10 10 - 150 5 X X

Nursery and Ag Products 
(Value Added) 1 - 10 2 - 13 X

Professional Services 1 - 5 1 - 2
Creative Services, 
Printing, Publishing 1 - 10 1 - 2

High Tech 
Manufacturing

General 
Manufacturing

Agriculture

Services

Potential Large 
Site Categories

Industry Cluster Uses
ECO/WB* 

(Acres)
OBDD** 
(Acres)

Newberg 
Examples 

(Acres)

*ECO/WB:  EcoNorthwest and Winterbrook Planning 
**Outside Investment Prospects, OECDD (OBDD), Oct 2008 
 
Table 12- 20 below arranges the identified target industry clusters and sectors by potential site 
sizes, and associates those sizes with existing Newberg industries. As shown in Table 12- 19, 
some industry clusters and sectors appear in multiple site size categories due to wide potential 
ranges. Of note, Newberg’s existing large industrial sites (A-Dec and SP Newsprint) are over 50 
acres in size. 
 

Page 66



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   44 
 

Newberg has an excellent example of a high tech traded-sector manufacturing cluster – three 
large firms in the dental industry. A-Dec, A.R.E. Manufacturing, and Dental Components Inc. 
employ slightly over 1,000 people on 67 acres of industrial land.  It is not unreasonable for 
Newberg to assume similar success with another targeted-industry cluster. As such, 10-30 and 
30-50 acre sites should be included to provide the City with this opportunity. 
Table 12- 20: Targeted Industry Clusters and Sectors by Site Size Ranges and Existing 
Newberg Industrial Firm Examples 
Site Size 
Range 

Industry Clusters/Uses Newberg Industry 
Examples 

<10 Acres • Health, Nano/Micro Tech, Cyber Security 
• Bio-Tech/Bioscience/Pharmaceuticals 
• Dental Equipment 
• Fabricated Metals, Plastics 
• Lumber and Wood Products (Value Added) 
• Sustainable Industries 
• Distribution and Logistics 
• Airport Related Industrial 
• Winery 
• Specialty Foods and Food Processing 
• Nursery and Ag Products (Value Added) 
• Professional Services 
• Creative Services 

• Climax Portable Machine 
Tools 

• PPM Technologies 
• A.R.E. Manufacturing 
• Dental Components Inc. 
• Ushio Oregon 
• Harris Thermal Transfer 

Products 
• Airpark Business 

Complex 

10 – 30 Acres • Electronics 
• Health, Nano/Micro Tech, Cyber Security 
• Bio-Tech/Bioscience/Pharmaceuticals 
• Dental Equipment 
• Fabricated Metals, Plastics 
• Transportation Equipment 
• Industrial Machinery 
• Lumber and Wood Products (Value Added) 
• Sustainable Industries 
• Distribution and Logistics 
• Sports and Recreational Equipment Campus 
• Specialty Foods and Food Processing 
• Nursery and Ag Products 

• Suntron Corporation48 

>30 Acres • Electronics 
• Health, Nano/Micro Tech, Cyber Security 
• Bio-Tech/Bioscience/Pharmaceuticals 
• Dental Equipment 
• Lumber and Wood Products (Value Added) 
• Sustainable Industries 
• Distribution and Logistics 
• Sports and Recreational Equipment Campus 
• Specialty Foods and Food Processing 

• SP Newsprint Company 
• A-dec, Inc. 

 

                                                 
48 Suntron announced plans to close operation in Newberg in 2010. 

Page 67



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   45 
 

Table 12- 21 links projected 2030 industrial employment from Table 12- 18 on page 41with 
potential site size ranges. While examples can be found of large sites with few employees, and 
small sites with many employees, larger employers generally require larger sites. This table is 
one way to address that dynamic while relating projected industrial site needs to adopted 
employment projections.  
 
The data is based on the assumption that most sites under 10 acres will be located in industrial 
parks, which will require dedication of an average of 15% right-of-way for streets and utilities.  
For sites over 10 acres, the table assumes 5% of the area for streets and utilities.  The table also 
includes assumptions that most (55%) of Newberg’s future industrial employment will be located 
on sites 10 acres or less, and that one-third of those future new industrial firms under 10 acres in 
size, and one-half of firms under 2 acres in size, will find a site through infill redevelopment or 
intensification of existing employment land uses.   
 
Table 12- 21 shows the 2030 need for approximately 24 acres of very small (under 2 acre) sites, 
75 acres of small (2- to 10-acre) sites,49 two sites in the 10-30 acre range, and one site in the 30- 
to 50-acre range, for a total industrial site need of 183 gross buildable acres by 2030.  These 
needs for small and medium sites are consistent with recent demand for industrial land in 
Newberg.  From 2005 to 2009, there were 24 acres of industrial land developed.  A number of 
industrial employers expanded or constructed new facilities over that time, including Action 
Equipment, Climax Portable Machine Tools, Harris Thermal, A-dec, and Freeman 
Manufacturing.  The total land needs equate to approximately 10 employees per developed acre, 
which reflects the reality that many firms look for sites that allow for future expansion, and is 
consistent with the site size per employee ratio of many of Newberg’s largest industrial 
employers.50 
Table 12- 21: Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment (2010-2030) 

Employees 
per Firm 

Percent of 
Employment 

Number of 
Employees 

Number 
of 

Firms 
Sites 

Needed 

Size 
Range 
(Acres) 

Average 
Site 
Size 

(Acres) 

Average 
ROW 
Need 

(Acres) 

Gross 
Buildable 

Acres 
Needed 

0-9 15% 246 41 21 <2 1 0.15 24 

20 infill & redevelopment 0 

10 to 74 40% 657 19 13 2 - 10 5 0.75 75 

6 infill & redevelopment 0 

75 to 150 15% 246 2 2 10 - 30 20 1.00 42 

150+ 30% 493 1 1 30 - 50 40 2.00 42 

Total 100% 1,642 63 63       183 
Source: Winterbrook Planning 2009, Newberg Planning Division 
 
In addition, there is a projected need for 1,170 industrial employees for the period 2031-2040.  

                                                 
49 Much of this site size need can be most efficiently accommodated by master planned business parks. 
50 Review of site sizes for existing industrial firms with over 50 employees in Newberg determined an average of 
4.75 employees per acre. A fully developed site for an employee-rich industrial firm like A-Dec is able to achieve 
about 16 employees per acre. Firms like A.R.E. Manufacturing, Dental Components Inc., Ushio Oregon Inc., and 
Harris Thermal Transfer Products come in around 7-11 employees per acre. 

Page 68



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   46 
 

At an average of 11 employees/acre, which represents a 10% increase in future industrial density 
as a further efficiency measure, plus 10% of the land area for right-of-way (based on an a mix of 
small and large sites), this will generate an additional need for 117 gross buildable acres of land 
for the period 2031-2040.  
 
Table 12- 22 shows the site suitability characteristics needed for these targeted industries. 
Table 12- 22: Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics 

Required Site 
Characteristic Description Statutory, Rule or 

Plan Basis 

Site Size 

• Minimum parcel size 5 vacant acres (or vacant with less 
than ½ acre occupied by permanent structures)  

• Group of at least 20 suitable acres as defined below 
• May include parcels with less than 5 vacant acres if site 

is currently an industrial use or is vacant and adjacent 
to industrial use or group of 20 suitable acres 

• Inventory to include sufficient large sites (10-30 acre 
and 30-50 acre categories) 

ORS 197.712;  
Goal 14;  
OAR 660-009-0025; 
OAR 660-024-0060; 
Revised Newberg 
EOA 

Topography 

Exclude: 
• Slopes of 10% or greater 
• Inventoried and protected riparian corridors / wetlands 
• Areas within the designated Stream Corridor Overlay 

(which include the 100-year floodplain) 
• Remaining suitable area contiguous and generally 

rectangular in shape for efficient development 

ORS 197.712;  
Goal 14;  
OAR 660-009-0025; 
OAR 660-024-0060; 
Revised Newberg 
EOA 

Proximity to 
Transportation 
and Services 

Include parcels (or group of parcels): 
• Within, or contiguous to existing UGB to allow for 

efficient extension of urban services, or as part of group 
of parcels that could immediately be added to UGB 

• Adjacent to or within 1/8 mile of a major arterial or state 
highway access without travel through non-industrial 
properties. 

• Provides connection to I-5 via Highway 219 
• Site adjacent to Sportsman Airpark necessary for 

airport-related industrial uses  
• Adjacent to existing industrial areas, or agglomeration 

of at least 100 new acres to facilitate agglomeration 
economies and minimize adverse impacts 

ORS 197.712;  
Goal 14;  
OAR 660-009-0025; 
OAR 660-024-0060; 
Revised Newberg 
EOA 

Compatibility 
(residential, 
downtown and 
resource land) 

Exclude sites that: 
• Abut residential neighborhood on more than 25% of the 

site perimeter unless effective topographical or road 
buffers present or planned 

• Abut large contiguous tracts of agricultural land unless 
effective topographic or road buffers are present or 
planned 

• Result in truck traffic through downtown  

ORS 197.712;    
Goal 14;  
OAR 660-009-0025; 
OAR 660-024-0060; 
Revised Newberg 
EOA; Goal 14 
Locational Factors 

Page 69



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   47 
 

Industrial Land and Sites 
The comprehensive plan inventory of buildable industrial land was updated in 2009, consistent 
with the requirement in OAR 660-009-0015 (3) for an inventory of industrial and other 
employment land.  The term “buildable industrial land” as used in this plan is consistent with 
the terms defined in OAR 660-009-0005 as “total supply” of “vacant” or “developed” industrial 
land that is “suitable” and “serviceable.” Buildable land: 
 

1. Includes lots that have any “Industrial” comprehensive plan designation.  This includes 
land in the “Employment” Springbrook District, specific plan industrial districts, and 
land in the MIX comprehensive plan district zoned industrial.  It excludes publicly 
owned properties intended for city facilities such as the wastewater treatment plant 
expansion, which are counted in the “public/quasi-public” category. 

2. Includes lots that are: 
a. equal to or larger than one half-acre not currently containing permanent buildings 

or improvements; or  
b. between one-half and five acres that are likely to be redeveloped during the 

planning period. 
c. equal to or larger than five acres where less than one half-acre is occupied by 

permanent buildings or improvements. 
3. Excludes portions of lots within stream corridors, with slopes over 10 percent, or currently 

occupied by buildings or industrial uses, or contained within the Newberg-Dundee bypass 
“build design alternatives options” published August 2008. 
 

Table 12- 23 shows the existing buildable industrial land in the UGB as of 2009.  Figure 12- 3 is 
a map of the buildable industrial land in the UGB in 2009.  

 

Page 70



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   48 
 

Table 12- 23: Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2009) 

Location Potential Uses Buildable 
Acres 

Site Sizes 
< 2 
ac. 

2-10 
ac. 

10-30 
ac. 

30-50 
ac. Total 

Springbrook 
Employment 

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office 

23  1 1  2 

Sportsman 
Airpark51 Airport Industrial 22 2 4   6 

Wynooski 
Industrial Light Industrial 10 1 2   3 

Elliot Road 
Industrial 

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office 

1 1    1 

Total 56 4 7 1 12 
Source: Newberg Planning Division 
 
The current UGB has approximately 56 buildable industrial acres.  Newberg’s existing 
industrial land supply is mostly contained within two industrial/employment park areas: 
approximately 23 buildable acres zoned SD/E (Springbrook District Employment) in the 
Springbrook area and approximately 22 vacant acres near the Sportsman Airpark. There are also 
about 10 acres of buildable industrial land scattered throughout the City on individual lots.  

                                                 
51 The Sportsman Airpark contains one large 55-acre property that contains the existing airport, plus approximately 
10.8 acres of buildable industrial land.  The approved Sportsman Airpark Master Plan includes a plan for developing 
the buildable industrial land into an industrial park with aviation related uses.  This site was counted in the 2-10 acre 
category, even though it contains slightly over 10 acres of buildable land, because the approved master plan 
envisions further division, and the aviation related uses are more likely to be separate smaller firms rather than one 
large firm. 

Page 71



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   49 
 

Figure 12- 3: Buildable Industrial Land, Newberg UGB 2009 

 

Page 72



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   50 
 

2030 Industrial Site Need vs. Supply  
As shown in Table 12- 24, Newberg has an unmet need for one 30- to 50-acre site, two 10- to 30-
acre sites, 45 acres of 2- to 10-acre sites, and 18 acres of sites under 2 acres in size.  
 
Table 12- 24: 2010-2030 Industrial Land Supply and Need 

Size 
Range 
(Acres) 

Number 
of Sites - 
2009 UGB 

Buildable 
Acres - 

2009 
UGB 

2010-
2030 

Needed 
Sites 

2010-2030 
Needed 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres 

2010-2030 
Deficit # 
of Sites 

2010-2030 
Deficit 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres 

<2 5  6  21  24  (16) (18) 
2 to 10 7  30  13  75  (6) (45) 
10 to 30 1  20  2  42  (1) (22) 
30 to 50 0  0  1  42  (1) (42) 
Total 13  56  37  183  (24) (127) 

Source: Winterbrook Planning, City of Newberg 
 
This means that Newberg’s UGB should be expanded by approximately 127 buildable industrial 
acres to include: 
 
1) A 30- to 50-acre site; 
2) A 10- to 30-acre site; and 
3) Industrial park sites totaling approximately 63 buildable acres. 

 
In addition, for the period 2031-2040, Newberg will need an additional 117 gross acres of 
buildable industrial land.  This need has not been divided by site size, but is likely to be similar 
to the site needs distribution for the 2010-2030 period.  The best approach would be to reserve 
sufficient land in the urban reserve to meet this acreage need, then include suitable land in the 
UGB as needs arise. 

Commercial Land Need 

Commercial Land Need 
As Newberg’s population grows, so will its needs for commercial land.  Additional population 
will bring additional retail, office, and other commercial opportunities.  In 2004, Johnson-
Gardner prepared a preliminary forecast for the need for office and retail commercial land.  The 
office land need is a function of employment growth based on long-range forecasts by the 
Oregon Employment Department.  The retail land need is a function of household growth and 
typical household spending patterns.  In November 2009, the Oregon Employment Department 
issued new employment growth forecasts for the 2008-2018 period.  The Newberg Planning 
Division then updated the commercial land need projections for the 2010-2040 period based on 
this new data, as detailed below. 

Page 73



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   51 
 

Office Land Need 
Table 12- 25 projects office space utilizing employment for 2010-2040.  The table uses the total 
employment projections from Table 12- 14 on page 26.  The table then determines the 
percentage of that employment that will utilize office space using estimates from the 2004 
Johnson-Gardner City of Newberg – Demand for Commercial and Industrial Land report. 
 
Table 12- 25:  Office Space Utilizing Employment through 2040 

Industry 

% 
Office 
Space 

Utilizing 2009 2018 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 
Construction 2% 8 13 14 16 18 20 22 

Manufacturing 5% 112 126 134 153 171 193 216 
Wholesale Trade 5% 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 

Retail Trade 5% 42 56 60 68 76 86 96 
Transportation, 
Warehousing & 

Utilities 30% 
54 57 61 70 78 88 98 

Information 90% 40 50 54 61 69 77 87 
Financial Activities 90% 217 255 273 310 347 391 438 

Professional & 
Business Services 90% 289 427 456 519 580 654 732 
Education & Health 

Services 40% 1,314 1,259 1,344 1,531 1,711 1,929 2,159 
Leisure & 
Hospitality 40% 407 554 582 662 740 834 934 

Other Services 40% 164 174 185 211 236 266 298 
Government 35% 61 67 72 82 91 103 115 

Total 28% 2,710 3,033 3,240 3,689 4,124 4,648 5,204 
Cumulative from 

2009 - 323 530 979 1,414 1,938 2,494 
 
 
Table 12- 26 converts the office employment projections to land needs. The table uses the 
assumptions from the 2004 Johnson-Gardner report for office area per employee and floor-to-
area ratio (FAR).  The table also included a 15% allowance for right-of-way, utilities, and other 
unbuildable areas. 

Page 74



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   52 
 

 
Table 12- 26:  Office Land Needs through 2040 

Industry 

Office 
Sq. Ft. 

per 
Emp. FAR ROW 2009 2018 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040

Construction 225 40% 15% 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 
Manufacturing 200 40% 15% 1.5 1.7 1.8 2.1 2.3 2.6 2.9 

Wholesale Trade 200 40% 15% 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 
Retail Trade 200 40% 15% 0.6 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 

Transportation, 
Warehousing & 

Utilities 225 40% 15% 0.8 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5 
Information 200 40% 15% 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 

Financial Activities 200 40% 15% 2.9 3.4 3.7 4.2 4.7 5.3 5.9 
Professional & 

Business Services 200 40% 15% 3.9 5.8 6.2 7.0 7.8 8.8 9.9 
Education & Health 

Services 200 40% 15% 17.7 17.0 18.2 20.7 23.1 26.0 29.2 
Leisure & 
Hospitality 200 40% 15% 5.5 7.4 7.9 8.9 10.0 11.3 12.6 

Other Services 200 40% 15% 2.2 2.3 2.5 2.9 3.2 3.6 4.0 
Government 200 40% 15% 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 
Total (Gross 

Buildable Acres) 201 40% 15% 36.7 41.1 43.9 50.0 55.9 62.9 70.5 
Cumulative from 

2009 4 7 13 19 26 34 
 

Retail Land Needs 
Table 12- 27 projects the need for retail land in Newberg for the 2010-2040 period.  The table 
uses the methodology outlined in the 2004 Johnson-Gardner Demand for Commercial & 
Industrial Land Report.  That report uses a five step process to determine commercial land 
needs: 
 

1. Project future household growth. 
2. Estimate Newberg per-household spending in a number of retail categories. 
3. Project Newberg retail sales per retail category. 
4. Project demand for retail space based on projected sales in each retail category. 
5. Convert retail space demands into acreage needs for retail land. 

 
The result of the report’s calculations is that for every 1,000 new households, there will be a 
need for 14.8 net buildable acres of retail land.  Thus, using this simple factor, we can project 
future retail land needs based on the projected household growth. Household growth was updated 
using the 2009 population estimates for the Newberg urban area as a base.  

Page 75



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   53 
 

 
The table also made three other adjustments to the retail land needs.  First, the table includes a 
15% allowance for right-of-way, utilities, and similar unbuildable land.  Second, as an efficiency 
measure, the table assumes that 5% of retail land needs will be met through infill or 
redevelopment of existing commercial land, such as in downtown Newberg.  Third, the table 
includes an allowance for one acre of commercial land inside the UGB estimated to be displaced 
by construction of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass. 
 
Table 12- 27: Retail Land Needs through 2040 
Category  2009  2015  2020  2025  2030  2035  2040 

Population 23,582  28,559  33,683  38,352  42,870  48,316  54,097 

Households52 7,799  9,445  11,140  12,684  14,178  15,980  17,892 

New Households (from previous 
column) ‐  1,646  1,695  1,544  1,494  1,801  1,912 

Net Buildable Acres per 1,000 
households ‐  14.8  14.8  14.8  14.8  14.8  14.8 

Right-of-Way ‐  15%  15%  15%  15%  15%  15% 

Infill/Redevelopment ‐  (5%)  (5%)  (5%)  (5%)  (5%)  (5%) 

Displaced by Bypass ‐  ‐  ‐  1  ‐  ‐  ‐ 
Total Gross Buildable Acres 
Needed ‐  27  28  25  25  30  31 

Cumulative from 2009  ‐  27  55  80  105  135  166 
 

Total Commercial Land Needs 
Table 12- 28 below sums the office land needs projected in Table 12- 26 on page 52 and the 
retail land need projected in Table 12- 27 on page 53 to yield total commercial land needs.  
These land needs are categorized by the 2010-2030 timeframe, and by the 2031-2040 
timeframe. 
 

Table 12- 28: Commercial Land Needs, 2010-2040 

Type 2010-2030 2031-2040 

Office 19 ac 15 ac 
Retail 105 ac 61 ac 
Total 124 ac 76 ac 

Note:  All acreages are gross buildable acres. 
 

                                                 
52 Projected population was converted to projected households using a conversion factor of 3.024 population per 
household.  This factor was determined using the 2007 Census population estimate for Newberg city of 22,541, and 
dividing it by the 2006-2008 American Community Survey estimate of 7,455 households.  Note that this factor is 
different than the 2006-2008 ACS estimated population per household of 2.7, because total population includes non-
households.   

Page 76



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   54 
 

 

Commercial Site Requirements 
In 2004-05, Newberg prepared the Report to Newberg City Council; Recommendations for 
Newberg’s Future, which documented the development form necessary to accommodate 
identified commercial land needs.  As can be seen, most of the commercial growth is expected 
to occur within Newberg’s existing commercial areas.  Newberg has many commercial 
opportunities in its downtown core.  The Newberg Downtown Revitalization Committee is 
actively working on projects to revitalize the downtown commercial core, including the addition 
of a new downtown gateway sign, a downtown demonstration block, and efforts to publicize 
available public parking areas.  There is currently approximately 1 buildable acre in the 
downtown core; however, it can be assumed that redevelopment, infill, and intensification of 
uses in the downtown core and other commercial areas will contribute an additional 5% of 
buildable land supply through 2040. 
 
In addition, Newberg will need to provide large parcels for shopping centers.  The Urban Land 
Institute has identified three types of shopping centers that potentially could be developed in 
communities such as Newberg: neighborhood centers, community centers and regional centers.  
A large regional shopping center is not consistent with Newberg’s desire to maintain a small 
town feeling and have a complete community rather than a bedroom suburb; therefore, smaller 
neighborhood and community shopping centers are preferred.   
 
Newberg needs to ensure that there is an adequate supply of sites with appropriate 
characteristics for smaller neighborhood and community shopping centers in terms of size, 
access, and location.  Under this approach, future land needs will include needs for 2-3 
community centers (10-15 acres each) and 2-3 smaller neighborhood centers (3-5 acres) through 
2040.  The smaller neighborhood commercial centers should be scattered throughout the 
community to provide goods and services near where people live and reduce the need to drive 
into the central area for basic needs.   
 

Page 77



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   55 
 

Table 12- 29: Required Commercial Site Suitability Characteristics 
Required Site 
Characteristic Description 

Site Size 
• For neighborhood centers – 3 acres minimum 
• For community centers – 10 acre minimum 

No more than two separate ownerships 
 

Topography 

Exclude: 
• Slopes of 10% or greater 
• Inventoried and protected riparian corridors / wetlands 
• Areas within the designated Stream Corridor Overlay (which 

include the 100-year floodplain) 
• Remaining suitable area contiguous and generally rectangular 

in shape to enable efficient development 
Proximity to 
Transportation and 
Services 

• For neighborhood centers – access to major collector or minor 
arterial street at a minimum. 

• For community centers – access to minor or major arterial. 

Compatibility 

Exclude sites that: 
• For community centers, abut residential neighborhood on more 

than 50% of the site perimeter unless effective topographical or 
road buffers present or planned  

Commercial Land and Sites 
The commercial buildable land inventory inside the 2009 Newberg UGB has approximately 120 
buildable acres.  Newberg has seven main commercial areas.  These are shown on Figure 12- 4 
on page 57.  Table 12- 30 shows the location and amount of buildable land in each area. 
Table 12- 30: Buildable Commercial Land in Newberg UGB (2009) 

Location Potential Uses Buildable 
Acres 

Parcels over 
5 Acres 

Buildable 
Downtown Infill Retail and Office Uses 1 0 

College/Mountainview 
Neighborhood Center 

Neighborhood or 
Community Commercial 

Center 
12 1 

Springbrook Hospitality and 
Village 

Tourist Retail and 
Hospitality 25 2 

East Portland Road Community Commercial 
Center 28 2 

Portland Road Retail and Office 19 1 

Riverfront Tourist Retail and 
Hospitality 10 0 

Providence Drive Medical Offices 25 2 

Total  120 8 
 

Page 78



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   56 
 

2030 Commercial Site Need and Supply 
Overall, Newberg has nearly an adequate supply of commercial land to meet needs through 
2030.  The overall land supply is weighted toward medical office land (Providence Drive) and 
tourist commercial land (Springbrook and Riverfront), and less toward general retail land.  
There is land for two community commercial centers.  There is an overall deficit of 10 acres of 
retail commercial land. 

Table 12- 31: Commercial Land Supply and Need 

Type 
Buildable 

Acres 
Needed 

2010-2030 

Buildable 
Acres  in 

2009 
UGB 

Surplus 
or 

(Deficit) 

Buildable 
Acres 

Needed 
2031-2040 

Office 19 25 6 15 
Retail 105 95 (10) 61 
Total 124 120 (4) 76 

Note:  All figures are gross buildable acres. 

  
There is a need for 76 buildable acres for the time period from 2031-2040.  There is a built in 
assumption that approximately 5 percent of the commercial land need will be made up by 
downtown redevelopment and infill.  The remainder of the future commercial land supply 
should include an additional community commercial center and 2-3 neighborhood commercial 
centers. 
 

Page 79



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   57 
 

Figure 12- 4: Commercial Areas and Buildable Commercial Land, Newberg UGB 2009 

Page 80



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg   58 
 

 

VI. Conclusion 
Newberg’s economic base has diversified over time and several of its home-grown industries 
have become national and international leaders in their respective fields.  The City is slowly 
transitioning into more of an urban center for east Yamhill County as the population grows.   
However, Newberg citizens have made it clear that they value the “live here, work here, shop 
here” values and way of life.  To keep up the City’s commitment to the values of its residents, 
Newberg must strengthen its economic base and provide adequate industrial and commercial 
land for current and future populations.   
 
The industrial and commercial buildable land supply tables in this report indicate a shortage of 
both types of land within the current Newberg Urban Growth Boundary.  It is critical for 
economic development efforts to have adequate buildable land available that meets the identified 
site suitability requirements for both industrial and commercial areas.  The City cannot help 
provide enough jobs for current and future residents without adequate land to locate new 
businesses on, and without adequate land for existing businesses to expand onto.   
 
Fortunately, Newberg has many advantages that make it stand out in the regional marketplace, 
including the following: 
 

• Small town quality of life 
• Access to quality education and skills training 
• Strong established and growing industry clusters 
• Strong local support for business and employment opportunities 
• Proximity to the Portland Metropolitan Region  
• Future Newberg-Dundee Bypass 
• Compliance with Oregon’s statewide planning goals 

 
In addition, Newberg has easy access to Interstate 5 on its south side for easy access to industrial 
locations.  One of the most important advantages on the list is that Newberg has strong existing 
and growing industry clusters in the areas of manufacturing, health care, higher education, and 
wine tourism.  Providing additional adequate land for industrial and commercial businesses that 
are in these same sectors and other compatible sectors will help strengthen Newberg’s economic 
base for the future. 
 
By following the recommended actions in the plan, Newberg can maintain and build a strong 
economic base to benefit all its citizens. 

Page 81



Exhibit B:  
Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

 Ordinance 2010‐2723 
 
The following are Comprehensive Plan revisions to implement the revised Economic 
Opportunities Analysis.  Additions to the text are shown as underlined, deletions are 
shown as strikethrough. 
 
SECTION 1 – Amend the C.  SIGNIFICANCE section as follows: 
 
The Urban Growth Boundary will also have an important effect on local residents. The UGB, although 
only a guide, is intended to provide adequate space for land use needs over a 20-year planning horizon to 
the year 2010 and defines the area within which urban services can be provided. The purpose of the UGB 
is to contain urban growth within a reasonable area while providing adequate choices for new 
development locations. 
 
 
SECTION 2 – Add the following to section H.  THE ECONOMY: 

 
GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base. 

 
POLICIES: 

1. General Policies 
 

m. The City shall collaborate with project developers to construct and maintain the best utility 
systems possible (e.g. water and sanitary sewer), both from a quality as well as quantity 
(capacity) standpoint. 

n. The City, in cooperation with public and/or private entities, shall invest in the best 
telecommunications infrastructure possible. 

o. The City shall collaborate with other public and private entities and project developers to 
construct and maintain the best surface transportation infrastructure possible (e.g. roads, 
airpark, railroad). 

p.  The City shall strive to develop and promote a high quality of life in the community in 
order to attract and retain a diverse and highly skilled workforce.   

q. The City shall foster an environment of business innovation so that the community may 
remain economically competitive.   

 
 
 
SECTION 3 – Amend the POPULATION GROWTH section as follows: 

 

A. HISTORIC POPULATION 
 

Page 82



Newberg grew over 400 450 percent from 1960 to 20049.  This population growth was due to a variety of 
factors:  regional population growth, expansion of industry and business in the area, proximity to other 
employment centers, and the high quality of life in the area. 
 
Table III-1.  Newberg City Population – 1960-20042009 
Year Population 
1960 4,204 
1970 6,507 
1980 10,394 
1990 13,086 
2000 18,064 
2004 2009 19,910 23,150 
Sources:  U.S. Census, Population Research Center, Portland, State University 
 
In addition, approximately 374 people live in the area between the city limits and the urban 
growth boundary, making the 2004 Newberg UGB population about 20,284. The Portland 
State University Population Research Center estimated Newberg’s population as of July 1, 
2009 to be 23,150. As of July 1, 2009, the Urban Growth Boundary has an estimated 
population of 23,582. 
 

SECTION 4 – Amend the LAND NEED AND SUPPLY section as follows: 
 
A. BUILDABLE LAND INVENTORY 
 
The Newberg Planning Division prepared an inventory of buildable land in the Newberg UGB in 2004, 
which was updated in November 2009. The buildable land inventory includes vacant and redevelopable 
land in the existing (20094) UGB. This land base is the starting point for determining how much future 
growth can be accommodated inside the existing UGB and the size of the unmet land need that must be 
accommodated through zone changes or UGB expansion. Physical constraints such as steep slopes 
(greater than 25%) and stream setbacks have been deducted from the parcel size, so the buildable land 
inventory is based on buildable acres, not total acres. In addition, lands that are under development (where 
a building permit has been issued) are not considered buildable. This inventory also does not include land 
located within the future right-of-way of the proposed Newberg-Dundee Bypass.  In November 20094, the 
Newberg UGB had approximately 778 1,071 acres of buildable land inside the UGB (Table IV-1). 
 
Table IV-1.  Newberg UGB Buildable Land Inventory (Nov. 2009 2004) 

Plan Designation Buildable Land 
Low Density Residential 359 ac 585 ac. 

Medium Density Residential 142 ac 132 ac. 
High Density Residential 13 ac 45 ac. 

Commercial 105 ac 120 ac. 
Industrial 159 ac 56 ac. 

Park 41 ac. 
Institutional 92 ac. 

TOTAL 778 ac 1,071 ac. 
Source: Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future (2005), Report to City Council Newberg Planning 
Division, Buildable Lands Inventory, November 2009 

Page 83



 
In addition, there is approximately 467 381 acres of buildable land within the Newberg Urban Reserve 
Area.  This area does not have any urban comprehensive plan district designations assigned. 
 
 
C. COMMERCIAL LAND NEED AND SUPPLY 
 
1. Commercial Land Need   
 
As Newberg grows, so will its needs for commercial land.  Additional population will bring additional 
retail, office, and other commercial opportunities.  In 2004, Johnson-Gardner prepared a preliminary 
forecast for the need for office and retail commercial land.  Johnson-Gardner prepared a forecasts the 
need for office and retail commercial land (Table IV-6).   The office land need is a function of 
employment growth based on long-range forecasts by the Oregon Employment Department.  The retail 
land need is a function of household growth and typical household spending patterns.  In November 2009, 
the Oregon Employment Department issued new employment growth forecasts for the 2008-2018 period.  
The Newberg Planning Division then updated the commercial land need projections for the 2010-2040 
period based on this new data. Table IV-8 below updates adopted commercial land needs for the 2010-
2040 timeframe.  As an efficiency measure and in support of efforts to promote and redevelop downtown, 
total retail land needs have been reduced by 5%, assuming infill and redevelopment will occur in the 
downtown core and other commercial areas. 
 
Table IV-8.  Commercial Land Need 

Type 2005-2025 2026-2040 
Office 15 ac 27 ac 
Retail 96 ac 82 ac 
Total 111 ac 109 ac 

Source: Johnson Gardner 
 
Table IV-8: Commercial Land Need 2010-2040 

Type 2010-2030 2031-2040 
Office 19 ac 15 ac 
Retail 105 ac 61 ac 
Total 124 ac 76 ac 

Note: All acreages are gross buildable acres 
 

2. Commercial Land and Sites 
 
The commercial buildable land inventory inside the 2009 Newberg UGB has approximately 120 buildable 
acres.  Newberg has seven main commercial areas.  Table  IV-9 shows the location and amount of 
buildable land in each commercial area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



Table IV-9:  Buildable Commercial Land in Newberg UGB (2009) 

Location Potential Uses Buildable 
Acres 

Parcels over 
5 Acres 

Buildable 

Downtown Infill retail and office 
uses 1 0 

College/Mountainview 
Neighborhood Center 

Neighborhood or 
community commercial 

center 
12 1 

Springbrook Hospitality and 
Village 

Tourist retail and 
hospitality 25 2 

East Portland Road Community commercial 
center 28 2 

Portland Road Retail and office 19 1 

Riverfront Tourist retail and 
hospitality 10 0 

Providence Drive Medical Offices 25 2 
Total  120 8 

 

2. 3. Commercial Land Supply  
 
Overall, Newberg has nearly an adequate supply of commercial land to meet needs through 2030.  The 
overall land supply is weighted toward medical office land (Providence Drive) and tourist commercial 
land (Springbrook and Riverfront), and less toward general retail land.  There is land for two community 
commercial centers.  There is an overall deficit of 10 acres of retail commercial land. 

 
Table IV-10:  Commercial Land Supply and Need 

Type 2010-
2030 

Land 
in 2009 
UGB 

Surplus 
or 

(Deficit) 

2031-
2040 

Office 19 25 6 15 
Retail 105 95 (10) 61 
Total 124 120 (4) 76 

Source: Newberg’s Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future, Newberg Planning Division 
 
There is a need for 76 buildable acres for the time period from 2031-2040.  There is a built in assumption 
that approximately 5% of the commercial land need will be made up by downtown or other commercial 
area redevelopment and infill.  The remainder of the future commercial land supply should include an 
additional community commercial center and 2-3 neighborhood commercial centers.   

 
The commercial buildable land inventory inside the current Newberg UGB has approximately 105 acres, 
but consists mostly of small, scattered sites, with only 3 parcels larger than 5 acres.   Overall, Newberg 
has a deficit of commercial land through 2025.  Appropriate land will need to be designated commercial 
to meet future needs, through some combination of changing the plan designation of lands within the 
UGB and/or adding additional land to the UGB.   To meet the commercial land needs through 2040, 
additional land will need to be designated commercial. 

Page 85



Table IV-9.  Commercial Land Need and Supply 
Commerical Land 
Need 2005-2025 
(acres) 

Commercial Land in 
UGB (2004) 

2025 Surplus 
(Deficit) (acres)  

Commerical Land 
Need 2026-2040 
(acres) 

111  105  (6) 109 
 

D. INDUSTRIAL LAND NEED AND SUPPLY 
 

1. Industrial Land Need 
 
In November 2009, the Oregon Employment Department issued new employment growth forecasts for 
the 2008-2018 period.  The Newberg Planning Division then updated the industrial land need projections 
based on this new data.  For employment projections beyond 2018, employment was projected to grow at 
the same rate as the projected population growth.  This rate is in accordance with the safe harbor 
provision described in OAR 660-024-0040(9).   Johnson-Gardner prepared future industrial land forecasts 
based on long-range employment forecasts and converted the new jobs to space needs for each 
employment sector(Table IV-10). This forecast is based on a high employment growth scenario The 
employment projections are also consistent with Newberg’s economic development goals to bring more 
family-wage jobs to the area and to avoid becoming a bedroom community.1   
 
Newberg has identified four “target” industry clusters that are the foundation of its economy: 
manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism industry. In addition, there are 
regional “target industries” that can reasonably be attracted to our community. Newberg’s Economic 
Opportunities Analysis considers the size and type of sites needed by these target industries.  In addition 
to an As part of the overall supply of buildable land, Newberg needs to have sites available the that meet 
the specific needs of potential industrial users, so-called “target industries”. these industries.  A variety of 
parcel sizes, building types, and land use designations are required to attract target industries and provide 
market choice.  Economic trends indicate that just over half of Newberg’s future industrial employment 
will be located on sites of 10 acres or less.  Of those, one-third of the future new industrial firms under 10 
acres in size, and one-half of firms under 2 acres in size, will find a site through infill redevelopment or 
intensification of existing employment uses.  The remainder of Newberg’s future industrial employment 
will require larger parcels over 10 acres in size.  Table IV-10 below shows that Newberg has a need for 
183 gross buildable acres through 2030. 
 
Table IV-10: Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment (2010-2030) 

Employees 
per Firm 

Percent of 
Employment 

Number of 
Employees 

Number 
of 

Firms 
Sites 

Needed 

Size 
Range 
(Acres) 

Average 
Site 
Size 

(Acres) 

Average 
ROW 
Need 

(Acres) 

Gross 
Buildable 

Acres 
Needed 

0-9 15% 246 41 21 <2 1 0.15 24 

20 infill & redevelopment 0 

10 to 74 40% 657 19 13 2 - 10 5 0.75 75 

6 infill & redevelopment 0 

75 to 150 15% 246 2 2 10 - 30 20 1.00 42 

150+ 30% 493 1 1 30 - 50 40 2.00 42 

Total 100% 1,642 63 63       183 

                                                       
1 Johnson‐Gardner (2004), City of Newberg – Demand for Commercial and Industrial Land 

Page 86



 Source: Winterbrook Planning 2009, Newberg Planning Division 
 
Table IV-10.  Industrial Land Need 

 2005-2025 2026-2040 
Industrial 87 acres 75 acres 

Source: Johnson Gardner 
 
In 2005, there is a general lack of suitable large (20+ acre) industrial sites with access to a state highway 
and physical separation or transitional buffering from residential neighborhoods.Therefore, Newberg needs 
4 large (20+ acre) industrial sites for the period 2005-2025 and an additional 6 sites for the period 2026-
2040.  The assumption is that approximately 50 percent of the future industrial employment will take place 
on large parcels.   
 

2.  2025 2030 Industrial Land Supply and Need  
 
The city reviewed and updated the buildable industrial land inventory in 2009, consistent with the 
requirement in OAR 660-009-0015(3) for an inventory of industrial and other employment land.  The 
term “buildable industrial land” as used in this plan is consistent with the terms defined in OAR 660-009-
0005 as “total supply” of “vacant” or “developed” industrial land that is “suitable” and serviceable”.  
Table IV-11 shows the existing buildable land in the UGB as of 2009. 
 
Table IV-11: Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2009) 

Location Potential Uses Buildable 
Acres 

Site Sizes 

< 2 
ac. 

2-10 
ac. 

10-30 
ac. 

30-50 
ac. Total 

Springbrook 
Employment 

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office 

23  1 1  2 

Sportsman 
Airpark2 Airport Industrial 22 2 4   6 

Wynooski 
Industrial Light Industrial 10 1 2   3 

Elliot Road 
Industrial 

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office 

1 1    1 

Total 56 4 7 1 12 
 

The 2009 UGB contains 56 buildable industrial acres.  As shown in Table IV-12, Newberg has an 
identified need for one 30-50 acre site, two 10-30 acre sites, 45 acres of 2-10 acre sites, and 18 acres of 
sites under 2 acres in size.  This means that Newberg’s UGB should be expanded by approximately 127 
                                                       
2 The Sportsman Airpark contains on large 55-acre property that contains the existing airport, plus approximately 10.8 acres of 
buildable industrial land.  The approved Sportsman Airpark Master Plan includes a plan for developing the buildable industrial 
land into an industrial park with aviation related uses.  This site was counted in the 2-10 acre category, even though it contains 
slightly over 10 acres of buildable land, because the approved master plan envisions further division, and the aviation related 
uses are more likely to be separate smaller firms rather than one large firm. 

Page 87



buildable industrial acres to meet the future employment need.  This needs to include a 30 to 50 acre site, 
a 10 to 30 acre site, and industrial park sites totaling approximately 63 buildable acres.   

 

Table IV-12: 2010-2030 Industrial Land Supply and Need 

Size 
Range 
(Acres) 

Number 
of Sites - 
2009 UGB 

Buildable 
Acres - 

2009 
UGB 

2010-
2030 

Needed 
Sites

2010-2030 
Needed 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres

2010-2030 
Deficit # 
of Sites

2010-2030 
Deficit 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres 

<2 5  6  21 24 (16) (18) 
2 to 10 7  30  13 75 (6) (45) 
10 to 30 1  20  2 42 (1) (22) 
30 to 50 0  0  1 42 (1) (42) 
Total 13  56  37 183 (24) (127) 

Source:  Winterbrook Planning, City of Newberg 
 
The industrial buildable land inventory inside the current UGB has approximately 159 acres.  While this 
may seem to be a large supply, it is disadvantaged by a number of elements.  First, it consists mostly of 
small, scattered sites, with only 8 parcels larger than 5 acres and only 3 parcels that are 20 acres or larger. 
Second, several sites are hindered because of proximity to residential neighborhoods or other factors.  
Thus, some of the industrial should be rezoned for other uses.  Third, a significant part of the “buildable” 
land is in fact in industrial use, such as storage yards.  Also, the land need is adjusted to account for 
existing industrial uses that are displaced by the Newberg Dundee Bypass. 
 
Table IV-11.  2025 Industrial Land Supply and Need 

Industrial Site Size 2025 Need Supply Surplus/(Deficit)
Small/Medium sites (< 20 ac) 50 ac 99 ac 49 ac 

Large sites (20+ ac) 100 ac 60 ac (40) ac 
 
Inside the current UGB, the only one large site (20 acres) that is viable in the long term is at the 
Sportsman Airpark.  Two other sites are better suited for other uses long term.  Therefore, Newberg needs 
to look to add additional industrial land to its UGB. 
 
 
3. 2040 Industrial Land Supply and Need  
 
There is a projected need for 1,170 industrial employees for the period 2031-2040.  At an average of 11 
employees/acre, which represents a 10% increase in industrial density as a further efficiency measure, 
plus 10% of the land area for right-of-way (based on an a mix of small and large sites), this will generate 
an additional need for 117 gross buildable acres of land for the period 2031-2040.  
 
The period 2025 -2040 will have additional needs for industrial lands.  There is projected to be a need for 
37 acres of additional small/medium sites.  In addition, there will be a need for six large industrial sites 
(20 acres each).   
 
 
 

Page 88



Table IV-12.  2026-2040 Industrial Land Supply and Need 
Industrial Site Size 2026-2040 Need
Small/Medium sites (< 20 ac) 37 ac 
Large sites (20+ ac) 120 ac 
 
 
 

Page 89



Exhibit C: Findings to             
Ordinance 2010‐2723 

The revised Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) must comply with the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan, Statewide Planning Goal 9, ORS 197.638, and ORS 197.712.  Below are 
the findings to these criteria.   

I. Newberg Comprehensive Plan 

Section H. The Economy – Goal: To develop a diverse and stable economic base. 

Finding:  The EOA is considered the “implementation” portion of Section H in the 
Comprehensive Plan, and as such it strives to implement this goal and its associated policies in 
Section H of the Newberg Comprehensive Plan.  The EOA contains many elements, including 
information on local and regional targeted industries, the site size and suitability characteristics 
of those targeted industries, Newberg’s comparative advantages and disadvantages, and an 
economic development strategy with actions to address the comparative advantages and 
disadvantages to strengthen Newberg’s standing in the regional marketplace to attract the 
targeted industries.  The action items found in the EOA are linked back directly to the policies 
they implement from Section H of the Comprehensive Plan.  All of these things combine to work 
toward meeting the goal of developing a diverse and stable economic base.  This goal could not 
be met without a revised and updated EOA because economic statistics and market forces change 
over time, requiring constant monitoring and updating for the economic strategy to stay relevant.  
Therefore, the revised and updated EOA best helps implement this goal of the Comprehensive 
Plan.   

II. Statewide Planning Goal 9: Economic Development – To provide adequate 
opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic activities vital to the 
health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens.  

Comprehensive Plans for urban areas shall: 
1. Include an analysis of the community’s economic patterns, potentialities, 

strengths, and deficiencies as they relate to state and national trends; 
2. Contain policies concerning the economic development opportunities in the 

community; 
3. Provide for at least an adequate supply of sites of suitable sizes, types, locations, 

and service levels for a variety of industrial and commercial uses consistent with 
plan policies; 

4. Limit uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and commercial uses to 
those which are compatible with proposed uses. 

Page 90



A.1.  A principal determinant in planning for major industrial and commercial 
developments should be the comparative advantage of the region within which the 
developments would be located. Comparative advantage industries are those economic 
activities which represent the most efficient use of resources, relative to other geographic 
areas. 

A.2.  The economic development projections and the comprehensive plan which is 
drawn from the projections should take into account the availability of the necessary 
natural resources to support the expanded industrial development and associated 
populations. The plan should also take into account the social, environmental, energy, 
and economic impacts upon the resident population. 
 
A.3.  Plans should designate the type and level of public facilities and services 
appropriate to support the degree of economic development being proposed. 
 
A.4.  Plans should strongly emphasize the expansion of and increased productivity from 
existing industries and firms as a means to strengthen local and regional economic 
development. 
 
A.5.  Plans directed toward diversification and improvement of the economy of the 
planning area should consider as a major determinant, the carrying capacity of the air, 
land and water resources of the planning area. The land conservation and development 
actions provided for by such plans should not exceed the carrying capacity of such 
resources. 

 
Finding:  The EOA is Section 12 (The Economy) of the Inventory of Natural and Cultural 
Resources, which is the base document that the Comprehensive Plan and its goals and policies is 
based on.  The revised EOA includes the elements required above: an analysis of Newberg’s 
economic patterns, forecasts, comparative advantages and disadvantages (strengths and 
deficiencies); provisions for an adequate supply of sites of suitable sizes, types, locations, and 
service levels for a variety of industrial and commercial uses consistent with plan policies; and 
compatibility requirements that limit uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and 
commercial uses to those which are compatible with proposed uses.  The Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan contains policies concerning the economic development opportunities in the 
community.   
 
The revised EOA includes a robust discussion of Newberg’s comparative advantages and 
disadvantages related to the regional economic marketplace.  Newberg has identified four 
business clusters that are the foundation of its economy and that economic development efforts 
will be focused on, including: manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism 
industry.  The updated buildable land inventories in the revised EOA indicate a shortage of both 
types of land; the City will make future efforts to remedy this situation to ensure Newberg’s 
economic health. The Comprehensive Plan considers the availability of resources to support a 
growing population, and has goals and policies to ensure that adequate provisions are made.  In 
addition, the City has a Transportation System Plan, a Sewer Master Plan, a Water Master Plan, 

Page 91



and a Storm Drainage Master Plan that detail the type and level of public facilities for current 
and future developments.   
 
The first strategy of Newberg’s economic development efforts focuses on retention and 
expansion of existing businesses.  Several of the home-grown industries that reflect Newberg’s 
four main business clusters have become national and international leaders in their respective 
fields.  The revised EOA details Newberg’s commitment to its existing businesses and firms, 
including a list of strategies and actions that are intended to help Newberg assist its local 
economic partners.    
 
III. ORS 197.638 Department of Land Conservation and Development may request 

review by Economic and Community Development Department of local inventory 
and analysis of industrial and commercial land.  
(1) Upon request of the Department of Land Conservation and Development, the 

Economic and Community Development Department shall review the inventory and 
analysis of industrial and commercial land, and measures taken to address the land 
needs, required of certain local governments under ORS 197.712. The review shall 
address the likely effect of measures developed by a local government on the 
adequacy of the supply of sites and opportunities to satisfy needs identified under 
ORS 197.712. 

(2) The Land Conservation and Development Commission and the Director of the 
Department of Land Conservation and Development shall consider the review and 
any recommendations of the Economic and Community Development Department 
when determining whether a local government has complied with the statewide land 
use planning goals and the requirements of ORS 197.712. [1999 c.622 §13] 

 
Finding:  Newberg worked closely with its regional Business Development Officer, Tom Fox, 
from the Oregon Business Development Department (formerly the Oregon Economic and 
Community Development Department) regarding the analysis of industrial and commercial land 
needs.  Mr. Fox reviewed the information in the revised EOA, including the site size ranges by 
targeted industry cluster and sector, site size distribution by firm employment, and required site 
suitability characteristics, and concurs that they are viable for firms seeking sites in Oregon and 
for Newberg’s targeted industries.  In addition, he noted that the City should have success in 
expanding and attracting businesses in the targeted industry clusters if they follow the site size 
and suitability criteria for development sites (see letter from Tom Fox, dated December 1, 2009 –  
Attachment 2 to the staff report). 

IV. ORS 197.712 Commission duties; comprehensive plan provisions; public facility 
plans; state agency coordination plans; compliance deadline; rules.  
(1) In addition to the findings and policies set forth in ORS 197.005, 197.010 and 

215.243, the Legislative Assembly finds and declares that, in carrying out statewide 
comprehensive land use planning, the provision of adequate opportunities for a 
variety of economic activities throughout the state is vital to the health, welfare and 
prosperity of all the people of the state. 

(2) By the adoption of new goals or rules, or the application, interpretation or amendment 
of existing goals or rules, the Land Conservation and Development Commission shall 
implement all of the following: 

Page 92



(a) Comprehensive plans shall include an analysis of the community’s economic 
patterns, potentialities, strengths and deficiencies as they relate to state and 
national trends. 

(b) Comprehensive plans shall contain policies concerning the economic 
development opportunities in the community. 

(c) Comprehensive plans and land use regulations shall provide for at least an 
adequate supply of sites of suitable sizes, types, locations and service levels 
for industrial and commercial uses consistent with plan policies. 

(d) Comprehensive plans and land use regulations shall provide for compatible 
uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and commercial uses. 

(e) A city or county shall develop and adopt a public facility plan for areas within 
an urban growth boundary containing a population greater than 2,500 persons. 
The public facility plan shall include rough cost estimates for public projects 
needed to provide sewer, water and transportation for the land uses 
contemplated in the comprehensive plan and land use regulations. Project 
timing and financing provisions of public facility plans shall not be considered 
land use decisions. 

(f) In accordance with ORS 197.180, state agencies that provide funding for 
transportation, water supply, sewage and solid waste facilities shall identify in 
their coordination programs how they will coordinate that funding with other 
state agencies and with the public facility plans of cities and counties. In 
addition, state agencies that issue permits affecting land use shall identify in 
their coordination programs how they will coordinate permit issuance with 
other state agencies and cities and counties. 

(g) Local governments shall provide: 
(A) Reasonable opportunities to satisfy local and rural needs for residential 

and industrial development and other economic activities on appropriate 
lands outside urban growth boundaries, in a manner consistent with 
conservation of the state’s agricultural and forest land base; and 

(B) Reasonable opportunities for urban residential, commercial and industrial 
needs over time through changes to urban growth boundaries. 

(3) A comprehensive plan and land use regulations shall be in compliance with this 
section by the first periodic review of that plan and regulations. [1983 c.827 §17; 
1991 c.612 §17] 

 
Finding:  The revised EOA includes a comparative analysis of Newberg’s economic patterns, 
potentialities, advantages and disadvantages.  In addition, it features a section that discusses 
Newberg’s industrial and commercial land needs and supply, including site size ranges and 
suitability characteristics.  The Comprehensive Plan contains policies concerning economic 
development opportunities in the community and provisions for compatibility with industrial and 
commercial uses.  The City also has several public facility plans, including the Transportation 
System Plan, the Sewer Master Plan, the Water Master Plan, and the Storm Drainage Master 
Plan.  The revised EOA, with its updated buildable land inventories and other information, 
provides the basis for the City to meet future urban land needs over time through changes to the 
urban growth boundary.   

Page 93



V. OAR 660-009-0015 – Economic Opportunities Analysis  

Cities and counties must review and, as necessary, amend their comprehensive plans to 
provide economic opportunities analyses containing the information described in sections 
(1) to (4) of this rule. This analysis will compare the demand for land for industrial and 
other employment uses to the existing supply of such land.  

(1) Review of National, State, Regional, County and Local Trends. The economic 
opportunities analysis must identify the major categories of industrial or other 
employment uses that could reasonably be expected to locate or expand in the 
planning area based on information about national, state, regional, county or local 
trends. This review of trends is the principal basis for estimating future industrial and 
other employment uses as described in section (4) of this rule. A use or category of 
use could reasonably be expected to expand or locate in the planning area if the area 
possesses the appropriate locational factors for the use or category of use. Cities and 
counties are strongly encouraged to analyze trends and establish employment 
projections in a geographic area larger than the planning area and to determine the 
percentage of employment growth reasonably expected to be captured for the 
planning area based on the assessment of community economic development 
potential pursuant to section (4) of this rule.  

(2) Identification of Required Site Types. The economic opportunities analysis must 
identify the number of sites by type reasonably expected to be needed to 
accommodate the expected employment growth based on the site characteristics 
typical of expected uses. Cities and counties are encouraged to examine existing firms 
in the planning area to identify the types of sites that may be needed for expansion. 
Industrial or other employment uses with compatible site characteristics may be 
grouped together into common site categories.  

(3) Inventory of Industrial and Other Employment Lands. Comprehensive plans for all 
areas within urban growth boundaries must include an inventory of vacant and 
developed lands within the planning area designated for industrial or other 
employment use.  
(a) For sites inventoried under this section, plans must provide the following 

information:  
(A) The description, including site characteristics, of vacant or developed sites 

within each plan or zoning district;  
(B) A description of any development constraints or infrastructure needs that 

affect the buildable area of sites in the inventory; and  
(C) For cities and counties within a Metropolitan Planning Organization, the 

inventory must also include the approximate total acreage and percentage of 
sites within each plan or zoning district that comprise the short-term supply of 
land.  

(b) When comparing current land supply to the projected demand, cities and counties 
may inventory contiguous lots or parcels together that are within a discrete plan or 
zoning district.  

Page 94



(c) Cities and counties that adopt objectives or policies providing for prime industrial 
land pursuant to OAR 660-009-0020(6) and 660-009-0025(8) must identify and 
inventory any vacant or developed prime industrial land according to section 3(a) 
of this rule.  

 
(4) Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential. The economic 

opportunities analysis must estimate the types and amounts of industrial and other 
employment uses likely to occur in the planning area. The estimate must be based on 
information generated in response to sections (1) to (3) of this rule and must consider 
the planning area's economic advantages and disadvantages. Relevant economic 
advantages and disadvantages to be considered may include but are not limited to:  
(a) Location, size and buying power of markets;  
(b) Availability of transportation facilities for access and freight mobility;  
(c) Public facilities and public services;  
(d) Labor market factors;  
(e) Access to suppliers and utilities;  
(f) Necessary support services;  
(g) Limits on development due to federal and state environmental protection laws;  
(h) Educational and technical training programs.  

(5) Cities and counties are strongly encouraged to assess community economic 
development potential through a visioning or some other public input based process 
in conjunction with state agencies. Cities and counties are strongly encouraged to use 
the assessment of community economic development potential to form the 
community economic development objectives pursuant to OAR 660-009-0020(1)(a).  

Finding:  The revised EOA contains the information described n sections (1) through (4) of 
OAR 660-009-0015.  Section II of the EOA is the Economic Trends Analysis, which included 
the following items: national, state and regional trends; regional economic development industry 
clusters and target industries; Yamhill County agri-business; regional industrial land availability; 
Newberg population profile; and Newberg employment characteristics.  Newberg has identified 
four business clusters that are the foundation of its economy – manufacturing, health care, higher 
education, and the wine/tourism industry – and the majority of its economic development efforts 
will go into recruitment and expansion of existing businesses.  Most businesses associated with 
Newberg’s targeted business clusters have similar site suitability characteristics they need to 
develop.  In the revised EOA, Tables 12-19 through 12-22 and Table 12-29 illustrate the site size 
ranges by targeted industrial cluster and sector, targeted industry clusters and sectors by site size 
ranges and existing Newberg industrial firm examples, site size distribution by firm employment 
(2010-2030), required industrial site suitability characteristics, and required commercial site 
suitability characteristics. 

The revised EOA includes an inventory of industrial and other employment lands within the 
urban growth boundary.  The buildable land inventories have been updated, and the existing 
industrial and commercial areas are labeled and discussed in Section V, Industrial and 

Page 95



Commercial Land Needs and Supply.  The existing industrial and commercial areas within the 
UGB are also shown graphically on Figure 12-3, Buildable Industrial Land, and Figure 12-4, 
Commercial Areas and Buildable Commercial Land.   

Section III of the revised EOA is the Assessment of Community Economic Development 
Potential.  This section includes employment projections, Newberg’s comparative advantages 
and disadvantages, and a discussion of Newberg’s special opportunities to capitalize on its 
unique niche geographically and in the regional marketplace.  Newberg’s comparative 
advantages and disadvantages include the following: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Newberg’s economic development strategy is discussed in Section IV of the revised EOA.  This 
section includes actions to capitalize on Newberg’s comparative advantages and to address the 
comparative disadvantages.   

Advantages: 
• Small town quality of life 
• Access to quality education and 

skills training 
• Established and growing industry 

clusters 
• Strong local support for business and 

employment opportunities 
• Proximity to the Portland 

Metropolitan region 
• Future Newberg-Dundee Bypass 
• Oregon’s statewide planning goals 

Disadvantages: 
• Transportation and access issues 
• Lack of suitable employment sites 
• Highly parcelized land outside 

UGB limits ability to meet 
employment site requirements 

• Stressed commercial sector 
• Retail dollar leakage due to close 

proximity to metropolitan area 
markets 

• Market pressures on SP Newsprint 
• Oregon’s statewide planning goals 

Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



1

Jessica Nunley

From: Oulman, Steve [steve.oulman@state.or.us]
Sent: Monday, November 30, 2009 1:51 PM
To: Barton Brierley
Cc: Jessica Nunley; Hogue, Thomas
Subject: Newberg EOA - local file CPTA4-09-001

  
Barton –  
  
After a brief conversation with Jessica this morning, I reviewed the revised economic opportunities analysis (EOA) sent to 
us on November 25.  It appears that this revised document reflects items you and I talked about on November 19.  As 
such, I don’t anticipate that the department will have further comments on this post-acknowledgement plan amendment.
  
In the revised EOA, staff revised discussion of transportation opportunities and constraints, strengthened and clarified the 
economic development actions and strategies the city will undertake, clarified that land needs are counted as “gross” 
acres, and refined the analysis of industrial and commercial land needs for the 20-year planning period as well as an 
additional need to the year 2040.   
  
We understand that this EOA will provide significant basis for a forthcoming urban growth boundary expansion.  Such a 
proposal likely will be reviewed by the department and LCDC in the manner of periodic review and LCDC may review the 
EOA plan amendment in the context of evaluating goal compliance of a UGB proposal.   
  
  
  
Steven M. Oulman, AICP | Regional Representative, Mid-Willamette Valley 
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development 
635 Capitol Street NE, Suite 150 | Salem, OR  97301-2540 
Desk: 503.373.0050 x 259 | Fax: 503.378.5518 
steve.oulman@state.or.us | www.oregon.gov/lcd  
  
  
  
  

Page 185



 

INDUSTRIAL & OFFICE LAND NEED METHODOLOGY 
 
Demand for industrial and office land is a direct function of employment growth in industrial sectors 
that occupy these type of space.  As a result, our projections of industrial and office demand are based 
on forecasted employment growth by industrial sector within the City of Newberg. Methodology for 
forecasting need for industrial and office land follow a standard, multi-step process, summarized 
below. 
 
STEP 1: EMPLOYMENT GROWTH FORECAST 
 
Johnson Gardner forecast employment growth by industry for the City of Newberg through 2025 
and 2040 based on Newberg data provided to Johnson Gardner by the State of Oregon Employment 
Department and Yamhill County employment data generally available from the Oregon 
Employment Department. Three employment growth scenarios were estimated for the City of 
Newberg for sensitivity analysis purposes: Medium Growth, Low Growth and High Growth. 
 

 Medium Growth Scenario: Assumes employment growth rates for Yamhill County industries 
estimated by Oregon Employment Department converted to NAICS by Johnson Gardner, 
LLC. 

 High Growth Scenario: Assumes employment growth rates for Yamhill County industries 
estimated in the Regional Industrial Land Study Phase II (Otak, Inc., et al, 1999) report 
converted to NAICS by Johnson Gardner. 

 Low Growth Scenario: Assumes employment growth rates for Yamhill County 20% slower 
than those in the Medium Growth Scenario. 

 
Over a longer time span, Newberg’s economy can be expected to experience changes in its industry 
composition. To model the likelihood of these changes, Johnson Gardner further assumed Newberg’s 
share by industry of Yamhill County employment would change at similar rates exhibited between 
1990 and 2000 as measured by Oregon Employment Department. 
 
STEP 2A: DEMAND FOR INDUSTRIAL BUILDING SPACE 
 
Newberg sectoral employment growth for each of the three economic scenarios is converted into 
growth in industrial employment based on typical percentages of employment by sector that will be 
located in industrial space.  Employment is then further stratified by type of space, including 
warehouse/distribution, general industrial and high-tech/flex space.  Finally, employment density 
ratios, calculated as average square feet of space necessary per industrial job, were utilized to calculate 
total space demand by industrial space type given projected employment growth. These ratios and 
densities are based on industry standards from the aforementioned Regional Industrial Land Study. 
 
 STEP 2B: DEMAND FOR INDUSTRIAL LAND 
 
Demand for industrial land is a conversion of demand for space by floor area ratios (FARs) by 
industrial development type and the addition of non-industrial use demand for industrial land typical 
of business park space. Projections utilize the following FARs from the Regional Industrial Lands 
Study: 

 Warehouse/Distribution: 0.31 
 General Industrial: 0.30; and 
 High-Tech/Flex: 0.26. 

520 SW SIXTH AVENUE, SUITE 914  PORTLAND, OR  97204  503/295-7832  503/295-1107 (FAX) 

Page 186



 

Second, a 20% non-industrial use demand for land was assumed for industrial land projections as 
implemented in the Regional Industrial Lands Study. 
 
STEP 3A: DEMAND FOR OFFICE BUILDING SPACE 
 
Sector employment growth for each of the three economic scenarios (Step 1) is converted into growth 
in office employment based on typical percentages of jobs, or capture factors, by sector that will be 
located in office development rather than industrial development.  Employment density ratios, the 
average space in square feet necessary per office job, were utilized to calculate total office space 
demand given projected employment growth. Ratios and densities utilized are from the Urban Land 
Institute. 
 
STEP 3B: DEMAND FOR OFFICE LAND 
 
Like industrial land need, demand for office land is a conversion of demand for space by an office 
floor area ratio (FAR). For projections under each of the three Newberg economic scenarios, Johnson 
Gardner assumed the industry-standard 0.40 FAR. 
 
RETAIL COMMERCIAL LAND NEED METHODOLOGY 
 
Unlike industrial and office land need, retail land need is a direct function of household moving into 
Newberg and typical spending patterns by those households. Methodology for forecasting retail 
commercial land need is summarized below. 
 
STEP 1: HOUSEHOLD GROWTH PROJECTIONS 
 
For modeling growth in retail commercial land need, Johnson Gardner simply utilized household 
growth projections found in the Residential Land Needs forecasts. Medium, high and low growth 
scenarios, and resulting household population forecasts through 2040, were used accordingly. 
 
STEP 2: ESTIMATE NEWBERG PER-HOUSEHOLD RETAIL SPENDING 
 
JOHNSON GARDNER estimated per-household annual spending by retail category utilizing data from 
Claritas, Incorporated, the national industry-leading retail statistics data provider. Categories are as 
detailed in the following table by the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS). 
 

Per Household
NAICS Category Expenditures

4413 Automotive Parts, Accessories and Tire Stores $5,501
442 Furniture and Home Furnishings Stores $861
443 Electronics and Appliance Stores $2,181
444 Building Materials and Garden Equipment $875
445 Food and Beverage Stores $6,910
446 Health and Personal Care Stores $1,897
448 Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores $3,756
451 Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book and Music Stores $1,904
452 General Merchandise Stores $1,160
453 Miscellaneous Store Retailers $715
722 Foodservices and Drinking Places $3,458

Totals/Weighted Averages $29,218

 

CITY OF NEWBERG – DEMAND FOR COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL LAND PAGE 2

Page 187



 

STEP 3: ESTIMATE FUTURE NEWBERG RETAIL SALES 
 
Future retail sales in Newberg were simply calculated as the product of future Newberg household 
counts under the medium, high, and low growth scenarios through 2040 and annual average retail 
sales by category estimated in Step 2. 
 
STEP 4: DEMAND FOR RETAIL BUILDING SPACE 
 
Future retail sales are converted into need for developed retail space by calculating the product of 
future Newberg retail sales by category to a category-specific Sales Support Factor. The Sales Support 
Factor is the national average retail sales per square foot of space for each category of retail. Sales 
support factors are from the Urban Land Institute publication Dollars & Cents. Sales Support Factors 
are summarized below. 
 

Sales Support
NAICS Category Factor 

4413 Automotive Parts, Accessories and Tire Stores $139
442 Furniture and Home Furnishings Stores $173
443 Electronics and Appliance Stores $200
444 Building Materials and Garden Equipment $128
445 Food and Beverage Stores $312
446 Health and Personal Care Stores $230
448 Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores $217
451 Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book and Music Stores $195
452 General Merchandise Stores $139
453 Miscellaneous Store Retailers $192
722 Foodservices and Drinking Places $236

Totals/Weighted Averages

 
 
STEP 5: DEMAND FOR RETAIL COMMERCIAL LAND 
 
Demand estimates for developed retail space at different time points was then converted into demand 
for retail commercial land by applying the industry-standard retail Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 0.25. 
The FAR assumes standard suburban retail space requiring one parking space per 1,000 square feet of 
retail floor area. 
 
SUMMARY OF INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL LAND NEED FINDINGS 
 
Resulting calculations for the methodologies described above are summarized in the following table. 
Projections of net new demand in Newberg for commercial and industrial land between 2004 and 
2025, as well as longer-term demand from 2004 to 2040 are detailed. 
 
Through 2025, net new demand for industrial and commercial land is estimated to range from 117.5 
acres to 273.5 acres depending upon whether Newberg realizes low economic growth or high 
economic growth. The baseline “Medium Growth Scenario” indicates that Newberg will see demand 
for industrial and commercial land reach nearly 146 acres through 2025.  
 
Through 2040, net new demand for commercial and industrial land is estimated to reach anywhere 
from 209.3 acres to 509.9 acres under the “Low Growth” and “High Growth” scenarios, respectively. 

CITY OF NEWBERG – DEMAND FOR COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL LAND PAGE 3

Page 188



 

Again, the “High Growth Scenario” is best summarized as greater strength in Newberg’s 
manufacturing core, thus much greater overall demand for industrial and office space as a result. The 
baseline “Medium Growth Scenario” exhibits likely industrial and commercial land need in the 
neighborhood o f 269 acres through 2040. 
 

Use 2025 2040 2025 2040 2025 2040
Office 14.8 27.1 20.5 37.8 13.7 24.8
Industrial 34.7 63.8 85.6 161.4 27.0 49.3
Retail 96.2 178.3 167.4 310.7 76.8 135.2

Total 145.7 269.2 273.5 509.9 117.5 209.3
SOURCE: Johnson Gardner LLC

Medium Growth High Growth Low Growth
Net New Demand for Land (acres) By Scenario From 2004 Through:

NET NEW DEMAND FOR COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL LAND
NEWBERG, OREGON
2004-2025 & 2004-2040

MEDIUM, HIGH AND LOW GROWTH SCENARIOS

 
 
Need for retail drives the vast majority of commercial land demand under all three scenarios. Under 
the “Medium Growth Scenario,” retail drives the largest share (66%) followed closely under the “Low 
Growth Scenario” at 65% of need. Retail, though still the majority of demand, accounts for 61% of 
commercial and industrial land in the future with the “High Growth” assumption due to the 
significantly greater expected growth of manufacturing jobs under that scenario. 
 
It is important to note that the above forecasts for industrial and commercial land need are net 
acreage required only for building and impervious surface space requirements. Roads, right-of-ways, 
parks and public facilities, among other things, necessary to serve projected land development has not 
been included. A gross-up factor of 25% is commonly utilized by jurisdictions for planning purposes 
to estimate gross land need, though that would be at the discretion of The City of Newberg given its 
specific planning requirements. 
 

CITY OF NEWBERG – DEMAND FOR COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL LAND PAGE 4

Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



        Mountain West Real Estate, LLC

Chauni Gray, Broker
503-373-3103
877-862-4591
cgray@cbcre.com

James O� o Gray, Broker
503-587-4782
877-862-4591
jgray@cbcre.com

 Recent Transactions
1100 Madison St. NE, Salem - Sold for $105,000

Tax Lot 1101, Lyons-Mill City Dr., Lyons - Sold for $190,000

2754 Hwy 99E, Hubbard - Sold for $900,000

Lot 3 Industrial Way, Hubbard - Sold for $260,000

580 19th St. SE, Salem - Sold for $237,200

2844 Hwy 99E, Hubbard - Leased 5,000 SF at $0.65/SF/MO - NNN

Current Client Needs
Lease - 3,000 SF retail space with 9-10,000 SF warehouse in Salem area. Needed by Feb. 2008.

Lease - .5 to 1 acre with a 30-40,000 SF building in Salem area, Industrial General zoned. 10,000 SF 
of� ce space and the rest in warehouse. Dock and grade doors, 3-phase power and 18'-20' ceiling 
height.

Sale - 1.5 to 3 acres of bare land along I-5 corridor. Utilities need to be readily available to site and 
existing surface streets. Required zone: commercial use or any zone used for lodging. 

Sale - 5-10,000 SF building anywhere between Salem and Brooks. Building requirements include 1 
dock door, 1 grade door and easy freeway access.

Lease - 7-30,000 SF building with dock in the Salem area. Site needs fenced area for company 
vehicles.

Sale - Bare land or build-to-suit 30,000 SF building with 5 acres.

Sale - 40,000 SF building on 3-4 acres. Building requirements include 3-phase power with 1200 amps, 
18'-24' ceiling height, minimal of� ce space. Preferably located in Beaverton, Canby, Woodburn or 
Salem.

Sale/Lease - 10,000 SF building, Industrial General or Light Industrial zoned. Preferably located 
anywhere between Salem and Woodburn.

Lease - 3-4,000 SF building with .25 to .5 acres for yard. Building requirements include 16'-18' ceiling 
height, small of� ce and rest room. Preferably located anywhere between Woodburn and Albany.

Sale - Industrial building with 9-10% cap rate. Retail or of� ce properties will be considered.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Page 225



James Otto Gray PC, Broker
503.587.4782
877.862.4591
jgray@cbcre.com

Chauni Gray, Broker
503.373.3103
877.862.4591
cgray@cbcre.com

Mountain West Real Estate, LLC

Wilco Rd. - Stayton, OR
Sale Price: $2,267,770.00
Size: 12.25 +/- AC in three parcels
Zone: Light Industrial  
Features: Property can be purchased as a package or separately.  Water and sewer are 
stubbed to the parcel.

Current Client Needs
1.  Purchase - Investor looking for income producing property.  Prefers Industrial but will consider 
Retail or Of� ce.
2.  Lease/Purchase - 10,000 - 20,000 SF with 1,500 to 2,000 SF of of� ce; 3 phase 1,000 amps or more 
electrical; 1 AC yard and bridge cranes (optional).  Prefers location in Donald, Hubbard, Canby, 
Oregon City or Woodburn. 
3.  Purchase - 1.5 to 3 AC of bare land along I-5 corridor.  Utilites and existing surface streets need to 
be readily available to site.  Required zone:  commercial use or any zone for lodging. 
4. Lease/Purchase -  10,000 - 20,000 SF building; 1 grade door; 220V power and 1 restroom with yard 
area in the Salem to Brooks area.  Needs close access to I-5.
5.  Purchase - Bare land to do build-to-suit on 2-5 acres.  To build 24,000-30,000 SF single story 
building with 1-2 docks; 1-2 grade doors; 20’ ceiling height and of� ce.

4th and Birch St. - Turner, OR  (Lots 6300 & 7700)
Lease Rate: $0.45/SF/MO - NNN (approx. cost for build-to-suit)
Size: 10,000 SF +/-  Build-to-suit
Zone: M1  
Features: Rare build-to-suit opportunity in Turner.  Fenced yard; warehouse/of� ce buildouts 
and grade level doors are negotiable.

13201 Wilco Hwy - Woodburn, OR
Sale Price: $1,414,000.00
Size: Bldg #1  16,000 SF +/-   Bldg #2  12,000 SF +/-  Bldg #3  2,400 +/-
Zone: Industrial/Commercial General  
Features: Property has 3 buildings and a 3 bedroom/2 bath manufactured home on 
approx. 3.22 AC +/- .  Power 3 phase 240V.  Easy access to I-5.

Tax Lot 800
Not part of Sale

580 19th St. SE Sp. B - Salem, OR  
Lease Rate: $0.47/SF/MO - MG
Size: 2,250 SF +/- 
Zone: IG  
Features: Newly remodeled one story concrete block building.  2 grade level doors; ceiling 
height approx. 13’6”; power 110-220V;  253 SF+/- of� ce ; restroom and mezzanine storage.  
Great location for easy access to all points of Salem as well as I-5.

Page 226



James Otto Gray PC, Broker
503.587.4782
877.862.4591
jgray@cbcre.com

Chauni Gray, Broker
503.373.3103
877.862.4591
cgray@cbcre.com

Mountain West Real Estate, LLC

Recent Transactions
19527 Grim Rd - Aurora, OR   5 year lease 93,500 SF $.265/SF/MO - NNN
580 19th St. SE Sp. A - Salem, OR   5 year lease 1,625 SF $650.00/MO - MG
580 19th St. SE Sp. B - Salem, OR   3 year lease 2,250 SF $950.00/MO - MG
3589 Fairview Industrial Way - Salem, OR MO to MO 2,221 SF $1200.00/MO - MG
340 Thelma Lane NE - Salem, OR   3 year lease 6,000 SF $.35/SF/MO - MG
7720 4th St. - Turner, OR    3 year lease 3,456 SF $1200.00/MO - MG

Our doors are always open for you at 250 Division St. NE - Salem, OR 

Page 227



From: Roger Currier [mailto:rcurrier@hevanet.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, December 02, 2009 9:42 PM 
To: Barton Brierley; Dan Danicic 
Cc: Matson Haug 
Subject: UGB meeting 
 
Planning Commissioners: 
  
Please consider the  growth of Newberg's UGB of 2100 acres very carefully. I would question the need 
for this large of inclusion at this time for many reasons, a couple of which will attempt to write about. 
  
The first is the fact of the decrease in population growth that we and the surrounding cities have seen. 
Newberg is down to 2.2% and Mac is down to only 1.1% . Given this alone should give you thought as to 
a need of this size! You are told to consider almost all the easy to build on and easy to service land for 
the new UGB. So then when it comes time for a future group to do so again it will be very costly because 
there will be nothing left for easy quick inclusion!   
  
Secondly; the fact of using very large percentage of very prime farmland to pave over that will never 
produce another fruit,vegetable, or grain crop ever is terrible to think of! Maybe this could lend itself to re-
thinking the class of soils involved?  Maybe you could delete some of the projection for addition to help 
save our land? Maybe you could piece meal the growth in several other areas (that cost more to service) 
to help save what Newberg was and is known for, an agricultural area of diverse farming?  
  
Third would be to ask staff to produce to you a survey of the vacant Industrial and Commercial property 
that is sitting vacant and unused right now in Newberg. Even the fact that Newberg owns the sewage 
pre-treatment tank in the North section of town on Illinois Street that could be pumped to and used if 
needed.  Maybe we should be working more at helping to fill and use our vacant resources that we 
have? Maybe we need to think about  building that second and third story on the 2nd street parking lot 
for other things? Maybe we could build affordable housing on the second or third story and parking on 
the other one? I am sure that some contractor would love to get into a project like that! 
  
The forth item would be that of what will happen if you accept all this expansion and then the Bypass is 
not built? We the City, County or even State have no money to build any roads to help move all that 
traffic that will be projected  to use this land! We will have to use our old roads that are falling apart now 
to try and move all these cars and trucks. WE can only hope that  they do not go toward Dundee or 
McMinnville! I know everyone says that they will build the bypass soon. How many years has soon been 
stretched out now? Maybe 30 plus that I can recall. 
  
So lets try to keep Newberg what it is known for and what we all moved and live here for. We do not 
have to do any massive expansion just because we are told that we "might" need it by projections. How 
often are they really correct? Do we have to believe and go with a trend or can we wait and work toward 
a plan when we really need it maybe only a year or two in advance with the idea (for infrastructure and 
planning) that we may use this land then. I am not  a NO growth person! But I would like to see Newberg 
look like what people liked about the area left till we really need it. 
  
Thank You very Much for Your Consideration 
  
Roger Currier  
( 61 year resident )  
Newberg,Oregon 
 

Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



G:\RECORDER\MEETING INFORMATION SHEETS\MEETING INFORMATION SHEET 2010-0201.DOC Page 1 of 1 

 NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MEETING INFORMATION 
 
Meeting Date: February 1, 2010 Prepared by: Norma Alley 
 
Councilors 

 
Roll 
Call 

 
MOTION 
 
Topic: Consent 
Calendar – Boy 
Scouts 
Proclamation, 
Minutes for 
1/4/2010 

 
RESOLUTION 
NO. 2010-2884 
 
Topic: 
Municipal Judge 
Oath of Office 

 
ORDINANCE 
NO. 2010-2723 
 
Topic: Economic 
Opportunities 
Analysis 
 

Not Accept 
Written 

Comments Into 
the Record 

 
ORDINANCE 
NO. 2010-2723 
 
Topic: Economic 
Opportunities 
Analysis 
 

With Two 
Proposed 
Changes 

 
Res/Ord/Order 
#____________ 
 
Topic: 

 
Res/Ord/Order 
#____________ 
 
Topic: 

 
Res/Ord/Order 
#_____________ 
 
Topic: 

ANDREWS, Bob, Mayor X YES YES NO YES    

BACON, Denise X YES YES YES YES    

LARSON, Bob X YES YES YES YES    

McKINNEY, Stephen X YES YES YES YES    

RIERSON, Bart X YES YES YES YES    

SHELTON, Marc X YES YES YES YES    

WITHERSPOON, Wade X YES YES ABSTAIN YES    

ROLL CALL VOTES 

 
 

 
YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

 
YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

 
YES: 5 
NO: 1 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 1 

 
YES: 7 
NO: 0 
Absent: 0 
Abstain: 0 

 
YES:  
NO:   
Absent:  
Abstain:  

 
YES:  
NO:  
Absent:  
Abstain:  

 
YES:  
NO:  
Absent:  
Abstain:  

Department Prepared 
Action Item:  Administration Legal Planning Planning    

MOTION (1st/2nd):  Shelton/ 
McKinney 

Shelton/ 
Rierson 

Shelton/ 
Larson 

Shelton/ 
Larson    

 
 


	Agenda
	Resolution No. 2010-2884 - Municipal Judge Appointment
	Proclamation for Scouting Anniversary Week
	Council Minutes for January 4, 2010
	Ordinance No. 2010-2723
	Meeting Votes



